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®
P Itt Melonie Bryan, Deputy County Manager- Chief Financial Officer

Finandal Services

October 23, 2008

*~ The Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board of Commissioners

Pitt County
Greenville, NC 27834

Dear Board Members:

It is our pleasure to present the Board and the Citizens of Pitt County with the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Pitt County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Pitt County Financial Services
Department. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, that it is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations
of the County as measured by the financial activity of its various funds, and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain a comprehensive understanding of the County's financial
activity have been included.

A Compliance/Single Audit is required under the provisions of the Single Audit Implementation
Act and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." Information related to this single audit, including
the “Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards”, findings, recommendations, and
applicable laws and regulations, are detailed in a separately bound presentation available upon
request at the County office. The Single Audit Act allows the use of an independent accounting
firm to audit all grants, which eliminates the need to hire separate auditors for each grant.

In addition to the funds of the County, the combined financial statements include the discrete
presentation of two legally separate entities: Pitt County ABC Board and the Pitt County
Industrial Development Commission. These entities are component units of the County.

General Description of the County

The County was formed in 1760 and has a land area of 656.52 square miles with a certified
population of 151,996 as of July 2007 (estimated). This information is the latest data released by
the North Carolina Office of State Planning. Greenville, the County seat and largest city, is
centrally located in the County. There are nine other incorporated municipalities in the County.

www. pittcountync.goy

1717 West 5% Street Greenville, N.C. 27835-1696 252.902.3000  fax: 252.830.6380




The County has a commission/manager form of government, with the nine members of the Board
of Commissioners being elected from districts on a partisan basis for staggered four-year terms.
The County provides its citizens with an extensive array of services including education, human
services (public health and social services), public safety, cultural and recreational, economic and
physical development, environmental protection, general administration, and others.

The CAFR includes all funds of the County in addition to all activities upon which the County
exercises oversight responsibility, with the exception of schools that are administered by the Pitt
County Board of Education. Financial support is also extended to certain boards, agencies, and
commissions to assist their efforts in serving citizens. Among these are the Pitt County Board of
Education and Pitt Community College. The County has evaluated its relationship with each of
these entities according to criteria established by GASB Statement 14. However, as County
allocations do not constitute a major portion of their revenues, or because the County has no
authority to designate their management, none of these organizations have been included in the
CAFR. Note 1 — Section B, Note 15 and Note 16 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
provide detailed explanations of the County's relationship to each outside entity and the reasons
for their inclusion or exclusion.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Pitt County is a well-diversified employment and service center for eastern North Carolina. One
of the fastest growing areas in the State, the population increased by 20% between 1980 (90,146)
and 1990 (108,480), 23% between 1990 and 2000 (133,798) and an additional 7% between 2000
and 2005. In early 1993, the County was designated a Metropolitan Statistical Area by the U.S.
Department of the Census and is known as the Greenville, N.C. MSA.

Pitt County is located in the central portion of the North Carolina Coastal Plain at the hub of a
highway network, with over 750,000 people living within a 45-mile radius, and serves a large
concentration of population and industry in eastern North Carolina. The County is the leader for
retail sales in eastern North Carolina and consistently ranks in the top 13 counties for retail sales
in the State. The local economy is well diversified, including a major university and community
technical college, a regional medical center and a growing manufacturing sector, which
complements the region’s traditional agricultural base. Major area employers include East
Carolina University, Pitt County Memorial Hospital, DSM-Dyneema, NACCO Materials
Handling Group, and Alliance One International. Employment levels are estimated at 74,202
persons. Major projects in 2007-2008 included the continuing expansion of facilities at East
Carolina University, the Brody School of Medicine and Pitt County Memorial Hospital. The
Hospital is currently completing construction of a 375,000 square foot, 120-bed cardiovascular
inpatient, outpatient and support services tower adjacent to the existing hospital facility that is
scheduled to open January 2009. Total cost is estimated at $150 million. Private industry
projects included expansions at NACCO Materials Handling Group and DSM-Dyneema.

The Industrial Development Commission, created by voter referendum in 1957, continues to
recruit new business and industry, primarily from the northeastern and western states and Japan.
The number of inquiries from industry has remained steady for the past several years as more



companies become aware of the area through increased marketing efforts. The Commission
works closely with existing industry and assisted Glaxo-Wellcome and Procter & Gamble in
selling their plants. Other initiatives in the past several years have resulted in the location of
three Japanese firms, ASMO Greenville, NC Asahi and Fuji Silysia Chemical USA. As a result,
Greenville and the County are now recognized as the newest node for Japanese investment in
North Carolina. In the past 12-18 months, the County has seen expansion of existing industry
and the announcement by CMI Plastics to relocate its operations from New Jersey to the Minges
Corporate Park, a move generated by new jobs and additional capital investment of several
million. Ioto USA also located in Pitt County during this fiscal year working with reconstituted
tobacco products.

Major Initiatives

During the year, the County was involved in a number of major projects and programs.
Highlights of these projects are discussed in the following paragraphs:

Education. The Pitt County School Board and the Board of Commissioners jointly developed
and approved an Education Compact during Fiscal Year 1999-2000 that provided for increased
funding and greater accountability over a five-year period. A major goal of the compact was to be
within the top one-third of North Carolina’s school systems in funding for education and in the
areas of student achievement and test scores. At the close of Fiscal Year 2004-2005, the fifth and
final year of the Compact, the County had exceeded its stated funding goal.

While there is not a formal compact in place any longer, improving funding, student achievement
and test scores — the purpose of the original compact - continue to be the leading goals of both
Boards. To that end, the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Education adopted a joint
resolution which pledges their continued desire to move forward addressing the needs of the
school system together. The Board of Commissioners also continues to increase funding for
current expenses as the student enrollment grows.

The Board of Commissioners also recognizes the school system's construction needs due to high
growth areas, projected increases in student population, and the need to alleviate existing
overcrowding. The Board of Commissioners is dedicating 40% of Article 40 and 60% of Article
42 - the one-half percent sales taxes - and 100% of the Public School Building Capital Funds to a
School Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of retiring current school bonds and to build future
facilities. The Board of Commissioners also commits $750,000 each year from the General Fund
to supplement capital needs of the school system.

A major item for discussion during the Fiscal Year 2006-2007 year was additional funding for
school facility construction. Between 1997 — 2006, several Certificates of Participation issues
were consummated for the express purpose of school facility construction — both new facilities
and expansion/renovation of existing buildings. In February 2007, funds were borrowed for one
new school and four renovation projects. It is anticipated that this new debt service requirement
will be covered by a combination sales tax revenues restricted for school facilities and through
the payoff of an existing bond issue and the associated “freed” capacity that will be available.



In spite of these construction efforts, the County recognizes that construction needs still exist for
the school system. To that end, the Board of Commissioners spent much of calendar years 2005
and 2006 seeking special legislation to allow the County to impose an additional sales tax to
generate construction funds for school and community college construction. While we had
limited success in gaining sales tax authority for our individual County, during the 2007
legislative session, both the House of Representatives and the Senate approved state-wide
authority to impose a new, additional %% sales tax after the successful passage of a voter
referendum. The County held its Referendum on November 6, 2007 and received positive
support from the voters to implement the new local option sales tax. This new tax was
implemented effective April 1, 2008 with the first distribution of proceeds expected in July 2008.

With this passage, the County will work with both the public K-12 system and the community
college to design long range funding plans that can be addressed with this new source of funds.
While there are far greater needs than this %% tax will fund, it does give the County an
additional tool to work with to begin attacking these needs.

Long Range Planning. The County staff and the Board of Commissioners continue to improve
the process of developing long range financial and capital improvement plans for the County. To
this end, we continue to update our multi-year plan each budget cycle and review it annually as
an integral part of the budget process. This plan allows the Board the opportunity to establish
priorities and plan for their evolution in an orderly fashion. This plan is also reviewed and
revised by the Board at least once per year.

Coupled with this endeavor is the establishment of annual work plans and benchmarks for each
department. This makes both staff and elected officials aware of items that are facing the County
and again, allows the County to plan for their implementation. This planning effort has helped
improve communications among staff, elected officials and the general public. Quarterly
reporting of results began in the 1 quarter of Fiscal Year 2004-2005 and continue to be reviewed
each quarter.

EMS Study. Again in Fiscal Year 2007-2008, a major item on the County’s work program was
to continue long-range planning efforts for the delivery of Emergency Medical Services. After
the conclusion of 18 months of work, the Special EMS Study Committee developed an EMS
Ordinance which addressed both emergency and non-emergency response which was
subsequently passed by the Board during Fiscal Year 2006-2007. Additionally,
recommendations on service delivery for Fiscal Year 2007-08 were made and adopted during the
County’s annual budget process. This completed the work of the Special Study Committee and,
as such, the committee dissolved and was replaced with an EMS Oversight Committee which
became operational with the new fiscal year to review squad operations and enforce the EMS
Ordinance adopted in 2007. While improvements have been made over the past two fiscal years,
there is still much work to continue. Demand for services continues to rise and the associated
costs with providing the service rise also as it becomes harder to staff ambulances with volunteer
labor.

To aid with funding the EMS needs, the County implemented a special taxing district in Fiscal
Year 2002-2003 to support the operations and staffing in the Emergency Medical Services area.



This increase in funding has allowed the County to resolve many of the coverage issues and bring
the County service delivery to the paramedic level. The newly adopted budget for Fiscal Year
2008-2009 contained a tax increase from 4-cents to 4.4-cents for EMS along with increased
collections expectations from the actual users of the system. Unfortunately, concerns still exist
as funding requests continue to escalate and little money exists within the current system for
capital replacement. This area will receive continued scrutiny by staff, the elected officials and
the EMS Oversight Committee as we move into the new year. Public safety for our citizens is of
paramount importance.

Financial Information

Internal Control. The internal control structure is designed to ensure that the assets of the
County are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met for both internal and external reporting
purposes. Refining internal controls is an ongoing process that is necessary to provide these
assurances.

Budget. Any internal control structure is only as good as the budget used to monitor compliance.
North Carolina General Statutes require the adoption of an annual budget for all funds except
fiduciary funds, internal service funds and those funds for which expenditures are authorized by
project ordinance. The annual budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as
mandated by the statutes, and is an integral part of the County's accounting system and daily
operations.

Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are recorded when they are both measurable and
available. The County makes every attempt to maintain a diverse and stable revenue base to
shelter it from short and long-term fluctuations in any one revenue source. Aggressive collection
policies are in place to ensure the highest collection percentage possible for County revenues.
User charges and fees will be reviewed annually to establish amounts that support the cost of
service provision.

Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, except for accrued vacation benefits.
Governmental fund types, such as the County's General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and
Capital Project Funds are reported on the modified accrual basis. Proprietary Funds of the
County are reported on the accrual basis whereby revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when incurred. The Board of County Commissioners can only amend the
budget since it creates a legal limit on spending authorizations. Once the budget or project
ordinance is adopted, budgetary control is maintained to ensure compliance with the budget as
adopted or amended. Department or function within each individual fund as deemed appropriate
establishes the level of budgetary control. At the end of the fiscal year, encumbrances are
reported as a reservation of fund balance. Unencumbered balances lapse for annually adopted
budgets. It is believed that the County's internal accounting controls adequately protect assets
and provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording of financial transactions.



Fund Balance. The County, as per Local Government Commission (Department of State
Treasurer) guidelines, must maintain, at a minimum, undesignated Fund Balance of 8.33% - an
amount equal to one month of General Fund operations. It is the County’s stated goal to respect
the integrity of Fund Balance and use it sparingly. The budget adopted for Fiscal Year 2008-
2009 does not anticipate spending Fund Balance for operational needs. It is the County’s stated
intention to maintain a minimum undesignated Fund Balance of at least 18-20% and at June 30,
2008, the County had 18.2% undesignated fund balance.

Grants. As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the County is also responsible
for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. The County's single audit for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and the report, along with any areas of concern, are included in a
separately bound presentation and available through the Financial Services Department.

Cash Management. Effective cash management, including the forecasting of cash requirements,
provides for efficient utilization of available cash resources. To this end, the County has a Cash
Management and Investment Policy. The objectives of the policy are to increase the amount of
idle money invested, to increase investment earnings, and provide adequate safety and liquidity
of the County's money. The plan addresses five (5) areas: cash receipts, investments, cash
disbursements, banking relations, and monitoring and reporting on the plan.

In addition to the established Cash Management Plan, the Deputy County Manager - Financial
Services will continue to develop and implement a series of internal controls which are designed
to prevent losses of public money arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third
parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets or imprudent actions of employees and
officers of the County.

Risk Management. In recent years changes in the insurance industry have affected many
counties in North Carolina; however, Pitt County has been able to secure coverage in the
commercial market due to an excellent loss history. The County made the decision in Fiscal
Year 2002-2003 budget deliberations to self-insure for workers” compensation coverage. Due to
rising premium costs, the County felt better suited to control costs by emphasizing our safety and
wellness programs. We use a third party administrator to review and process claims and have, as
anticipated, been successful in containing costs. This program was continued for Fiscal Year
2008-2009 and we anticipate similar results. Medical, dental and vision coverage for employees
and their dependents are self-funded by the County. The dental and vision plans are internally
self-administered and the County contracts with a third party to administer the health coverage.

Debt. The County’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and debt policies guide long-term decision
making on facility and other capital needs. The County strives to confine long-term borrowing to
capital improvements to terms of less than 25 years paying attention to the expected useful life of
the project. Long-term debt will not be used as a source of funding for current operations. The
County will maintain a sound relationship with all bond rating agencies and lending institutions.

The County reviews its CIP on an annual basis and looks at a ten-year window of needs. This



long range planning helps the County anticipate rather than react and make better long term debt
decisions. The County will look to issue future debt for public school facilities and the
community college pending the outcome of the November referendum.

Independent Audit

North Carolina General Statutes require an annual independent audit of all local government
units in the State. Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A., a firm of independent certified
public accountants, has audited the financial records of the County and their opinion has been
included in this report. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements of the County are free of material misstatement. Their audit was
made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, included examining on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements as well
as assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management.
Their opinion concluded that the accompanying financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008 have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
and supported the issuance of an unqualified opinion.

Other Relevant Information

The Federal and State Single Audit Acts require the County's auditors to study internal controls
and perform additional tests on transactions involving grant funds. The auditors' reports on this
work are included in a separately bound report — “Compliance Letters for the Year Ended June
30, 2008~. Copies are available through the Financial Services Department. Any findings or
questioned costs reported in this report are subject to subsequent review by the appropriate
grantor agencies. The review could result in refunds of grant moneys if some expenditures are
deemed improper. Every effort has been made to insure all disbursements are in accordance with
the grants' provisions. Required refunds, if any, should be immaterial.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with applicable General Statutes of
North Carolina and in conformance with standards set forth by:

*The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

*The State Auditor, State of North Carolina

*The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States & Canada (GFOA)

*The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and its Committee on
Governmental Accounting and Auditing

There has been significant summarizing of financial detail to make the report easily readable and
understandable.



Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Pitt for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This was the
eighteenth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The County believes that our
current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and it will be submitted to GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the government has received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
for its annual budget document for Fiscal Year 2007-2008. This marks the eleventh consecutive
fiscal year the County has received this companion award. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document was judged to be
proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations
guide and as a communications tool.
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PITT COUNTY PROFILE

Pitt County was formed in 1760 and has a land area of
approximately 656 square miles. Pitt County's 2007
estimated population is 151,996 based on the North
Carolina Office of State Budget and Management's
provisional estimate. In the 2000 Census, the
County's population was 133,798. Greenville, the
county seat and largest city, is centrally located in

the County. There are nine other incorporated
municipalities within Pitt County. Through its location at the hub of a radiating highway network, the County
serves the largest concentration of population and industry in the eastern portion of North Carolina. Over
one-half million people live within a 45-mile radius of the County.

Pitt County is a rapidly growing, well-diversified employment and service center for eastern North Carolina.
As one of the fastest growing centers in the State, the population increased by 23.34% between 1990 and
2000. Pitt County now ranks as the 13" most populous county in North Carolina. The Greenville
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which encompasses all of Pitt County, was the fourth fastest growing
MSA in the State during the 1990’s. Greenville is the home to East Carolina University and the East
Carolina University School of Medicine. Major employers in the area include East Carolina University, Pitt
County Memorial Hospital, DSM Pharmaceuticals, NACCO Materials Handling Group, Alliance One
International, and Grady-White Boats. As a university community with a strong business and
manufacturing base, the area is characterized by an expanding, highly productive, multi-skilled labor force;
a diversified economic base; a low cost of living; an excellent educational system; a large regional health
care complex; abundant cultural and recreational opportunities; financially sound, progressive, and pro-
business local government; and a mild climate.

Located on the coastal plain, the County is in the eastern part of North Carolina, approximately 90 miles
east of the capital city of Raleigh, 75 miles from the Atlantic Ocean, and 220 miles south of Washington,
D. C. The Tar River runs through the center of the County. The land generally slopes toward the east and
is level with low rolling hills in the west. The temperatures average from a daily high of 73 degrees to a
daily low of 50 degrees. The average precipitation is 47 inches of rainfall with only occasional
accumulations of snowfall each year.

The County operates under the Commissioner-Manager form of government with the nine members of the
Board of Commissioners being elected from districts on a partisan basis for staggered, four-year terms.
The Chairman presides over all County Commissioner meetings (held on the first and third Monday of
each month) and has the ability to vote on any issue. The Commissioners enact all general and technical
ordinances, approve the annual budget and set the accompanying tax rate, approve contracts and
originate general management policies. The Commissioners employ a County Manager, who serves at
the Board's pleasure and who directs the daily operations of the County with the assistance of three
Deputy Managers.

Property taxes may be levied by the County without a vote of the people and are collected as an annual ad
valorem tax ($0.665 per $100 valuation for fiscal year 2008-09) on the appraised value of all real and
tangible personal property within its boundaries. This rate is a decrease from prior year as the County’s
recent revaluation was effective January 2008. The adopted rate is higher than the revenue neutral rate of
~.64 cents ($.63821). The inability to reduce the rate to revenue neutral reflects the costs associated with
opening a new 192-bed addition at the County’s detention center, the opening of a new elementary school
and uncontrollable cost increases for items such as fuel and utilities.



PITT COUNTY PROFILE

EDUCATION

Pitt County is served by a public school system as well as many excellent private parochial and non-
parochial schools. Advanced educational opportunities within the county are also abundant.

Pitt County Schools

One public school system serves Pitt County and its municipalities. The Pitt County Schools
Administrative Unit is governed by the Board of Education consisting of twelve members, two each elected
from six geographic districts. A school superintendent is appointed by the Board of Education.

The State provides funding for a basic minimum educational program (approximately 69%) which is
supplemented by the County and Federal governments. This minimum program provides funds for
operational costs only. The financing of public school facilities has been a joint State and County effort.
Thus, local financial support from the County is provided for capital and operating costs which are not
provided for by the State or Federal government.

The system expects to serve in excess of 23,000 students in the 2008-09 school year.

Pitt Community College

Established in 1961, Pitt Community College (PCC) is accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the
Southern Association of Colleges and Schools to award Associate Degrees. PCC is governed by a 12-
member Board of Trustees, four of whom are appointed by the Board of Commissioners, four by the
County Board of Education and four by the Governor to serve four-year, staggered terms. The State
provides primary funding (77%) for the Community College. The remainder is shared by the Board of
Trustees and Pitt County.

PCC is a comprehensive two-year college offering approximately 49 associate degree programs, 68
certificate programs and 24 diploma programs. In terms of curriculum programs, PCC is the 7" largest out
of 58 schools in North Carolina’s community college system. School enrollment estimation for 2008 is
8,700 curriculum students and 12,000 continuing education students. PCC's educational programs and
services are focused to meet the needs of local communities for higher academic education, employment
skills, basic education skills, job retraining, personal growth and development, community workplace
literacy, and community and economic development. PCC is well-known in the North Carolina Community
College System for its specialization in medical career programs.

East Carolina University

East Carolina University (ECU) is the third largest of North Carolina’s 53 private and public four-year
colleges and universities with enroliment of over 27,000 students. Founded in 1907 as a state-supported
teacher training school, it became a liberal arts college in 1941, and a state university in 1967. Itis now a
Doctoral Il institution offering approximately 200 undergraduate, graduate, and doctorate degree programs
in its twelve professional schools, College of Arts and Sciences, and School of Medicine. ECU leads the
state in Internet-based education with enrollment of approximately 5,270. The University’s Brody School
of Medicine operates a family practice center, cancer center, and outpatient clinics in several medical
specialties. It is well-known for its groundbreaking work in telemedicine and robot-assisted surgery.
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PITT COUNTY PROFILE

TRANSPORTATION

Access to the area is provided by an east-west Interstate-quality freeway, a north-south four-lane highway,
two railroads, and three commercial airports. An international airport is within two hours drive and
Interstate-95 is within 30 miles of Pitt County. Twenty-nine motor freight carriers provide regular service to
the area, with nine operating terminals within the County. Three major deep water ports—Wilmington,
NC, Morehead City, NC, and Norfolk, VA—are within 120 miles of the area.

The County has approximately 1,600 linear miles of public roads and highways. The County has no
financial responsibility with respect to maintenance and construction of roads. Major expansion,
improvement and maintenance of primary and secondary highway thoroughfares fall under the
responsibilities of the State.

The Pitt-Greenville Airport (the "Airport") is an approximately 1000-acre municipal facility, owned jointly by
the County and the City of Greenville and located adjacent to the Greenville Industrial Park in the
northwest portion of Greenville. By joint resolution of the Greenville City Council and the Board of County
Commissioners and by an act of the State General Assembly, the Pitt-Greenville Airport Authority, a body
politic and corporate, was created to oversee and direct the operations, maintenance and improvements
of the Airport. The Airport is a non-hub Regional (Commuter) Airport currently served by US Air Express,
with round trips daily to its hub in Charlotte. In addition to airline activity, the Airport serves as the portal of
entry for a myriad of corporate and business aircraft serving such clients as DSM Pharmaceuticals,
Grady-White Boats, Weyerhaeuser, and NACCO Materials Handling. Other services utilizing the Airport
include air ambulance and air freight companies.

Daily rail service is provided to the County by CSX Transportation and Norfolk-Southern Railway, two of
the nation's largest railroad systems. Interconnecting in Greenville, these systems allow for the transport
of freight shipments to and from such cities as Atlanta, New Orleans, Miami, St. Loms Chicago, Detrait,
Philadelphia and Pittsburgh.

The County is served by two public transit systems-one that is operated by the City of Greenville
(Greenville Area Transit - GREAT) and one that is operated by the County (Pitt Area Transit System —
PATS). The City of Greenville operates a bus system within its corporate limits. The County has no
financial responsibility for subsidizing such service. The County operates PATS as a department of
County government with an appointed board to oversee its operations of offering rural human service and
rural general public transportation services.

HUMAN SERVICES
Social Services

The Department of Social Services administers the following Public Assistance or Income Maintenance
programs: Medicaid, Work First Cash Assistance, Special Assistance to Adults, Food Stamps, and
Energy Assistance. In addition to the public assistance programs, the Department of Social Services
operates the child support enforcement program.

The Department of Social Services provides protective services for abused and neglected children and
adults, foster care for children and adults, adoption services, day care services for children, family
planning, employment counseling services, in-home services, and individual and family adjustment
services. It also assists persons in securing health care consumer education and other informational
services.

11
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Mental Health Center

As a result of House Bill 381, adopted in the 2002 legislative session, the mental health system in North
Carolina has been in an evolving state. Public agencies have become managers of service versus direct
service providers. While this has been a multi-year process, Pitt County completed its transition to a Local
Management Entity (LME) effective July 1, 2005. By taking a planned orderly approach, the citizens have
continued to receive excellent care from private providers. In May 2006, Pitt County adopted a
“Resolution of Intent” and actively pursued the creation of an 9-county LME to be made up of Pitt, Craven,
Jones, Pamlico, Bertie, Gates, Northampton & Hertford Counties and serving an approximate population
of 340,000. This new, 9-county LME, known as East Carolina Behavioral Health opened its doors for
operation July 1, 2007.

Public Health Department

The primary purpose of the Public Health Department is to ensure the health and well being of the citizens
of the County by means of various population based activities that fall into the general strategy of health
promotion and disease prevention. This strategy distinguishes public health activities from other health
care activities that are more curative in nature and more individualized in scope. The mandate of the
Public Health Department is defined in the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina and the
responsibility for administration of activities as assumed by County government are implemented through
the County Board of Health.

The scope of Public Health Department activities falls into six broad categories, including: (a) control of
communicable diseases, which includes environmental health activities, control of sexually transmitted
diseases, control of tuberculosis and control of other childhood diseases in child care settings; (b) specific
health care services to assure minimal preventive health services for the indigent, including immunization,
family planning, prenatal care, well baby care and specialized services for children with special needs; (c¢)
nutrition education and food supplementation; (d) screening and early detection activities directed at the
adult population; (e) support and follow-up services especially for high risk infants and pregnant women;
and (f) health education and health promotion activities, including an on-going community diagnosis to
identify specific community based health problems and develop appropriate interventions.

MEDICAL FACILITIES

Pitt County Memorial Hospital

Pitt County Memorial Hospital (PCMH) is a 761-bed private, not-for-profit acute care hospital. Located on
the western border of Greenville, the hospital facilities were built in 1977. PCMH was transferred by Pitt
County in 1998 for operation by Pitt County Memorial Hospital, Inc., (the “Corporation”) as a private non-
profit corporation. Eleven of the twenty members of the Board of Trustees of the Corporation are
appointed by the Pitt County Board of Commissioners.

PCMH is one of four academic medical teaching centers in the State and serves as a teaching hospital for
the ECU Brody School of Medicine. PCMH is a regional health care referral center serving over 1.2 million
people in a 29-county area with a multitude of services that include organ transplant; a Level | Trauma
Center; air ambulance service; neonatal intensive care; and centers for rehabilitation, diabetes, cancer,
and cardiac care.
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ECU School of Medicine

The ECU School of Medicine was established in 1975 by an act of the North Carolina General Assembly.
The ECU Brody School of Medicine has a threefold mission: to produce primary care physicians—
especially family doctors—to serve the State, to increase opportunities for minorities and disadvantaged
students to pursue a medical education, and to enhance the system of health care in eastern North
Carolina. In addition to educational programs, patient care and research are focal points of the School of
Medicine. The school is the principal source of advanced referral medical care for citizens of eastern
North Carolina, and is an important source of primary care for citizens of Pitt County.
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COUNTY OF PITT

MISSION STATEMENT

The Mission of Pitt County Government is to enhance the health, safety, and well-being of our
community by advocating for and providing quality services in a friendly, efficient and cost-
effective manner.

VISION

A Leader in the State; Best in the East.

VALUES

Pitt County Government believes our purpose is public service. Thus, we adhere to the
following:

v Encourage honesty and behavior that is consistent with our mission;

V1 Recognize and promote competence, excellence, and open communication;

v Support each other in working toward our goals;

V] Maintain an open government that is a good steward of public resources;

| Support decision making that is deliberate, conscientious, and based on fact.

GOALS FOR FY 2008-09

M To promote quality education;
M To promote community safety through enhanced emergency service programs;

V] To enrich the quality of life for Pitt County citizens through opportunities for improved
health and welfare;

M To advance economic development opportunities for Pitt County;

M To address the facility and space needs of all county government programs—general
government, public schools and community college;

M To champion infrastructure improvements throughout the county; and

M To promote the provision of and access to recreational activities for county citizens.
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Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, PA.

A Professional Association of Certifivd Public Accountanis and Management Consudtants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of County Commissioners
Pitt County
Greenville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, ¢ach major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Pitt County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of Pitt County, North Carolina’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Pitt County
ABC Board which represents 67 percent, 63 percent, and 85 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets and
revenues of the component unit column. Those financial statements were audited by another auditor whose
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Pitt County ABC Board, is based solely on the reports of the another auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.
The financial statements of Pitt County ABC Board and the Industrial Development Commission were not
andited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditor
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Pitt County, North Carolina as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2008 on
our consideration of Pitt County, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

730 13™ Avenue Drive SE Hickory, North Carolina 28602 - Phone 828-327-2727 - Fax 828-328-2324
13 South Center Street » Taylorsville, North Carolina 28681 » Phone 828-632-9025 » Fax 828-632-9085
Toll Free Both Locations 800-948-0585 « Web Site: www.martinstarnes.com
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Law Enforcement Officer’s Special Separation Allowance Schedule
of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions and related notes, Other Post Employment
Benefits Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions and related notes are not
required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of Pitt County, North Carolina. The introductory section, combined
and individual fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental ad valorem tax schedules,
and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements have been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and statistical section have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

77@;;52;,@%““) E&n&ﬂ-ﬂo‘ Cras, Pda.

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
Hickory, NC
October 22, 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Pitt County, we offer readers of Pitt County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Pitt County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information furnished in the County’s financial statements, which follow this
narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Pitt County’s governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at the close of
the most recent fiscal year by $31,107,865.

* The County’s net assets of governmental activities decreased by $9,180,103; the majority
of this decrease is attributable to the increase in net expenses of the General Government
function of $3,015,371 over the prior fiscal year.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, Pitt County’s General Fund reported an ending
fund balance of $31,218,315 a decrease of $4,147,730 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 73% of this total amount, $22,873,508 is available for spending at the
government’s discretion while the difference is either reserved for a specific purpose or
restricted by State statute.

e Pitt County’s citizens passed via referendum the implementation of a quarter cent sales
tax increase effective April 1, 2008.

» Tax rate was decreased by four and one half cents to 66.5 cent per $100 valuation. The
proceeds are split 65.16 cents General Fund and 1.34 cents Industrial Development
Commission.

e The County holds the following GO bond ratings:

Fitch AA
Moody’s Aa3
Standard & Poor’s AA-

e The County holds the following COPs ratings:

Fitch AA-
Moody’s Al
Standard & Poor’s A+

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Pitt County’s basic
financial statements. Pitt County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements (Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views
of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In
addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information
that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the fiscal condition of Pitt County.
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government- Fund Notes to the
wide Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary »  Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first four statements, Exhibits A through D, in the basic financial statements are the
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information
concerning the County’s financial status. Exhibit E is a reconciliation of the governmental fund
changes for the period.

The next statements, Exhibits F through K, are the Fund Financial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the County’s government, providing
more detail than the government-wide statements. There are four parts to the fund financial
statements: 1) the governmental funds statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements, 3) the
proprietary fund statements, and 4) the trust and agency fund statements.

The final section of the basic financial statements is the Notes. The notes to the financial
statements offer a detailed examination about various information contained in the statements.
After the notes, supplemental information provides details of the County’s non-major
governmental funds and internal service funds, which are combined in one column on the basic
financial statements. Budgetary information required by the North Carolina General Statutes can
also be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of Pitt County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Pitt County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Pitt County is improving or
deteriorating. Again this year, Pitt County had a significant increase in capital assets and long-
term liabilities, respectively, as we built an addition to the Detention Center and one new school.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Pitt County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Pitt County include
general government, public safety, public education, economic development, and general
administration. The sole business-type activity of Pitt County is the solid waste (landfill)
operation.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Pitt County itself (known as the
primary government), but also the ABC Board and the Industrial Development Commission for
which Pitt County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 35-37 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Pitt County, like other State and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All funds of Pitt County can be divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s basic
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method
called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a
result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that
helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the
County’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement
of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.
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Pitt County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes.
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County,
the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the
County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the final budget as
amended by the Board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in
the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting
and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities
is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary funds. Pitt County maintains two types of proprietary funds, Enterprise and
Internal Service. Enterprise funds report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Pitt County uses an enterprise fund to account for
its Solid Waste operation. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among Pitt County’s various functions. Pitt County uses internal
service funds to account for the financing of goods and services provided by the County Garage
Fund, Employee Medical Insurance Fund, and Workers’ Compensation Fund on a cost
reimbursement basis. As all of these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for Solid Waste. Conversely, the internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Pitt County has one fiduciary fund, the Law Enforcement
Officers (LEO) Pension Trust Fund. The County also maintains several trust and agency funds
for the benefit of other parties — Social Services, Sheriff and Mental Health Trust Funds, Tax
Collections Held for Municipalities Fund and the Flexible Benefit Plan Fund. These accounts
are truly held in a trust capacity and no budget is included in the County’s annual adoption for
these entities.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to

a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 47-79 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

We are in the seventh year of the new reporting model featuring the government-wide financial
statements. These statements mean that Pitt County no longer maintains governmental and
proprietary fund groups as separate and distinct types of accounting without any type of
consolidated statement that accurately reflects the operations and net assets of the County as a
whole. In the past, a total column appeared on the financial statements, but only as a
memorandum total. No attempt was made to adjust the statements in such a way that the total
column would represent the overall financial condition of Pitt County. These statements were
basically the equivalent of the fund financial statements that appear in this report with fiduciary
funds and two account groups, the long-term debt and the general fixed assets, added in.

As noted earlier, net assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. For Pitt County, total assets exceeded liabilities by $36,856,478 at the close of the most

recent fiscal year.

Pitt County’s Net Assets

Figure 2
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current and other assets $ 57,522,115 § 72,957,407 $ 1308941 §$ 1,209,740 $ 58,831,056 § 74,167,147
Capital assets: nondepreciable 36,570,972 9,836,968 664,329 664,329 37.235,301 10,501,297
Capital assets, net 90,690,007 94,143,275 2,106,250 2,206,280 92,796,257 96,349,555
Total assets 184,783,094 176,937,650 4,079,520 4,080,349 188,862,614 181,017,999

Long-term liabilities outstanding 133,532,460 116,896,177 1,822,500 2,060,000 135354960 118,956,177

Other liabilities 20,142,769 19,753,505 710,275 639,020 20,853,044 20,392,525
Total Liabilities 153,675,229 136,649,682 2,532,775 2,699,020 156,208,004 139,348,702
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 7,199,732 9,052,628 2,170,579 2,070,609 9.370,311 11,123,237
Restricted 200,598 717,353 - - 200,598 717,353
Unrestricted 23,707,535 30,517,987 (623,834) (689,280) 23,083,701 29,828,707
Total net assets $ 31,107,865 § 40,287.968 § 1,546,745 $ 1,381,329 § 32,654,610 §$ 41,669,297

By far, the largest portion of Pitt County’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. Pitt County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Pitt County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to repay these liabilities.

A small percentage, almost one percent of Pitt County’s net assets, represents resources that are
subject to external restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
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net assets (governmental and business-type activities), $23,083,701, may be used to meet the
county’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, Pitt County is able to report a positive balance in both
governmental activities and business-type activities, with an improvement in the business-type

activities over last year and a decline in governmental-type activities.

Pitt County’s Changes in Net Assets

Figure 3
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services § 18505356 § 16,079,116 $ 7,851,102 § 7.916,793 $ 26,356,458 $ 23,995,909
Operating grants and contributions 21,629,386 30,736,696 - - 21,629,386 30,736,696
Capital grants and contributions 3,592,618 4,531,812 - - 3,592,618 4,531,812
General revenues: - -
Property taxes 70,155,690 65,841,771 - = 70,155,690 65,841,771
Other taxes 31,413,418 29,846,075 - - 31,413,418 29,846,075
Other 3,164,210 2,647,891 28,499 400 3,192,709 2,648,291
Total revenues 148,460,678 149,683,361 7,879,601 7,917,193 156,340,279 157,600,554
Expenses:
General government 18,117,235 15,101,864 - - 18,117,235 15,101,864
Public safety 30,147,280 27,464,405 - - 30,147,280 27,464,405
Environmental protection 248,179 245,464 - - 248,179 245,464
Economic and physical development 4,924,122 5,156,590 ] : 4,924,122 5,156,590
Human services 48,987,705 54,707,785 - - 48,987,705 54,707,785
Cultural and recreation 645,517 583,843 - - 645,517 583,843
Education 47,639,044 48,738,593 - - 47,639,044 48,738,593
Interest on long-term debt 6,931,700 5,703,750 - 52,900 6,931,700 5,756,650
Landfill - - 7,714,185 6,666,960 7,714,185 6,666,960
Total expenses 157,640,782 157,702,294 7,714,185 6,719,860 165,354,967 164,422,154
Increase (decrease) in net assets (9,180,104) (8,018,933) 165,416 1,197,333 (9,014,688) (6,821,600)
Net assets, July 1 40,287,968 48,306,901 1,381,329 183,996 41,669,297 48,490,897
Net assets, June 30 $ 31,107,864 $ 40287968 $ 1,546,745 $ 1,381,329 § 32,654,609 $ 41,669,297

Governmental activities. Of total net assets, governmental activities accounted for $31,107,864
(over 95 percent). Pitt County continued to experience a reduction in operating grants and

contributions due to the closure of our mental health single county program initiated in Fiscal
Year 2007.

Business-type activities. ~Business-type activities increased Pitt County’s net assets by
$165.416. Expenses grew due to an increase in contracted labor and services at Solid Waste &
Recycling.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Pitt County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
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Governmental funds. The focus of Pitt County’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Pitt County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $46,750,350 a decrease of $13,494,765 in comparison with the prior
year. The decrease is attributable to FY 2007 issuance of COPs to fund the 2007 Education
Projects with expenditures taken place in FY 2008.

Pitt County’s Fund Balance

Figure 4
General Other Governmental Funds Total Governmental Funds
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

§ 31,218315 § 35,366,045 $ 15,532,035 $ 24,879,070 $ 46,750,350 $ 60,245,115

Pitt County continues to fight budget constraints while realizing an increasing demand for
services in areas such as education, public safety and human services. New sources of revenue
will have to be explored to create funding for expanding service levels and to address the need to
build and operate more schools and address other capital needs. The annual natural growth in
property taxes will not be able to fund expansions related to opening new schools and facilities.
The Fiscal Year 2008-2009 budget continues a posture of fund balance maintenance and should
allow the County to preserve its fund balance in the 18-20% range. The tax rate was decreased
4.5 cents as a result of revaluation and property value increases to 66.5 cents per $100 valuation.
This is above the revenue neutral rate of 63.8 cents.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of Pitt County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, fund balance was $31,218,315 with $22,873,508 noted as unreserved and available. As a
measure of the General Fund’s financial strength, it may be useful to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 18.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures ($125,788,627), while total fund
balance represents 24.8 percent of that same amount.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used
to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available, 2) amendments
made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as federal and State grants,
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Total amendments to the General Fund were just over $5.7 million. The County increased
revenues by $1,152,673 or approximately 0.9 percent. The bulk of these revenue changes were
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in the Human Services departments — Public Health and Social Services and reflected increases
in State and federal funding sources. Changes in the amount of Fund Balance Appropriated of
$6.,273,831 also occurred. These appropriations covered funding of expenditures, such as the
match for the Community College’s state bonds, funding to the new regional mental health
provider and carryover match amounts for grants from the prior fiscal year.

In total, the County over-collected the General Fund’s final budgeted revenues by $1,805,265 or
1.4 percent. This was coupled with under-spending in the General Fund of $3.4 million or
slightly over 2.6 percent. However, these two actions combined did not prevent the County from
using fund balance as Transfers to Debt Service, Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds
totaled $8.1 million.

Proprietary funds. Pitt County’s proprietary funds (both business-type activities, like Solid
Waste, and governmental-type activities in the internal services funds) provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets for all proprietary funds at the end of the year had a positive balance of
$432,360, up $308,578 from the prior year. Total net assets at year-end increased to $2,602,939
from $2,194,391 for the year ending June 30, 2008. The County’s Solid Waste Fund saw
revenues at 104% of budget, while expenses were at 103% of budget resulting in a net revenue of
$136,917. Solid Waste no longer anticipates reimbursements from two private contractors that
were identified in the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) closeout audit
related to costs incurred in the 1999-2001 time frames while responding to debris cleanup related
to Hurricane Floyd. These funds were written off in Fiscal Year 2007-2008.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Pitt County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2008 amounts to $92,796,257 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and
equipment.  Construction in Progress (not included above) is termed Capital Assets non-
depreciable and represents $31,966,876.

During Fiscal Year 2006-2007, the County issued $30 million in new debt for the 2007
Education Projects. An additional $20 million was borrowed in the fall of 2008 to fund a 192-
bed addition to the County’s existing jail facility. The building needs of the County have been
forecast ten years into the future through the annual review and adoption of a Capital
Improvement Plan. Items such as another 192-bed jail facility addition and additional facilities
for both the public school system and the local community college have been identified. Steps
are being taken to identify revenue sources to fund these additional needs.

Additional information on Pitt County’s capital assets can be found in note 6.A on pages 60-61
of this report.
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Pitt County’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Figure 5

| Govemmental Activities Bus iness-Tj;i)e Activities | Total _

T 008 7 2007 T 2008 2007 | 2008 | 2007 |
Land and improvements | $ 584149 $ 5582119 75728 75272 | S 6594218 |$ 6334841
Buildings 113529752 113829947 2,672,936 2647373 | 116,202,688 | 116,477,320
Fumiture and equipment | 6,846,994 | 7144331 2,670,515 | 2,636,389 9,517,509 9,780,720
Vehicles 5,349,382 5,381,295 615,680 | 589,337 5,965,062 5,970,632
Construction in progress 31,966,876 5,492,249 - - 31,966,876 5,492,249
Subtotal 163,534,500 | 137,429.941 6,711,853 6625821 | 170246353 | 144,055,762
Accumulated depreciation | 36,273,521 | 33449698 | 3941274 | 3755212 | 40214795 | 37204910
Capital assets, net | $ 127260979 | § 103,980243 | $ 2770579 | $ 2,870,609 | § 130,031,558 ' $ 106,850,852

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Pitt County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $2,940,000, which is backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Pitt County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligations Bonds

Figure 6
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 7 2007 | 2008 2007 7 2008 | 2007
General Obligation Bonds | '$ 2340000 $ 3295000 S 600,000 S 800,000 $ 2,940,000 | $ 4,095.000

This outstanding general obligation indebtedness of $2,940,000 is out of a legal debt limit of
approximately $765,067,717. This legal debt limit is determined by the Municipal Finance Law
of North Carolina which limits the amount of net bonded debt a County may have outstanding to
8 percent of the appraised value subject to taxation. Using this formula, Pitt County’s net debt
limit after reducing for bonded debt is $762,127,717. However, a better analysis of debt is
brought about by taking all outstanding debt, not just that secured by General Obligation bonds,
(137,668,440 not including bonds in Enterprise fund of $600,000) and subtracting it from the
legal debt limit to arrive at the Net Legal Debt Margin of $627,399,277.

Net debt outstanding increased $13,762,344, from the June 30, 2007 balance of $123,906,096.
Additional information on Pitt County’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 on pages 61-65 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

e The unemployment rate for Pitt County in 2007 was 5.0 percent. This is slightly higher
than the State’s 2007 unemployment rate of 4.7 percent. The first two quarters of 2008
indicate an increase to the State’s unemployment rate to 6.0% with the County seeing an
upswing to 7.2%.
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e Inflationary trends noted in the region are very similar to national indices.

e Population of 151,996 (2007) — The region experienced an increase of 9.5 percent from
2000 - 2006.

All of these factors were considered in preparing Pitt County’s budget for Fiscal Year 2008-
20009.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year 2008-2009

Governmental activities. Pitt County is very fortunate to have steady and continuous growth in
its property valuation. January 1, 2008 marked the effective date for overall property
revaluation. A 15% increase in real and personal property values helped bolster revenues
allowing the County to maintain its fund balance. =~ The County’s next general revaluation is
scheduled for January 1, 2012.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund will increase by 3.9% during the 2008-2009 year.
The County reduced ad valorem taxes by 4.5-cents while providing increased funding to
Education and Public Safety by 15.8% and 13.4%, respectively. The County was able to
maintain its benefits package with an adjustment to rates and benefits which had a minimal
impact to the employees. The costs for personnel services (employees) are generally the largest
single expenditure category and the County strives to maintain the workforce without major
expenditure increases.

Fiscal Year 2008-2009 is expected to be another sound year for the County. The continued
growth in property values can cover normal budgetary increases; however, it will not be able to
fund capital and operational expansions related to new facilities. As a regional hub for
healthcare, education, and retail shopping in eastern North Carolina, the County has been
fortunate not to experience some of the problems other areas have had in terms of declining
property values, increased foreclosures and loss of sales tax revenues. Additionally, Pitt County
began receiving new sales tax revenues which were effective April, 2008 that will allow for
addressing continued capital needs. The County received voter approval for this %% sales tax
increase on the November 2007 ballot with proceeds earmarked for education construction.

Business-type activities. General operating expenses in these areas, like the governmental

activities, are expected to increase slightly. Both the commercial and residential rates were
increased as the State imposed a $2/ton fee effective July 1, 2008.

Requests for Information

Requests for information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the County of Pitt, Financial Services Department, 1717 West Fifth
Street, Greenville, North Carolina 27834.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial
position of all funds and account groups as well as the operating results
of all funds. They also serve as an introduction to the more detailed
schedules that follow in subsequent sections.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable, net

Due from other governments
Internal balances

Inventories

Prepaid items

Cash and investments, restricted
Total current assets

Capital assets:

Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, net

Total capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences, due in one year
Unearned revenues

Long term debt - due within one year
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences, due in more than one
year

Due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for;

Register of Deeds
Alcohol Beverage Control
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Primary Government

Exhibit A

Component Units

Industrial Pitt
Governmental Business-Type Development County

Activities Activities Total Commission ABC Board
$ 31,371,842 § 478,364 31,850,206 $ 2,197,405 1,617,461
1,281,301 - 1,281,301 61,661 -
990,873 848,142 1,839,015 - 1,789
1,833,548 - 1,833,548 - -
8,691,769 - 8,691,769 - -
17,565 (17,565) - - -
2,511 - 2,511 - 1,071,491
232,523 - 232,523 2,600 10,102
13,100,183 - 13,100,183 - -
57,522,115 1,308,941 58,831,056 2,261,666 2,700,843
36,570,972 664,329 37,235,301 - 682,256
90,690,007 2,106,250 92,796,257 - 1,213,915
127,260,979 2,770,579 130,031,558 - 1,896,171
184,783,094 4,079,520 188,862,614 2,261,666 4,597,014
6,145,181 420,275 6,565,456 25,479 789,444
900,000 20,000 920,000 23,309 53,934
2,226,725 10,000 2,236,725 - -
8,476,519 260,000 8,736,519 - -
17,748,425 710,275 18,458,700 48,788 843,378
2,394,344 22,500 2,416,844 - -
133,532,460 1,800,000 135,332,460 - 18,239
135,926,804 1,822,500 137,749,304 - 18,239
153,675,229 2,332,715 156,208,004 48,788 861,617
7,199,732 2,170,579 9,370,311 - -
200,598 - 200,598 - -
- - - - 829,417
23,707,535 (623,834) 23,083,701 2,212,878 2,905,980
$ 31,107.865 % 1,546,745 § 32,654,610 § 2212878 3,735,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Human services
Education

Cultural and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Solid waste

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Units:
Industrial Development Commission
ABC Board

Total component units

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
5 18,117,235 § 4,140,725 % - 5 -
30,147,280 8,484,120 283,037 98,719
248,179 192,034 227,341 -
4,924,122 3,825 788,756 1,672,867
48,987,705 5,661,649 19,540,492 -
47,639,044 - 789,760 1,821,032
645,517 23,003 - -
6,931,700 - - -
157,640,781 18,505,356 21,629,386 3,592,618
7,714,185 7,851,102 - -
7,714,185 7,851,102 - -
$ 165354966 $ 26,356,458 $ 21629386 $ 3,592,618
$ 1,617,426 § 226,401 $ 115,666 $ -
10,069,968 10,464,573 - -
$ 11,687,394 § 10,690,974 § 115,666 § -

General Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Local option sales tax

Payment in lieu of taxes and other taxes
Interest earned on investments

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net Assets:

Beginning of year - July 1
End of year - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit B

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Units

Industrial Pitt
Governmental Business-Type Development County
Activities Activities Total Commission ABC Board
$ (13,976,510) $ - (13,976,510)
(21,281,404) - (21,281,404)
171,196 - 171,196
(2,458,674) - (2,458,674)
(23,785,564) = (23,785,564)
(45,028,252) - (45,028,252)
(622,514) - (622,514)
(6,931,700) - (6,931,700)
(113,913,421) — (113,913,421)
- 136,917 136,917
- 136,917 136,917
(113,913,421) 136,917 (113,776,504)
$ (1,275,359) $ -
- 394,605
(1,275,359) 394,605
70,155,690 - 70,155,690 1,498,569 -
29,660,569 - 29,660,569 - -
1,752,849 - 1,752,849 - -
3,164,210 28,499 3,192,709 20 47,754
104,733,318 28,499 104,761,817 1,498,589 47,754
(9,180,103) 165,416 (9,014,687) 223,230 442359
40,287,968 1,381,329 41,669,297 1,989,648 3,293,038
$ 31,107,865 § 1,546,745 32,654,610 § 2,212,878 § 3,735,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

37



PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit C
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
2007 COPS Detention Other Total
Education Center Governmental Governmental
General Capital Project  Capital Project Funds Funds

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 25,996,528 § - 3 - 3 3619859 § 29,616,387
Taxes receivable, net 928,249 - - 353,052 1,281,301
Accounts receivable, net 485,079 < - 503,026 988,105
Interest receivable 1,833,548 - - - 1,833,548
Prepaid items 125,818 - - 106,705 232,523
Cash and investments, restricted - 4,485,698 8,334,923 279,562 13,100,183
Due from other funds 47,906 - - 466,157 514,063
Due from other governments 6,674,325 - - 2,017,444 8,691,769
Total assets § 36091453 § 4,485,698 $ 8,334,923 7345805 $§ 56,257,879
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 1,832,914 § 493847 § 827,744 % 482,143 § 3,636,648
Retainage payable . 850,716 898,894 54383 1,803,993
Due to other funds - - - 496,498 496,498
Deferred revenue 3,040,224 - - 530,166 3,570,390
Total liabilities 4,873,138 1,344,563 1,726,638 1,563,190 9,507,529
Fund Balances:
Reserved by State statute 7,276,450 - - 2,520,470 9,796,920
Reserved for prepaid items 125,818 4 5 106,705 232,523
Reserved for Public Safety - Wireline 291,941 - - - 291,941
Reserved for General Government - Register of Deeds 200,598 . - - 200,598
Reserved for Public Safety - Winterville Rural Fire Dept. - . 104,814 104,814
Reserved for Human Services - Mental Health 450,000 - - 450,000
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund 22,873,508 = - - 22,873,508
Special revenue funds - - - 1,312,430 1,312,430
Debt service funds - - . (8,068) (8,068)
Capital project funds - 3,141,135 6,608,285 1,746,264 11,495,684
Total fund balances 31,218,315 3,141,135 6,608,285 5,782,615 46,750,350
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 36,091,453 § 4,485,698 § 8,334,923 § 7,345,805
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A) are different because:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities

are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 127,260,979
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 1,056,194

Long-term liabilities, compensated absences, unfunded pension obligations, and
unfunded other pos- employment benefits are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Premiums related to debt issuance, net of accumulated amortization, are nota
current use of resources, and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred revenues in the governmental funds are used to offset accounts receivable
not expected to be available within 60 days of year-end. These receivables are
a component of net assets in the Statement of Net Assets.

Net assets of governmental activities, per Exhibit A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Interest earned on investments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current;

General government
Public safety
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Human services
Education

Cultural and recreation
Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal repayments
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers to other funds

Transfers from other funds

Debt obligation issued

Premium received from issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit D
2007 COPS Detention Other Total
Education Center Governmental Governmental
General Capital Project Capital Project Funds Funds

67,597,323 § - 3 - 8 3,363,313 § 70,960,636
24,804,551 - - 6,587,587 31,392,138
1,633,859 - = 143,471 1,777,330
24,790,692 - - 4,911,181 29,701,873
2,701,522 - - - 2,701,522
5,599,793 - - 2,655,453 8,255,246
1,952,192 783,932 368,177 38,296 3,142,597
657,601 96,813 100,000 404,749 1,259,163
129,737,533 880,745 468,177 18,104,050 149,190,505
14,224,253 - - - 14,224,253
23,384,276 - - 5,412,387 28,796,663
231,415 - - - 231,415
1,703,686 - - 2,964,087 4,667,773
48,668,953 - - - 48,668,953
36,785,176 21,732,177 - - 58,517,353
645,517 - - - 645,517

- - 11,046,693 2,745,996 13,792,689

134,249 - - 7,336,503 7,470,752
11,102 - - 5,895,300 5,906,402
125,788,627 21,732,177 11,046,693 24,354,273 182,921,770
3,948,906 (20,851,432) (10,578,516) (6,250,223) (33,731,265)
(8,418,577) - (375,000) (7,738,593) (16,532,170)
321,941 - - 16,210,229 16,532,170

- - 19,855,000 - 19,855,000

- - 381,491 - 381,491
(8,096,636) - 19,861,491 8,471,636 20,236,491
(4,147,730) (20,851,432) 9,282,975 2,221,413 (13,494,774)
35,366,045 23,992 567 (2,674,690) 3,561,202 60,245,124
31,218,315 § 3,141,135 % 6,608,285 % 5,782,615 § 46,750,350
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A)
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit D)

Exhibit D reports revenues using a current financial resources basis, which generally means revenue
is recognized when collected or is expected to be collected within 60 days of year-end. Exhibit B
reports revenues when the earning process is complete, regardless of when it is collected.
This measurement difference causes timing of revenue recognition differences for the following
revenue types:

Property taxes

Permits and fees

Sales and services

Expenses related to compensated absences and law enforcement officers' separation allowance
that do not require current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds statement.

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds statement. However, in
the Statement of Activities, capital outlay is not an expense, rather it is an increase in capital assets.

Contributions of capital assets are not reported in the governmental funds statement.

The sale/disposal of capital assets is reported as a revenue in the governmental funds statement
without subtracting the net book value of the capital assets sold.

Depreciation expense allocates the costs of capital assets over their useful lives. It is not reported
as an expenditure in the governmental funds statement.

Amortization of debt issuance costs and premium received on debt issuance allocates the cost of
debt over the life of the instrument and reduces the interest cost over the same life. Amortization
is not reported as an expenditure or revenue in the governmental funds statement.

Principal repayments are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds statement.
However, in the Statement of Activities, these transactions are not an expense, rather they are
a decrease in liabilities. (This line includes debt refunding transactions.)

Proceeds from issuance of debt are reported as revenues in the governmental funds statement.
However, in the Statement of Activities, it is not a revenue, rather it is an increase in liabilities.

Increases in other post-employment benefits accrued liability are reported as expenses in the

in the entity-wide financial statements, however it is not an expenditure in the governmental
funds statement.

Debt issuance cost paid and premiums received from issuance of debt are intangible assets and
deferred items, respectively on the Statement of Net Assets, rather than other financing sources

and uses as presented on the governmental funds statement.

The net revenue of the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities, per Exhibit B
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit E

$  (13,494,774)

(804,946)
21,280
(23,990)

(783,614)

27,230,610

56,216

(266,702)

(3,739,388)

372,798

6,072,656

(19,855,000)

(3.826,389)

(381,491)

243,131

$ 9,180,103



PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Interest earned on investments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government

Public safety

Environmental protection

Economic and physical development
Human services

Education

Cultural and recreation

Debt service

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Exhibit F

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual with Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Over/Under

65,984,295 § 65,984,297 § 67,597,323 § 1,613,026
24,338,767 24,338,767 24,804,551 465,784
1,612,500 1,612,500 1,633,859 21,359
23,990,154 25,020,111 24,790,692 (229,419)

3,006,395 3,006,395 2,701,522 (304,873)
5,421,974 5,474,474 5,599,793 125,319
1,931,500 1,931,500 1,952,192 20,692
494,010 564,224 657,601 93,377
126,779,595 127,932,268 129,737,533 1,805,265
14,298,582 14,834,640 14,224,253 610,387
23,183,331 24,077,104 23,384,276 692,828
230,863 242,565 231,415 11,150
1,673,061 1,743,381 1,703,686 39,695
46,508,298 50,674,751 48,668,953 2,005,798
36,785,176 36,785,176 36,785,176 =
593,058 645,558 645,517 41
145,354 145,354 145,351 3
123,417,723 129,148,529 125,788,627 3,359,902
3,361,872 (1,216,261) 3,948,906 5,165,167
(6,544,113) (8,561,752) (8,418,577) 143,175
- 321,941 321,941 -

3,182,241 9,456,072 - (9,456,072)

(3,361,872) 1,216,261 (8,096,636) (9,312,897)

“ g - (4,147,730) $ (4,147.730)
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Inventories

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Compensated absences

Unearned revenues

Current portion of postclosure costs

Current maturities - general obligation bonds
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Noncurrent portion of compensated absences
General obligation bonds

Landfill closure/postclosure costs payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit G

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Solid Internal Service
Waste Funds

478,364 $ 1,755,455
848,142 2,768

. 2,511
1,326,506 1,760,734
664,329 -
2,106,250 .
2,770,579 .
4,097,085 1,760,734
420,275 704,540
17,565 P
20,000 .
10,000 -
60,000 .
200,000 -
727,840 704,540
22,500 .
400,000 -
1,400,000 -
1,822,500 =
2,550,340 704,540
2,170,579 3
(623,834) 1,056,194
1,546,745 §$ 1,056,194




PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Operating Revenues:
Solid waste fees

User charges

Interfund services
Miscellaneous revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies and materials

Contract labor and other services
Contracted services-waste disposal
Depreciation

Equipment maintenance

Medical claims costs

Claims reimbursement
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest earned on investments
Interest expense

Hurricane cleanup expenses

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Change in net assets

Net Assets:
Beginning of year - July |

End of year - June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit H

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Solid Internal Service
Waste Funds
$ 7,171,515 § -
- 1,372,515
- 6,594,935
679,587 -
7,851,102 7,967,450
919,690 29,879
384,290 -
1,498,833 -
4,541,375 -
168,024 -
- 703,648
- 6,804,455
- 207,950
7,512,212 7,745,932
338,890 221,518
28,499 21,613
(42,400) -
(159,573) -
(173,474) 21,613
165,416 243,131
1,381,329 813,063
3 1,546,745 § 1,056,194




Exhibit I

PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Solid Internal Service
Waste Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers $ 8,251,203 % 1,376,142
Cash received from interfund services transactions - 6,594,935
Cash paid to suppliers (6,390,054) (7,690,212)
Cash paid to employees (922,731) (133,635)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 938,418 147,230
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Change in due from other funds (18,586) -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (18,586) z
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (67.994) :
Hurricane Floyd cleanup expenses (159,573) -
Principal payments on long-term debt (200,000) -
Interest expense (42,400) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (469,967) 2
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment income received 28.499 21,613
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 478,364 168,843
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Beginning of year - July 1 - 1,586,612
End of year - June 30 b 478,364 $ 1,755,455
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Flows from Operating Activites:
Operating income (;0ss) $ 338,890 $ 221,518
Depreciation and amortization 168,024 -
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 397,747 3,627
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses - 127
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 91,403 (78,042)
Increase (decrease) in closure and postclosure costs payable (60,000) -
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 2,354 =
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 938,418 $ 147,230

Noncash Activities:
None

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit J
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCTARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Pension

Trust Agency

Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 243,847 § 400,736
Liabilities:
Accounts payable = 400,736
Net Assets:
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $ 243,847 § )

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit K
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Pension
Trust
Fund
Additions:
Employer contributions $ 99,400
Total additions 99,400
Deductions:
Benefits 103,047
Change in net assets (3,647)
Net Assets:
Beginning of year - July 1 247,494
End of year - June 30 $ 243,847

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1.

PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A.

Nature of Operations

Pitt County, North Carolina (the “County”), governed by a nine-member Board of Commissioners, is
one of the 100 counties established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-
10. The County was incorporated in 1760, and the County seat is located in Greenville, North
Carolina. The County operates under a council-manager form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety, health and mental health programs,
social service programs, and community development.

The accounting policies of the County and its discretely presented component units conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the County and its component units, legally separate entities for which
the County is financially accountable. The following discretely presented component units are
reported in separate columns in the County’s combined financial statements in order to emphasize
that they are legally separate from the County.

Pitt County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

The Pitt County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (“ABC Board”) is governed by a five-member
Board appointed by the County Commissioners as ABC Board members’ terms expire. The ABC
Board is required by State statute to distribute its surpluses to the General Fund of the County. The
ABC Board, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it was a proprietary fund. Complete
financial statements for the ABC Board may be obtained at 2305 S. Memorial Drive, Greenville, NC
27834.

Pitt County Industrial Development Commission

The Pitt County Industrial Development Commission (the “Commission”) is governed by a fifteen-
member Board appointed by the Pitt County Commissioners. The County assesses and collects the
property tax revenues of the Commission. The Commission was created to develop industry
progress for Pitt County. The Commission, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it was a
governmental fund. Pitt County has no financial liability for the Commission. Complete financial
statements for the Commission may be obtained at 1111 S. Washington Street, Greenville, NC
27834.

Pitt County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financial Authority

The Pitt County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financial Authority (the “Authority”) exists
to issue and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development purposes.
The Authority is governed by a seven-member Board of Commissioners, all of whom are appointed
by the County Commissioners. The County can remove any commissioner of the Authority with or
without cause. The Authority has no financial transactions or account balances; therefore, it is not
presented in the combined financial statements. The Authority does not issue separate financial
statements.

47



PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Exhibit A - Statement of Net Assets and Exhibit B -
Statement of Changes in Net Assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements in all material areas. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government
is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds. The fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The General Fund, 2007 Education Capital Project, Detention Center Capital Project and the Solid
Waste Enterprise Fund are the major funds of the County for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. The basis of accounting determines when the revenues and expenditures or expenses and the
related assets and liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement
focus applied. All funds of the County are accounted for during the year using the modified accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes. The financial
statements are reported at year-end as discussed below.

The government-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund, fiduciary fund, and the ABC Board
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. Revenues are
recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Net assets are segregated into
(1) investment in capital assets, net of related debt, (2) restricted net assets, and (3) unrestricted net
assets. Operating statements for these funds present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the County has elected to apply only
applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued before November 30, 1989 in its accounting
and reporting practices for its proprietary operations.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of June 30, 2008. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources)
and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

For modified accrual basis of accounting purposes, ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a
. revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially
past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the
subsequent year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered procedures for the assessment and
collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this
change in the law, Pitt County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on all
registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For
registered motor vehicles, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles
are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due.
Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2007 through February 2008 apply to the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. Uncollected taxes which were billed during this period are shown as a
receivable on the fund financial statements.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to
such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, collected and
held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue on both the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. Intergovernmental
revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because, generally, they are not
measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements,
with the exception of payments in lieu of taxes and other charges between the County’s Solid Waste
Fund and various other functions of the County. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues; therefore, all taxes
are reported as general revenues.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Proprietary funds distinguish between operating revenues/expenses and nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Solid Waste Fund are charges to customers for services. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts comprised of assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenses or expenditures, as appropriate. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with finance-related, legal, and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The General Fund, 2007 COPS Education Capital Project Fund, Detention Center Capital Project
Fund, and the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund are the major funds of the County for the year ended
June 30, 2008.

The County has the following fund categories:

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are those used to account for the County’s expendable
financial resources and related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary or agency funds).
The following are the County’s governmental fund types:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General
Fund is a major fund for fund financial statement reporting purposes.

Special Revenue Funds. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to specified purposes. The School Capital Reserve Fund,
County Capital Reserve Fund, State/Federal Forfeiture Fund, CDBG Fund, State Grants Fund, Pitt
Area Transit Fund, Revaluation Fund, Industrial Development Building Fund, Fire Districts Fund,
Emergency Medical Services Districts Fund, and E911 Surcharge Fund are special revenue funds of
the County.

Capital Projects Funds. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The County’s capital project funds are: Pitt Community College Building Fund,
Detention Center Fund, Pitt Community College (Bowen Farm) Fund, 2004 COPS Education Fund,
2007 COPS Education Fund, Community Schools and Recreation Fund, ECTC Building Fund, and
School Improvement Fund.

Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund is used to account for all expenditures for principal and

interest for all long-term debt payments. The other governmental fund types provide the resources to
the Debt Service Fund to make the payments through operating transfers.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are similar to those
often found in the private sector. The following are the proprietary funds of the County:

Enterprise Funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to business enterprises — where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing
body has decided that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes. The Solid Waste Fund is the only Enterprise Fund of the County. The Solid Waste
Fund is a major fund for fund financial statement reporting purposes.

Internal Service Funds. Internal service funds are used to account for goods or services provided
by one department to other departments of the County on a cost-reimbursement basis. The County
Garage Fund, Employee Medical Insurance Fund, and Workers’ Compensation Fund are the internal
service funds of the County.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used for assets held in a trustee capacity. The following are
the fiduciary funds of the County:

Agency Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The
Agency funds maintained by the County account for money deposited with the County through
Social Services, Mental Health, Sheriff, and Jail. The agency funds also include the 3% interest
payable to the State Fund, Flexible Benefit Plan Agency Fund, and the fund used to account for tax
collections held for other local municipalities.

Pension Trust Fund. The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the assets held by the County
for the payment of the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance pension benefits.

Budgetary Data

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual
budget is adopted for the General Fund; the special revenue funds, with the exception of the CDBG
Fund, which is project based; the School Capital Project Fund (all other capital project funds adopt
project budgets); the Debt Service Fund; and the Enterprise Fund. Project ordinances are adopted
for the capital project funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. All budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level, as defined in the budget
ordinance, for the General Fund, special revenue funds, the Enterprise Fund and the capital project
funds. The balances in the capital reserve funds will be appropriated when transferred to their
respective capital project funds in accordance with the project ordinance adopted for the reserve
fund. The County manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriations between
departments within a fund up to $20,000, and the County finance director is authorized by the budget
ordinance to transfer appropriations within a department; however, any revisions that alter total
expenditures of any department must be approved by the governing board. Revisions necessary
across funds to move cost of living adjustments (COLA) from budgeted reserves to the actual
departments are authorized for approval by the County manager and/or the finance director. During
the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

A budget calendar is included in the North Carolina General Statutes which prescribes the last day
on which certain steps of the budget procedure are to be performed. The following schedule lists the
tasks to be performed and the date by which each is required to be completed.

April 30 Each department head will transmit to the budget officer the budget requests and
revenue estimates for their department for the budget year.

June | The budget and the budget message shall be submitted to the governing board.
The public hearing on the budget should be scheduled at this time.

July 1 The budget ordinance shall be adopted by the governing board, or the governing
board must adopt an interim budget.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as
required by G. S. 159-31. The County may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County may establish time
deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates
of deposit.

State law [G. S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the United States or
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the
State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public
authority; obligations of certain nonguaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of
commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
(NCCMT), an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund.

Through special legislation enacted in the 1999 legislative session, the County was granted expanded
investment options for the funds related to the transfer of the Pitt County Memorial Hospital from
the County to a private, not-for-profit entity. The legislation allows the County to invest and
reinvest equity assets in one or more of the types of securities or other investments authorized by
State law for the State Treasurer [G.S. 147-69.2].

The County’s investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and nonmoney
market investments are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The NCCMT’s
Cash Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The
NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a
remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and nonparticipating interest earnings
and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The County pools monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to

maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits
and are considered cash and cash equivalents.
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For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the County considers all deposits and investments with
an original maturity date of three months or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash
equivalents.

Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The unexpended debt proceeds of the capital project funds are classified as restricted assets within
their respective funds, because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the debt
was originally issued.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes
on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due
on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January
6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2006. As allowed by State law, the
County has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes which are paid prior to the due
date. In the County’s General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were
written off in prior years.

Inventories

Inventories of the County consist primarily of gasoline and garage supplies and are valued at cost
(first-in, first-out method). The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (including
infrastructure assets purchased prior to implementing GASB 34), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost greater than $5,000
and an estimated useful life greater than two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. The County capitalizes buildings and land,
purchased or constructed, for the Pitt County Board of Education in all instances where the County
retains title to the property. The County transfers title of school property to the Board of Education
after all installment debt collateralized by the property has been retired. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or significantly extend the asset’s life are not
capitalized. The County capitalizes interest costs which are incurred during the construction period
of capital assets.
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Buildings and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives
as shown below:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Compensated Absences

County employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of
termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation days up to a maximum of thirty
days. All vacation pay is accrued when earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. The County uses the first-in, first-out method to value accrued vacation pay
and the current amount due.

The County’s sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest, but any unused sick leave at the time of retirement may be used in the determination
of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. In accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability
is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

Long-Term Obligations

In the govemment-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net assets.
Debt issuance costs are recognized as other assets and amortized over the life of the debt using the
effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as debt issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of the debt is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

The bonds for the Solid Waste Fund are carried in the Enterprise Fund rather than in the
governmental activities funds. The debt service requirements for that debt are met by solid waste
revenues, but the taxing power of the County is pledged to make these payments if solid waste
revenues should ever be insufficient.

Self-Insurance
The County is self-insured for employee medical benefits and workers’ compensation with third-
party insurance coverage at specified levels. The self-insurance plan is administered by an insurance

company. The liability for estimated claims that have been incurred, and not yet reported, is accrued
in the Internal Service Fund.
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Deferred / Unearned Revenues

In the fund financial statements, ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because
they are not considered to be both “measurable and available.” Ad valorem taxes receivable that are
measurable, but not available, are recorded as deferred revenues in the fund financial statements. In
addition, property taxes collected in advance of the fiscal year to which they apply are also recorded
as unearned revenue in the government-wide financial statements and deferred revenue in the fund
financial statements. Certain receivables are also recorded as deferred revenue in the fund financial
statements because they are not considered to be available at year-end.

Fund Equity

Reservations or restrictions of equity in the fund financial statements represent amounts that are not
appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Reserved

Reserved for Prepaid Items - The portion of fund balance not available for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance of prepaid items, which are not expendable, available
resources.

Reserved by State Statute - The portion of fund balance, in addition to other reserves, which is not
available for appropriation under State law. State law restricts the appropriation of fund balance or
fund equity to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close
of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

Reserved for Public Safety - Wireline - The portion of fund balance restricted for future E911
wireline capital purposes.

Reserved for Register of Deeds - The portion of fund balance constituting the Automation
Enhancement and Preservation Fund, funded by 10% of the fees collected and maintained by the
Register of Deeds’ office. The funds are available for appropriation but are legally restricted for
computer and imaging technology in the Register of Deeds’ office.

Reserved for Winterville Rural Fire Department - The portion of Fire District Special Revenue
Fund balance restricted for the Winterville Rural Fire Department.

Reserved for Mental Health — The portion of fund balance reserved for 2004 cost settlement
potential paybacks related to mental health cost reporting.
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Designations of Fund Balance

Designations of equity represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The
General Fund unreserved fund balance had the following designations at June 30, 2008.

Appropriated fund balance - General Services $ 4,500,000

Appropriated fund balance - Public Health 936,442
Appropriated fund balance - Mental Health 50,000
S 5486442

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided are accounted for as revenue or expenses in the government-wide
financial statements, since they would be treated as such if they involved organizations external to
the County. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund or expenditures/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All
other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant areas where
estimates are made are: allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation lives, incurred but not
reported claims, and postclosure landfill expenses.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Deficit Fund Balance or Net Assets of Individual Funds

The following individual funds had deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2008:

Special Revenue:

Pitt Area Transit Fund $ 67,547
EMS District Fund $ 46,679
Capital Projects:

ECTC Building Capital Project $ 76,897

The County plans to properly capitalize these funds with approved debt issuance or local transfers.
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Deposits and Investments

A.

Deposits

All of the County’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under
the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with the securities held by the County’s agents in the unit’s name. Under the Pooling
Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in
a fiduciary capacity for the County, these deposits are considered to be held by the County’s agent in
its name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for
noninterest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits. Depositories
using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral
covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County
or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged
for the County under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk
may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina
enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits
under the Pooling Method. The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all
pooling method financial institutions. The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those
financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness on any other financial institution
used by the County. The County complies with the provisions G.S. 159-31 when designating
official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The County does not have a
policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.

At June 30, 2008, the County’s deposits had a carrying amount of $9,409,664 and a bank balance of
$9.917,046. The County only has deposits in institutions that collateralize under the Pooling
Method. Of the bank balance, $415,169 was covered by federal depository insurance and $9,501,877
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the name of the State Treasurer. The
County had $33,915 of cash on hand at year-end.

Investments

At June 30, 2008, the County’s investment balances were as follows:

Greater
Less Than 2-3 4-7 Than 7
Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year Years Years Years
NC Student Loan - Wachovia $ 8,550,883 § - S - 3 - $8,550,883
NC Capital Management Trust-
Cash Portfolio 22,239,487 22,239 487 - - -
NC Capital Management Trust-
Term Portfolio 5,361,001 5,361,00} - - -
$ 36,151,371 § 27600488 § - - $8,550,883
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During 2008, the County did not realize any gain or loss from the sale of investments. The
calculation of realized gains is independent of the calculation of the net increase/decrease in the fair
value of investments. Realized gains and losses on investments that have been held in more than one
fiscal year and sold in the current year may have been recognized as an increase or decrease in the
fair value of the investments reported in the prior year. The net increase in the fair value of
investments during 2008 for the County was $0. This amount takes into account all changes in fair
value (including purchases, sales and maturities) that occurred during the year. The unrealized gain
on investments held at year-end for the County was $0. The County liquidated its position with the
NC Student Loan in July 2008 at face value.

Interest Rate Risk: The County limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than three years.

Credit Risk: The County limits investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the
purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated.
State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations (NRSROs); however, the County had no formal policy on managing
credit risk. As of June 30, 2008, the County’s investments in Wachovia Commercial Paper were
rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and AAA by Moody’s Investors Service. The County’s
investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by
Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2008.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The County places no limit on the amount that the County may
invest in any one issuer. The County does not a formal policy regarding concentration of credit risk.
Investments making up more than 5 percent of the County’s investments are as follows:

NC Student Loan 24%
NCCMT 76%

Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, certain agricultural, horticultural, forest land, and historical
properties may be preferentially assessed for property taxes at present-use value rather than fair market
value. The difference between taxes on such property at present-use value and taxes that would have been
levied at fair market value may become collectible over the next three years. These taxes become due and
payable when the property becomes ineligible for the preference. At the end of the fourth year, these taxes
expire by operation of law. The following are property taxes that could become due if present use-value
eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Levied Tax Interest Total
2005 $ 2599056 $§ 617,276 $§ 3,216,332
2006 2,494 451 367,932 2,862,383
2007 2,482,264 142,730 2,624,994
2008 2,805,369 - 2,805,369

Total $ 10,381,140 § 1,127,938 § 11,509,078
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Accounts Receivable
Disaggregate Information

Amount (net of allowance)

Governmental  Business-Type

Type of Receivable Activities Activities Total
Accounts Receivable:
Customer/client billings $ 826,609 § 228,522 § 1,055,131
Landfill fees assessed - 619,620 619,620
Fees for services due from other agencies 161,496 - 161,496
Internal service funds- Garage 2,768 - 2,768

$ 990,873 § 848,142 § 1,839,015

Due from Other Governments:

Sales tax $ 5,428,826 § - $ 5,428,826
Sales tax refund 424,963 - 424,963
Other services 2,837,980 - 2,837,980

3 8,691,769 § - § 8,601,769

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

For the County, the amounts presented in Exhibit A, the Statement of Net Assets, are net of the following
allowances for doubtful accounts:

Fund Allowance
General Fund:
Property taxes $ 3,126,832
Other - Public Health 526,015
Interest _ 780,39%4
Total 5 4433241

Special Revenue Fund:
Ambulance services $ 3,003,170
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Capital Assets

A.  Governmental Capital Assets

A summary of changes in the County’s capital assets used in governmental activities follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2008
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 4,344,719 § - § (40,818) $ 300,195 § 4,604,096
Construction in progress 5,492,249 26,474,627 - - 31,966,876
Total nondepreciate capital assets 9,836,968 26,474,627 (40,818) 300,195 36,570,972
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land improvements 1,237,400 - - - 1,237,400
Buildings 113,829,947 - - (300,193) 113,529,752
Furniture and equipment 7,144,331 506,990 (804,327) - 6,846,994
Vehicles 5,381,295 305,209 (337,122) - 5,349,382
Total depreciable capital assets 127,552,973 812,199 (1,141,449) (300,195) 126,963,528
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land improvements 593,414 85,813 - - 679,227
Buildings 23,786,110 2,696,644 - - 26,482,754
Furniture and equipment 5,139,027 762,037 (915,565) - 4,985,499
Vehicles 3,931,147 194,894 : - 4,126,041
Total accumulated depreciation 33,449,698 § 3,739,388 § (915,365 § : 36,273,521
Depreciable capital assets, net 94,143,275 90,690,007
Governmental capital assets, net $ 103,980,243 § 127,260,979

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government

Public protection

Human services

Environmental protection:
Education

Economic/physical development:

Total

Business-Type Activities:
Solid waste
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630,008
1,054,317
198,004
16,764
1,583,946
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3,739,388
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B. Proprietary Capital Assets

The capital assets for the Enterprise Fund of the County at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2008
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land and improvements $ 664,329 §$ -5 -3 664,329
Total nondepreciable capital assets 664,329 - - 664,329
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements 2,647,373 35,022 (9,459) 2,672,936
Land improvements 88,393 - - 88,393
Furniture and equipment 2,652,120 18,395 - 2,670,515
Computer equipment 10,850 - (10,850) -
Vehicles 601,105 14,575 - 615,680
Total depreciable capital assets 5,999,841 67,992 (20,309) 6,047,524
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 963,362 49,385 (9,459) 1,003,288
Land improvements 88,393 - - 88,393
Furniture and equipment 2,338,807 56,980 - 2,395,787
Computer equipment 10,850 - (10,850) -
Vehicles 392,146 61 ,660 - 453,806
Total accumulated depreciation 3,793,558 § 168,025 $ (20,309) 3,941,274
Depreciable capital assets, net 2,206,283 2,106,250
Proprietary capital assets, net § 2,870,612 $ 2,770,579

Long-Term Obligations

The County records long-term debt of the governmental funds at face value in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets. All general obligation bonds serviced by the County’s General Fund are
collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County. Principal and interest payments are

appropriated when due.
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A.  Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s governmental activities long-term debt:

Accrued vacation pay
Unfunded LEO

Unfunded OPEB

General obligation bonds
Certificates of participation
Notes payable

Total

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2007 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2008 Portion
§ 2,567,000 $ 1,556,997 § (829,662) § 3,294344 § 900,000
437,371 175,679 (99,400) 513,650 -
- 3,826,889 - 3,826,889 -
3,295,000 - (955,000) 2,340,000 1,260,000
116,115,000 19,835,000 (4,330,000) 131,620,000 6,550,000
4,496,096 - (787,656) 3,708,440 666,519
$ 126,910,476 § 25,394,565 $ (7,001,718) § 145303,323 $ 9,376,519

By Purpose:

Schools $ 111,785,000
Pitt Community College 2,340,000
General government 2,474,770
Public safety 441,904
Economic and physical development 791,766
Detention Center 19,835,000
Accrued vacation 3,294,344
Unfunded LEO 513,650
Unfunded OPEB 3,826,889
Total § 145,303,303

The General Fund is typically used to liquidate the compensated absences and pension liabilities. General
obligation bonds ($2,340,000), debt related to the engineering project ($2,263,691) and note payable —
Grifton ($182,881) represent debt not considered in the calculation of Invested in capital assets, net of debt as
these issues are not associated with capital assets owned by the County.

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s business-type activities long-term debt:

Balance Balance Current

July 1,2007  Additions Retirements  June 30, 2008 Portion
Compensated absences $ 45541 § 11,176 § (14,217) § 42500 § 20,000
Closure and postclosure 1,520,000 - (60,000) 1,460,000 60,000
General obligation bonds 800,000 - (200,000) 600,000 200,000
Total § 2365541 § 11,176 §  (274,217) § 2,102,500 § 280,000
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B.  Certificates of Participation

A summary of the County’s certificates of participation is as follows:

Amount Date Rate Period Amount Balance Purpose and Collateral

Construct schools, purchase
land for schools, refund debt;

12,255,000 May 2000 5.28% Annual  § 545,000 §$ 1,635,000  secured by real estate
4.50% - Construct high school; secured
28,050,000 November 2000  5.75% Annual  $ 1,395,000 3,690,000 by real estate
4.50% - Construct high school; secured
28,050,000 November 2000 35.75% Annual  § 1,395,000 7,885,000 by real estate
Phase II of courthouse, advance
3.00% - $735,000 - refund debt; secured by real
12,635,000 October 2001 4.70% Annual $360,000 39,255,000  estate
$45,000 - School projects, advance refund

59,365,000 March 2007 3.5%-5.00%  Annual $3,430,000 59,320,000  debt; secured by real estate

19,835,000 October 2007 4.44% Annual  § 1,535,000 19,835,000 Construct detention center addition

Total certificates of participation $ 131,620,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County’s certificates of participation are as

follows:
Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 6,550,000 $ 5,556,186 § 12,106,186
2010 6,630,000 5,360,466 11,990,466
2011 8,090,000 5,166,208 13,256,208
2012 6,335,000 4,883,433 11,218,433
2013 6,365,000 4,606,511 10,971,511
2014-2018 33,275,000 18,723,198 51,998,198
2019-2023 27,920,000 15,064,771 42,984,771
2024-2028 28,640,000 13,025,381 41,665,381
2029-2033 7,815,000 750,750 8,565,750
Total $ 131,620,000 $ 73,136,901 § 204,756,901
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General Obligation Bonds

Serviced by the County's Debt Service Fund:
Pitt Community College Refunding Bonds, Series 1999, payable annually from

June 1999 through June 2010 in amounts ranging from $375,000 to $1,500,000;
interest at 4.01%

Pitt Community College Bonds, Series 1999, payable annually from June 2000
through June 2010 in amounts ranging from $40,000 to $55,000; interest at 4.01%

Total serviced by the County's Debt Service Fund

Serviced by the County's Enterprise Fund:

Sanitary Landfill Bonds, Series 1995, payable annually from February 1998 through

February 2001 in the amount of $200,000; interest ranging from 5.25% to 5.30%

Total general obligation bonds

$ 2,235,000

105,000

2,340,000

600,000

$ 2,940,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County’s general obligation bonds are as

follows:

Debt Service Fund Enterprise Fund
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 1,260,000 § 94,728 §$ 1,354,728 $ 200,000 $ 31,800 § 231,800
2010 1,080,000 44278 1,124,278 200,000 21,200 221,200
2011 - - - 200,000 10,600 210,600
$ 2,340,000 § 139,006 $ 2,479,006 § 600,000 $ 63,600 § 663,600
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Notes Payables

A summary of the County’s notes payables is as follows:

Original Issue Payment Information Outstanding
Date Rate  Period Amount Balance Security
December 2004  2.55% Annual $ 56,000 +interest $ 336,000 EMS facilities
May 2004 2.55% Semi-annual 42,847 42,809 Ambulances
August 2004 3.48% Annual 33,204 63,095 Autopulse equipment
August 1997 6.30% Quarterly 26,921 325,964 Real estate
March 2000 4.25% Quarterly 23,621 165,718 Real estate
August 2003 4.50% Quarterly 62,305 117,203 Real estate
July 2005 3.50% Quarterly 7,434 182,881 GTP - Grifton
January 2006 3.49% Semi-annual 72,675 211,079 MIS equipment
3.56% Quarterly 70,470 2,263,691 Engineering project
$ 3,708,440

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County’s notes payables are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 666,519 $ 128,615 § 795,134
2010 568,695 113,973 682,668
2011 422,672 86,527 509,199
2012 354,235 70,823 425,058
2013 336,895 58,544 395,439
2014-2018 1,359,425 118,953 1,478,378
Total $ 3,708,440 § 577,436 § 4,285,877

Statutory Debt Limitation

The County is subject to the Municipal Finance Law of North Carolina which limits the amount of
net bonded debt (exclusive of revenue and special assessment bonds) the County may have
outstanding to 8 percent of the appraised value of property subject to taxation. At June 30, 2008, net
debt outstanding was $2,940,000. The statutory limit at that date was $901,360,000, providing a
debt margin of $765,067,717.
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Employee Retirement Systems

A.

Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
Plan Description

Pitt County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State
of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State
of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The County is
required to confribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the County, the current rate for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.88% and 4.86%,
respectively, of annual covered payroll. The County’s contributions to LGERS for the years ended
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $3,973,042, $3,756,044, and $3,576,333, respectively. The
contributions made by the County equaled the required contributions for each year.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description

Pitt County administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance”), a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County’s qualified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to 0.85% of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. Plan benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Separation Allowance is
reported in the County’s report as a Pension Trust Fund. The plan issues unaudited plan financial
statements. The report may be obtained by writing to Pitt County Finance Office, 1717 West 5%
Street, Greenville, NC 27834-1696.

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At
December 31, 2008 the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees entitled to benefits

but not yet receiving benefits 10
Active plan members 120
Total 130
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Accounting

Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the County has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used To Value Investments

The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and
has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions
based on actuarial valuations. For the current year, the County contributed $85,000, or 1.72% of
annual covered payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The County’s obligation
to contribute to the plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment
eamnings. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the
December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses)
and (b) projected salary increases of 4.5%-12.3% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation
component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The
actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007 was 23 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The County’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the
current year were as follows:

Employer annual required contribution $ 170,846
Interest on net pension obligation 31,709
Adjustment to annual required contribution (26,876)
Annual pension costs 175,679
Employer contributions made for fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 99,400
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 76,279
Net pension obligation, beginning of fiscal year 437,371
Net pension obligation, end of fiscal year $ 513,650

Three-Year Trend Information

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Pension APC Net Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/2006 $ 165,719 51% § 363,315
6/30/2007 159,056 53% 437,371
6/30/2008 175,679 57% 513,650
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Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was
$2,027,477. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$5,555,672, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 32.01 percent. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description

The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S.
Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to
five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the
law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2008 were $365,083, which consisted of $277,105 from the County and $87,978
from the law enforcement officers.

Local 401(k) Retirement Plans

The County has a supplemental retirement plan for all County employees other than law
enforcement officers. The County has no requirement or obligation under State statutes to contribute
to this plan; however, the County has adopted the Supplemental Retirement Plan of North Carolina
401(k) for its non-law enforcement employees. The County contributes 4.98% of participants’ gross
pay, and employees may make voluntary contributions to the plan. The total contribution for the
year ended June 30, 2008 was $2,080,110, which consisted of $1,473,300 from the County and
$606,810 from the employees.
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E. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
Plan Description

Pitt County also contributes to the Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (Fund), a
noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State
Treasurer. The Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any County Register of Deeds who
is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent
locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental
Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of
North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina
27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to four
and one-half percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article I of G.S. 161.
Immediately following January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides ninety-
three percent (93%) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal
shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the Fund’s assets
may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, the County’s required and actual contributions were $15,388.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan, which is available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of
their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

The County has complied with changes in the laws which govern the County’s deferred compensation plan,
requiring all assets of the plan to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries. In accordance with GASB Statement 32, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans,” the County’s deferred compensation plan is not
reported within the County’s agency funds.

Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Trust Plan for Members
of the Local Governmental Employees” Retirement System (Death Trust Plan), a multiple-employer State-
administered cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. Employees who die in active service
after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the
time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump-sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal
to the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to his/her death, but the
benefit may not exceed $50,000 and will be a minimum of $25,000. All death benefit payments are made
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from the Death Trust Plan. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions.
Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by
the State. Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Trust Plan and not by the County, the County
does not determine the number of eligible participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County
made contributions to the State for death benefits of $32,618. The County’s required contributions for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented .08% and .14% of
covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Trust Plan cannot be separated between the
post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

Other Post-Employment Benefits — Health Care Benefits
Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits, the County has elected to provide health care benefits to retirees
of the County who have at least thirty years service with the North Carolina Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (System) or the North Carolina Law Enforcement Officers’ Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LE System); and/or employees who are credited with at
least twenty years of service with the System or the LE System and have reached their sixtieth birthday in
service and have their last five years of continuous service with the County, at the time of retirement.
Retired employees meeting the criteria discussed herein will be provide hospitalization in the same manner
as the active County employees. Once a retiree reaches their sixty-fifth birthday, the retiree will be
provided coverage in the form of a Medicare supplement policy purchased by the County. The County
pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits.

Retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the County’s group rates until the retiree reaches age
sixty-five. Currently, 119 retirees are eligible for post-retirement health benefits. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, the County made payments for post-retirement health benefit premiums of $419,451. The
County is self-insured for health care coverage and purchases catastrophic loss coverage through private
insurers. A separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2007, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:

Law
General  Enforcement
Employees Officers
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 119 N/A
Terminated plan members entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits = =

Active plan members 694 115
Total 813 115
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Funding Policy

The County pays the full cost of coverage for the health care benefits paid to qualified retirees under a
County resolution that can be amended by the County Board. The County’s members pay the current
active employee rate for dependent coverage, if the retiree elects to purchase the coverage. The County has
chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The current ARC rate is 12.65% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed
$419,451 or 1.25% of annual covered payroll. The County is self-insured for health care coverage and
purchases catastrophic loss coverage through private insurers. The County’s required contributions, under
a County resolution, for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers
represented 12.65% and 12.65% of covered payroll, respectively. There were no contributions made by
employees, except for dependent coverage in the amount of $59,184. The County’s obligation to
contribute to the Plan is established and may be amended by the County Board.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Post-employment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These
expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation

The County’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB statement
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation for the
healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 4,246,340
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustments to annual required contribution z

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,246,340
Contributions made (419,451)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 3,826,889
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 3,826,889

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2008 were as follows:

Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
Year Ended June 30 OBEP Cost OPEB Cost Contributed  Obligation
2008 $ 4,246,340 9.9% $ 3,826,889
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Fund Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $47,859,702.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $33,586,106, and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 142.5 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and health
care trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents, presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
which is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on
the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 11.00 to 5.00
percent annually. Both rates included a x.xx percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if
any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007, was 30 years.

Closure and Postclosure Care Costs — Landfill

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years
after closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the
landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as
an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The
$1,460,000 reported as landfill post-closure care liability at June 30, 2008 represents a cumulative amount
reported to date based on the use of 100% of the total estimated capacity of the landfill. These amounts are
based on what it would cost to perform all post-closure care in 2008. Actual costs may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The County has met the requirements of a local government financial test that is one option under State and

federal laws and regulations that helps determine if a unit is financially able to meet closure and post-
closure care requirements.
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Deferred / Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred revenues in the governmental fund statements at year-end is composed of the
following elements:

14.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds Total

Prepaid taxes not yet earned $ 170,330 § - 5 170,330
Taxes receivable (net) 926,176 150,827 1,077,003
Special assessments receivable (net) 66,340 - 66,340
Accounts receivable (net) 143,718 372,834 516,552
Interest receivable (net) 1,556,413 - 1,556,413
Other unearned revenues 177,247 6,505 183,752
Total 3,040,224 % 530,166 $§  3.570,390

The balance in unearned items in the government-wide statements at year-end is composed of the following

elements:
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Prepaid taxes 170,330 $ -3 170,330
Prepaid fees 183,752 10,000 193,752
Unamortized bond premium 1,872,643 . 1,872,643
Total 2,226,725 § 10,000 $§ 2,236,725
Accounts Payable and Interfund Balances
Disaggregate Information
Governmental Business-Type
Type of Payable Activities Activities Total
Trade payables $ 3,034,937 § 420275 $ 3,455,212
Retainage payable 1,803,993 - 1,803,993
Amounts due other agencies 286,294 - 286,294
Accrued salaries and fringe benefits 6,717 - 6,717
Internal service trade payables 89,540 - 89,540
IBNR estimate (incurred, but not reported) 615,000 - 615,000
Total $ 5,836,481 § 420275 § 6,256,756
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The composition of internal balances as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Receivable Payable
Entity Entity Amount Purpose
General Fund Landfill Fund § 17,565 Short-term cash flow
General Fund EMS Special Revenue Fund 1,532 Short-term cash flow
General Fund 911 Surcharge Special Revenue Fund 28,809 Short-term cash flow
b 47,906
Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employee; and natural disasters. The County purchases property
and casualty insurance through various insurers on the open market for all risks. Property and casualty
insurance coverage limits and deductibles are evaluated annually in order to balance the risk the County is
willing to take on with the risk of a large loss which could negatively impact the County’s budget situation.
Workers’ compensation coverage is self-funded with an excess policy in place to protect the contact from
high dollar claims. Workers’ compensation limits, self-insured retention amounts, etc., are also evaluated
annually and adjustments made depending on experience and the insurance market. The County’s health
insurance is self-insured using a third-party administrator and with catastrophic protection for the self-
insured fund. The health insurance is also evaluated annually for potential changes in coverage,
catastrophic protection limits, funding, etc.

The County purchases commercial insurance to protect against claims for property, general liability, auto
liability, public officials/errors and omissions, and employee bonds. The property and casualty commercial
coverage provides for coverage with a $25,000 deductible per event. Claims have not exceeded coverage
in recent years. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year-
end.

Workers’ compensation exposure is covered by a self-funded program developed within the County
budget. A sum of $700,000 was set up to pay all workers’ compensation claims received. A third-party
administrator was retained to process employee claims. In addition, an excess insurance policy covering
losses exceeding $400,000 per event up to $1,000,000 was purchased to limit the impact of an individual
catastrophic claim event on the fund. It is the intent that the Workers’ Compensation Fund will evolve into
a fund that will eventually allow the County to reduce annual appropriation to this exposure.

Health insurance coverage is self-insured through the County budget. The health insurance contract is with
BlueCross BlueShield of North Carolina. BlueCross BlueShield of North Carolina acts as a third-party
administrator for the Pitt County Health Insurance Fund and additionally provides stop-loss coverage for
individual losses over $75,000 and aggregate losses beyond 115% of expected claims. Additionally, the
County maintains reserves to cover any losses for any claims that would result if a different administrator
were retained and claims would need to be paid.

The County does not carry flood insurance as it is not in an “A” area by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given

time of the County’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The coverage
limits are $500,000 per loss, subject to a $1,000 deductible.
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For the Hospitalization Fund, a total of $5,859,264 in claims and changes in estimates were incurred for
benefits during fiscal year 2008. Changes in the fund’s claims liability amounts in fiscal 1999-2008 were
as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Year Beginning Estimates Payments Year -End
1999 $ 530,794 § 2977764 § (2,561,819) $ 946,739
2000 946,739 3,364,243 (3,566,756) 744,226
2001 744,226 4,479,717 (4,722,943) 501,000
2002 501,000 4,989,610 (4,357,401) 1,133,209
2003 1,133,209 5,220,350 (5,082,000) 1,271,559
2004 1,271,559 5,351,642 (5,432,872) 1,190,329
2005 1,190,329 4,880,417 (5,085,003) 085,743
2006 985,743 5,064,307 (5,173,524) 876,526
2007 876,526 5,859,264 (6,061,445) 674,345
2008 674,345 5,651,916 (5,711,261) 615,000

Jointly Governed Organizations

The County, in conjunction with four other counties and thirty-three municipalities, established the Mid-
East Commission (Council). The participating governments established the Council to coordinate funding
received from various federal and State agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to
the Council’s forty-four member governing board. The County paid membership fees of $33,450 to the
Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

The County, in conjunction with the City of Greenville, established the Pitt-Greenville Convention and
Visitors Authority to promote travel, tourism and conventions in Pitt County. Both the County and the City
appoint five members of the eleven-member Board, with one member being appointed by the Pitt-
Greenville Chamber of Commerce.

The County, in conjunction with twelve other counties, governs the North Carolina’s Eastern Region
Development Commission (Commission). Its purpose is to allow participating counties, including Pitt
County, which have the potential to derive direct economic benefits from the Commission, to create a
special economic development district, known as the Global TransPark Development Zone. The
Commission’s primary responsibility is to promote economic development within the territorial jurisdiction
of the Zone by fostering development projects to provide land, building, facilities, programs, information
and data systems, and infrastructure requirements for business and industry in the Global TransPark
Development Zone. The Commission is governed by forty-two voting members, consisting of three
members from Pitt County and each of the twelve other participating counties and three members appointed
by the Global TransPark Authority. The voting members from each of the counties are appointed by the
Board of County Commissioners of the respective counties. The Commission is responsible for a
nonexpendable trust fund consisting of an initial State appropriation of $7.5 million and 85% of the
quarterly distributions of the $5 motor vehicle license fees collected by the North Carolina Department of
Transportation. The motor vehicle tax was adopted by the legislature and the participating counties and
will be collected for a period of five years. The principal balance of the trust funds is nonexpendable and
will revolve as loans are made and repaid to the Commission. At June 30, 2008, the portion of the trust
available to be loaned exclusively to Pitt County was $1,750,878.
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Joint Ventures

The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Pitt County Board of Education,
participates in a joint venture to operate Pitt Community College. Each of the three participants appoints
four members of the thirteen-member Board of Trustees of the community college. The president of the
community college’s student government association serves as a nonvoting, ex-officio member of the
Board of Trustees. The community college is included as a component unit of the State. The County has
the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the community college and also provides
some financial support for the community college’s operations. In addition to providing annual
appropriations for facilities, the County periodically issues general obligation bonds to provide financing
for new and restructured facilities. The general obligation bonds outstanding for this purpose are the 1999
refunding and the 1999 new issue of which $2,235,000 and $105,000, respectively, remains outstanding.
The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the community college because of the statutory
responsibilities to provide funding for the community college’s facilities. The County contributed
$3,395,700 to the community college for operating purposes and $75,000 for capital outlay during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In addition, the County made debt service payments of $955,000 for
principal and $132,930 for interest during the fiscal year on general obligation bonds issued for community
college capital facilities. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture;
therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the County’s financial statements at June 30, 2008.
Complete financial statements for the community college may be obtained from the community college’s
administrative offices, P.O. Drawer 7007, Greenville, NC 27835.

The County also participates in a joint venture to operate the Sheppard Memorial Library with the City of
Greenville. The County Board of Commissioners appoints three Board members to the eleven-member
Board of the Library. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because the
Library’s continued existence depends on the participating governments’ continued funding. None of the
participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest has been reflected in
the financial statements at June 30, 2008. The County appropriated $514,828 to the Library to supplement
its activities. Complete financial statements for the Library can be obtained from the City of Greenville
offices at 201 W. 5™ Street, Greenville, NC 27834.

Major Customers

Approximately 43% of the Enterprise Fund “user charges” revenue and 39% of the Enterprise Fund trade
receivables are attributable to one customer.

Claims and Judgments
At June 30, 2008, the County was a defendant to various lawsuits. Management believes that the ultimate

outcome of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the
County.
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Contingencies

The County participates in a number of federal and State grant programs. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008, these programs were subject to audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, the State
Single Audit Implementation Act and the provisions of OMB Circular A-133. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies resulting from such an audit cannot be
determined at this time, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

A potential groundwater contamination problem was identified at the Pitt County Landfill in March 1993.
Since that time, the County has executed an Administrative Agreement on Consent with the State. The
Agreement calls for the County to assess the problems and remediate if necessary. The County has filed
the necessary plans with the State, and the State has approved an assessment plan. Groundwater
monitoring was conducted in December 1995. Groundwater monitoring has been completed; however,
potentially responsible parties have yet to be identified. As of the balance sheet date, any costs that the
County may be responsible for have been included in closure and post-closure costs. Remediation costs
cannot be accurately estimated at this time. Potentially responsible parties will be asked to contribute to
any costs incurred.

Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments

The County had commitments, as shown below, for construction contracts outstanding at June 30, 2008.
The projects are accounted for in the capital projects funds and are mainly funded by debt proceeds.

Balance
Project of Contract
Detention Center Capital Project $ 5,303,672
2007 COPS School Projects $ 7,010,347

The County has financial commitments of $148,352 per year to area municipalities for sewer line
improvements that will benefit the County as well as the municipalities.
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22, Benefit Payments Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State
monies. County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations, which
cause benefit payments to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose the additional financial aid which
does not appear in the basic financial statements, because they a re not revenues and expenditures of the

County.

Energy assistance $ 290,461 § -

Temporary assistance to needy families (TANF) 1,256,114 (34)
Aid to Families with Dependent Children (1,022) (280)
Special assistance to adults - 1,177,383

Adoption subsidy Title [V-E 383,252 108,244

Adoption subsidy - State - 243,077

Medicaid 137,119,190 70,133,745

WIC 3,420,790 -

Food stamp program 21,836,210 -

Total $ 164,304,995 § 71,662,135

23. Component Unit Transactions

In fiscal year 2008, the County and its component units reported transactions between the entities as

follows:
Pitt County Amount Purpose
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
" From Pitt County ABC Board § 1,000,000 Profit distribution
Economic and physical development expenses:
To Pitt County Industrial Development Commission 1,473,691 Direct expenses
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Transfers From / To Other Funds

In fiscal year 2008, the County made the following transfers within its fund structure. Transfers to the Debt
Service Fund were made to fund required debt payments; transfers to other funds represent the local
contribution by the County to fund certain activities and projects.

Transfers
Fund Type Fund Name From To Purpose
General General $ 685,160 $ -
Special Revenue School Capital Reserve - 685,160 Local match/contribution
General General 123,770 -
Special Revenue State Grant Fund - 123,770 Local match/contribution
General General 29,174 -
Special Revenue Pitt Transit - 29,174 Local match/contribution
General General 36,350 -
Special Revenue Emergency Medical - 36,350 Local match/contribution
General General 6,544,123 -
Debt Service Debt Service - 6,544,123 Annual debt service requirement
General General 900,000 :
Capital Project Detention Center - 900,000 Local contribution
General General 100,000 -
Capital Project Community Schools - 100,000 Local contribution
§ 8418577 § 8,418,577
Special Revenue E911 $ 291,941 § -
General General - 291,941 NC Statute transfer requirement
Debt Service Debt Service 30,000 -
General General ) 30,000 Debt service in General Fund
$ 321,941 § 321,941
Special Revenue School Capital Reserve  $ 5,736,035 -
Debt Service Debt Service - 5,736,035 Debt Service - School Projects
Special Revenue School Capital Reserve 1,680,000 -
Capital Project Community Schools g 1,680,000 Local contribution
$ 7416,035 § 7.416,035
Capital Project Detention Center $ 375,000 $ -
Debt Service Debt Service - 375,000 Debt Service
$ 375,000 § 375,000
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

This section contains information on the Law Enforcement Officers’
(LEO) Special Separation Allowance and Other Post Employment
Benefits (OPEB) as required.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2008
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A B B-A A/B C (B-A)/C
12/31/2007  § 249,168 § 2,027,477 1,778,309 12.29% 5,555,672 32.01%
12/31/2006 245428 1,631,054 1,385,625 15.05% 4,944 974 28.02%
12/31/2005 231,994 1,422,064 1,190,070 16.31% 4,865,725 24.46%
12/31/2004 200,787 1,473,679 1,272,892 13.62% 4,342,204 29.31%
12/31/2003 192,049 1,230,828 1,038,779 15.60% 3,954,943 26.27%
12/31/2002 184,931 1,067,958 883,027 17.32% 3,695,054 23.90%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required Amount Percentage
Year Ended Contribution Contributed of ARC
June 30 (ARC) By Employer  Contributed
2008 $ 205,688 § 99,400 48.33%
2007 154,458 85,000 55.03%
2006 161,462 85,000 52.64%
2005 135,378 77,500 57.25%
2004 118,200 77,500 65.57%
2003 109,250 62,080 56.82%

Notes to the Required Schedules:
The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated.
Additional information as of the latest valuation follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return *
Projected salary increases *
Cost of living adjustments

*Includes inflation at 3.

75%

12/31/2007

Projected unit credit
Level percent of pay closed

23 years
Market value

7.25%
4.5-12.3%
N/A
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A B B-A A/B C (B-A)/C
12/31/2007  § - $ 47,859,702 § 47,859,702 0% $ 33,586,106 142.5%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required Amount Percentage
Year Ended Contribution Contributed of ARC
June 30 (ARC) By Employer Contributed
2008 $4,246,340 9.88%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated.

Additional information as of the latest valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return *
Medical cost trend rate

Year of Ultimate trend rate

12/31/2007

Projected unit credit
Level percent of pay open

30 years
Market value

4.00%

5% -11%
2016
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

This section contains additional information on taxes receivable, tax levy,
capital assets, the ten largest taxpayers and combining statements
information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE

JUNE 30, 2008

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year July 1, 2007 Additions and Credits June 30, 2008
2007-2008 $ - b 69,376,536 § 67,321,262 §$ 2,055,274
2006-2007 1,543,980 985,105 558,875
2005-2006 649,054 336,001 313,053
2004-2005 312,990 86,300 226,690
2003-2004 280,209 53,588 226,621
2002-2003 255,117 34,632 220,485
2001-2002 164,518 19,098 145,420
1999-2000 179,218 18,129 161,089
1998-1999 161,186 13,612 147,574
1997-1998 164,698 164,698 -
1996-1997 127,518 127,518 -
$ 3,838,488 § 69,376,536 $ 69,159,943 4,055,081
Less: allowance for uncollectible ad valorem taxes receivable (3,126,832)
3 928,249
Reconciling with revenues:
Taxes - ad valorem $ 67,597,323
Reconciling items:
Interest and Cost 531,481
Discounts allowed 64,949
Refunds 76,193
Amounts written off for tax years per statute of limitations 292,216
Miscellaneous tax adjustments 597,781
Total collections and credits $ 69,159,943
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Schedule A-2

PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
COUNTY-WIDE LEVY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total Levy
Property
excluding
County-Wide Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
Property taxed at current
year's rate $ 9,875822,190 071 $ 70,118,338 $ 62,378,230 $ 7,740,108
Penalties - 11,293 11,293 -
Total 9,875,822,190 70,129,631 62,389,523 7,740,108
Discoveries:
Current year taxes 142,923,391 0.71 1,014,756 1,014,756 -
Abatements (10,119,058) (312,781) (312,781) N/A
Total property valuation $ 10,008,626,523
Net levy 70,831,606 63,091,498 7,740,108
Less: Tax rate attributed to
Industrial Development Commission 0.015 (1,455,070) (1,455,070) -
Net levy to County 69,376,536 61,636,428 $ 7,740,108
Less: uncollected taxes at June 30, 2008 (2,055,273) (2,055,273) N/A
Current year's taxes collected $ 67,321,263 § 59,581,155 N/A
Percent current year collected 97.04% 96.67% N/A
Prior year collection percentage 95.96% 95.42%

Note: The Motor Vehicle Abatements and Accounts Receivable are not separable in the tax system
utilized in fiscal year ending June 30, 2008
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Secondary Market Disclosures

Assessed Valuation:

Assessment Ratio (1)

Real Property

Personal Property

Public Service Companies (2)
Total Assessed Valuation
Tax Rate per $100

Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements) (3)

88.06%

§ 7.450,655,025
2,568,090,556
108,434,679
10,127,180,260

0.71

$ 71,902,980

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levy by the County on behalf of

fire protection/rescue districts for the fiscal year ended June 30:

Fire Protection/Rescue Districts

(1) Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.

$ 3,373,372

(2) Valuation of railroads, telephone companies and other utilities as determined by the

North Carolina Property Tax Commission.
(3) The levy includes penalties.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Percentage
of Total
Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation
DSM Pharmaceuticals Manufacturing $ 232,695,026 2.30%
DSM Dyneema LLC Manufacturing 176,410,860 1.74%
Carolina Telephone Communications 62,000,000 0.61%
ASMO Manufacturing 58,271,795 0.58%
Weyerhaeuser Company Manufacturing 45,654,885 0.45%
Marelda Greenville Mall (Colonial) Mall 41,894,700 0.41%
NACCO Manufacturing 31,677,036 0.31%
Attends Healthcare Manufacturing 30,175,662 0.30%
Corridor Greenville (The Exchange) Apartments 28,487,163 0.28%
Maxine Speight Developer 26,428,751 0.26%
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Schedule A-5
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule C-1 Schedule A-7 Schedule D-1

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Fund Fund Total

Assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and
investments $ 1,933.951 § 3650 $ 1,682,258 §$ 3,619,859
Taxes receivable, net 353,052 - - 353,052
Accounts receivable, net 503,026 - - 503,026
Prepaid items 36,235 70,470 - 106,705
Cash and investments, restricted - - 279,562 279,562
Due from other funds 389,260 - 76,897 466,157
Due from other governments 1,967,444 - 50,000 2,017,444
Total assets $ 5,182968 § 74,120 § 2,088717 $ 7,345,805
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 309,252 % 11,718 § 161,173 § 482,143
Retainage payable - - 54,383 54,383
Due to other funds 419,601 - 76,897 496,498
Deferred revenues 530,166 - - 530,166
Total liabilities 1,259,019 11,718 292,453 1,563,190
Fund Balances:
Reserved by State statute 2,470,470 - 50,000 2,520,470
Reserved for prepaid items 36,235 70,470 - 106,705
Reserved for Winterville Rural Fire Dept. 104,814 - - 104,814
Unreserved 1,312,430 (8,068) 1,746,264 3,050,626
Total fund balances 3,923,949 62,402 1,796,264 5,782,615
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,182,968 § 74,120 § 2,088,717 § 7,345,805
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Sales and services

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current;

Public safety

Economic and physical development
Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal repayments

Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule A-6

Schedule C-2 Schedule A-7 Schedule D-2
Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Fund Fund Total

$ 3,363,313 § - - $ 3,363,313

6,587,587 - - 6,587,587

- 143,471 - 143,471

4,265,896 - 645,285 4911,181

2,655,453 - - 2,655,453

19,375 9,421 9,500 38,296

140,910 258,339 5,500 404,749

17,032,534 411,231 660,285 18,104,050

5,412,387 - - 5,412,387

2,964,087 - - 2,964,087

- - 2,745,996 2,745,996

189,612 7,146,891 - 7,336,503

- 5,895,300 - 5,895,300

8,566,086 13,042,191 2,745,996 24,354,273
8,466,448 (12,630,960) (2,085,711) (6,250,223)
875,070 12,655,159 2,680,000 16,210,229
(7,707,976) (30,000) (617) (7,738,593)
(6,832,906) 12,625,159 2,679,383 8,471,636

1,633,542 (5,801) 593,672 2,221,413
2,290,407 68,203 1,202,592 3,561,202

$ 3,923,949 § 62,402 § 1,796,264 $ 5,782,615
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Pitt Industrial Development Commission
Miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Debt service:

Principal payments - loans
Interest - loans

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer in - General Fund

Transfer in - Special Revenue Funds
Transfer in - Capital Project Funds
Transfer out - General
Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:

Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule A-7

Final Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under
$ 143,471 § 143,471 -
246,277 258,339 12,062
- 9,421 9,421
389,748 411,231 21,483
- 7,146,891 -
- 5,895,300 -
13,084,907 13,042,191 42,716
(12,695,159)  (12,630,960) 64,199
6,544,124 6,544,124 -
5,736,035 5,736,035 -
415,000 375,000 (40,000)
(30,000) (30,000) -
30,000 - (30,000)
12,695,159 12,625,159 (70,000)
$ = (5,801) § (5,801)
68,203
§ 62,402
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

e  General Fund
e  Special Revenue Funds

e  (apital Projects Funds

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income
determination.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required to be accounted for in other funds.

This fund receives the major portion of ad valorem tax revenue, local
option sales taxes, federal and state shared revenues, licenses, permits
and fees. The major operating activities include general government,
public safety and human services.

The fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Schedule B-1

PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page Lol4
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $§ 65384297 § 67,065842 $§ 1,681,545 $ 62,324,596
Penalties and interest 600,000 531,481 (68,519) 628,125
Total ad valorem taxes 65,984,297 67,597,323 1,613,026 62,952,721
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Occupancy tax 17,500 22,042 4,542 20,145
Local option sales taxes 22,634,305 23,072,982 438,677 22,304,132
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,555,000 1,558,951 3,951 1,514,071
Privilege licenses 2,000 10,004 8,004 9,981
Marriage licenses 26,762 25,920 (842) 25,627
Gross receipts tax 103,200 114,652 11,452 113,011
Total other taxes and licenses 24,338,767 24,804,551 465,784 23,986,967
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Alcohol, beer and wine tax 230,000 234,820 4,820 233,067
Pitt County ABC Board 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 900,000
Social Services fees and grants 382,500 399,039 16,539 367,958
Total unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,612,500 1,633,859 21,359 1,501,025
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Public Health fees and grants 4,979,921 5,097,168 117,247 4,642,089
Social Services fees and grants 19,426,210 18,912,496 (513,714) 18,722,737
Mental Health fees and grants 130,000 228,957 98,957 11,228,153
Jail fees 355,180 345,723 (9,457) 382,128
Automation E&P - Register of Deeds 100,000 98,165 (1,835) 107,304
Federal and State grants 28,800 108,183 79,383 77,498
Total restricted intergovernmental revenues 25,020,111 24,790,692 (229,419) 35,159,909
Permits and Fees:
Building permits and inspection fees 571,500 543,871 (27,629) 675,959
Register of Deeds 1,046,148 872,953 (173,193) 989,544
Excise stamps 949,122 821,613 (127,509) 864,196
Rabies control fees 35,000 31,061 (3,939) 36,740
Animal fees 54,625 81,384 26,759 62,157
Court facility fees 350,000 350,640 640 337,792
Total permits and fees 3,006,395 2,701,522 (304,873) 2,966,388
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Sales and Services:

Rents, concessions and fees

State and federal prison inmate reimbursement
Total sales and services

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous:
Sale of capital assets
Other income

Total miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General Government:

Governing board, county manager, legal, public
information officer

Finance, tax assessor, tax collector

Elections

Register of Deeds

Human resources

Print shop/mailroom, management information system,
geographic information system

Buildings and grounds, housekeeping
Nondepartmental - general administration

Total general government

Public Safety:

Sheriff's department, school security, other public safety
Detention center, jail inmate services, jail health services
Emergency services

Communications

Animal and mosquito control

Inspections

Medical examiner

Transportation

Court facility

Total public safety

Schedule B-1

Page 2 of 4
2008 2007
Variance

Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
4,092,864 4,450,503 357,639 3,979,217
1,381,610 1,149,290 (232,320) 1,430,733
5,474,474 5,599,793 125,319 5,409,950
1,931,500 1,952,192 20,692 2,152,472
30,000 24,539 (5,461) 35,317
534,224 633,062 98,838 1,129,851
564,224 657,601 93,377 1,165,168
127,932,268 129,737,533 1,805,265 135,294,600
1,765,781 1,715,178 50,603 1,778,423
3,105,901 3,040,279 65,622 2,838,236
696,061 672,161 23,900 489,718
889,350 820,306 69,044 883,318
570,732 553,459 17,273 510,929
2,582,376 2,475,836 106,540 2,060,099
2,984,954 2,816,404 168,550 2,637,303
2,239,485 2,130,630 108,855 1,985,782
14,834,640 14,224 253 610,387 13,183,808
10,823,181 10,579,800 243,381 9,734,403
10,071,044 9,750,612 320,432 9,003,751
861,858 831,104 30,754 673,595
1,033,914 967,099 66,815 853,207
486,148 490,914 (4,766) 453,262
368,403 366,969 1,434 339,840
95,000 77,700 17,300 89,500
4,500 4613 (113) 4,669
333,056 315,465 17,591 307,017
24,077,104 23,384,276 692,828 21,459,244
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Schedule B-1
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of 4

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Environmental Protection:
Other environmental protection 950 950 - 950
Soil and water conservation 241,615 230,465 11,150 245,702
Total environmental protection 242,565 231,415 11,150 246,652
Economic and Physical Development:
Planning and zoning 735,077 692,059 43,018 691,284
Permitting center 253,478 245,954 7,524 234,154
Other economic development 148,438 148,351 87 148,351
Engineering 207,616 205,138 2,478 201,453
Cooperative extension 360,966 379,268 (18,302) 368,769
Farmers' Market 37,806 32,916 4,890 31,740
Total economic and physical development 1,743,381 1,703,686 39,695 1,675,751
Human Services:
Other human services 229,720 225,962 3,758 222,440
Veterans affairs 107,093 108,238 (1,145) 91,660
Public Health:
Administration 2,142,613 1,959,519 183,094 1,712,526
Services and programs 7,448,469 6,761,030 687,439 6,117,698
Social Services:
Administration 1,401,821 1,359,915 41,906 1,214,911
Services and programs 20,707,449 20,080,996 626,453 19,323,701
Public assistance 13,994,856 13,584,703 410,153 12,292,718
Child support 2,031,261 1,987,477 43,784 1,849,118
Mental Health:
Administration - - - 771,498
Services and programs 2,611,469 2,601,113 10,356 10,768,531
Total human services 50,674,751 48,668,953 2,005,798 54,364,801
Education:
Pitt County schools 33,005,776 33,005,776 - 31,390,965
Pitt Community College 3,779,400 3,779,400 - 3,603,000
Total education 36,785,176 36,785,176 = 34,993,965
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Cultural and Recreation
Debt Service
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in (out):

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Project Funds
Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance:

Beginning of year - July 1
End of year - June 30

Schedule B-1

Page 4 of 4
2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
645,558 645,517 41 583,843
145,354 145,351 3 145,351
129,148,529 125,788,627 3,359,902 126,653,415
(1,216,261) 3,948,906 5,165,167 8.641,185
(1,017,629) (874,454) 143,175 (370,5%0)
291,941 291,941 - .
(6,544,123) (6,544,123) - (6,436,961)
30,000 30,000 - -
(1,000,000) (1,000,000) - (83,000)
9,456,072 - (9,456,072) -
1,216,261 (8,096,636) (9,312,897) (6,890,551)
3 - (4,147,730) § (4,147,730) 1,750,634
35,366,045 33615411
31,218,315 b 35,366,045
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL DEPARTMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government

Public safety

Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Human services

Education

Cultural and recreational

Debt service

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfers in (out)
Transfers in (out):

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Project Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule B-3 Schedule B-4 Schedule B-5
Public Social
General Health Services
Services Department Department
67,597,323 § = _
24,804,551 s -
1,234,820 = 399,039
453,906 5,097,168 18,912,496
2,449,047 - -
4,838,963 e 760,830
1,951,333 - -
593,339 - 64,262
103,923,282 5,097,168 20,136,627
14,224,253 = =
23,068,811 - -
231,415 - _
1,703,686 - -
334,200 8,720,549 37,013,091
36,785,176 - =
645,517 z =
145,351 . -
77,138,409 8,720,549 37,013,091
26,784 873 (3,623.381) (16,876,464)
(21,364,894) 3,512,083 17,252,811
(874,454) - -
291,941 - -
(6,544,123) - -
30,000 - -
(1,000,000) - -
(29,461,530) 3,512,083 17,252 811
(2,676,657) (111,298) 376,347
28,747,307 1,547,373 2,520,127
26,070,650 $ 1,436,075 § 2,896,474




Schedule B-2

Schedule B-6 Schedule B-7
Court Mental
Facility Health Combined
Department Department Total
- - § 67,597,323
- - 24,804,551
- - 1,633,859
- 228,957 24,692,527
350,640 - 2,799,687
- - 5,599,793
859 - 1,952,192
- - 657,601
351,499 228,957 129,737,533
= = 14,224,253
315,465 - 23,384,276
- - 231,415
- - 1,703,686
- 2,601,113 48,668,953
- - 36,785,176
- - 645,517
- - 145,351
315,465 2,601,113 125,788,627
36,034 (2,372,156) 3,948,906
- 600,000 -
- - (874,454)
- - 291,941
- - (6,544,123)
- - 30,000
- - (1,000,000
- 600,000 (8,096,636)
36,034 (1,772,156) (4,147.730)
27,606 2,523,632 35,366,045
63,640 751,476 § 31,218,315
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Schedule B-3
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 8

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $ 65384297 § 67,065842 § 1,681,545 $§ 62,324,596
Penalties and interest 600,000 531,481 (68,519) 628,125
Total ad valorem taxes 65,984,297 67,597,323 1,613,026 62,952,721
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Occupancy tax 17,500 22,042 4,542 20,145
Local options sales tax 22,634,305 23,072,982 438,677 22,304,132
Payment in lieu of tax 1,555,000 1,558,951 3,951 1,514,071
Privilege licenses 2,000 10,004 8,004 9,981
Marriage licenses 26,762 25,920 (842) 25,627
Gross receipts tax 103,200 114,652 11,452 113,011
Total other taxes and licenses 24,338,767 24,804,551 465,784 23,986,967
Unrestricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Alcohol, beer and wine tax 230,000 234,820 4,820 233,067
Pitt County ABC Board 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 900,000
Total unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 1,230,000 1,234,820 4,820 1,133,067
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenues:
Jail fees 355,180 345,723 (9,457) 382,128
Federal and State grants 28,800 108,183 79,383 77,498
Total restricted intergovernmental revenues 383,980 453,906 69,926 459,626
Permits and Fees:
Building permits and inspection fees 571,300 543,871 (27,629) 675,959
Register of Deeds 1,046,148 872,953 (173,195) 989,544
Excise stamps 949,122 821,613 (127,509) 864,196
Automation E&P - Register of Deeds 100,000 98,165 (1,835) 107,304
Rabies control fees 35,000 31,061 (3,939) 36,740
Animal fees 54,625 81,384 26,759 62,157
Total permits and fees 2,756,395 2,449,047 (307,348) 2,735,900
Sales and Services:
Rents, concessions and fees 3,337,113 3,689,673 352,560 3,291,601
State and federal prison inmate reimbursement 1,381,610 1,149,290 (232,320) 1,430,733
Total sales and services 4,718,723 4,838,963 120,240 4,722,334
Investment Earnings 1,930,000 1,951,333 21,333 2,151,053

Miscellaneous:
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Schedule B-3
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 2 of 8

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Sale of fixed assets 30,000 24,539 (5,461) 35,317
Other income 468 454 568,800 100,346 990,578
Total miscellaneous 498,454 593,339 94,885 1,025,895
Total revenues 101,840,616 103,923,282 2,082,666 99,167,563
Expenditures:
General Government:
Governing Body:
Salaries and employee benefits : 183,657 178,651 5,006 165,938
Operating expenses 41,150 43,642 (2,492) 37,554
Total governing body 224,807 222,293 2,514 203,492
County Manager:
Salaries and employee benefits 399,734 381,768 17,966 460,684
Operating expenses 34,325 37,262 (2,937) 31,886
Total county manager 434,059 419,030 15,029 492,570
Financial Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 726,033 724,963 1,070 613,221
Operating expenses 42,840 44,068 (1,228) 51,790
Total financial services 768,873 769,031 (158) 665,011
Tax Assessor:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,392,535 1,369,656 22,879 1,250,290
Operating expenses 366,463 360,236 6,227 422,828
Total tax assessor 1,758,998 1,729,892 29,106 1,673,118
Tax Collector:
Salaries and employee benefits 503,930 497,771 6,159 461,668
Operating expenses 74,100 43,585 30,515 38,439
Total tax collector 578,030 541,356 36,674 500,107
Legal:
Salaries and employee benefits 790,414 740,586 49,828 739,215
Operating expenses 78,825 109,182 (30,357) 94,659
Total legal 869,239 849,768 19,471 833,874
Elections:
Salaries and employee benefits 401,518 391,574 9,944 324,080
Operating expenses 294,543 280,587 13,956 165,638
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total elections

Register of Deeds:
Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses

Total Register of Deeds

Public Information Office:
Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses

Total public information office

Human Resources:

Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses

Total human resources

Print Shop / Mail Room:

Salaries and employee benefits

Operating expenses

Reimbursement from other departments/funds

Total print shop / mail room

Management Information Systems:

Salaries and employee benefits

Operating expenses

Capital outlay

Reimbursement from other departments/funds

Total management information systems

Geographical Information Systems:
Salaries and employee benefits

Operating expenses

Capital outlay

Reimbursement from other departments/funds

Total geographical information systems

Buildings and Grounds:
Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses

Capital outlay
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2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

696,061 672,161 23,900 489,718
627,345 579,704 47,641 584,460
262,005 240,602 21,403 298,858
889,350 820,306 69,044 883,318
128,448 114,805 13,643 111,861
109,228 109,282 (54) 136,626
237,676 224,087 13,589 248,487
530,093 520,426 9,667 470,461
40,639 33,033 7,606 40,468
570,732 553,459 17,273 510,929
116,184 113,066 3,118 106,803
67,850 60,892 6,958 64,009

(58,000) (43,064) (14,936) (47,325)
126,034 130,894 (4,860) 123,487
2,047,566 1,995,458 52,108 1,850,962
936,325 932,023 4,302 916,023
60,000 59,129 871 55,541

(961,130) (962,179) 1,049 (1,185,951)
2,082,761 2,024,431 58,330 1,636,575
261,031 255,395 5,636 220,979
187,550 173,918 13,632 186,682
45,000 46,235 (1,235) 44,649

(120,000) (155,037) 35,037 (152,273)
373,581 320,511 53,070 300,037
1,165,124 1,027,640 137,484 989,424
1,304,330 1,261,172 43,158 1,294,213
193,500 195,786 (2,286) 42,554
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 4 of 8

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Total buildings and grounds 2,662,954 2,484,598 178,356 2,326,191
Housekeeping:
Operating expenses 322,000 331,806 (9,806) 311,112
General Government Nonallocated Expenditures:
Other employee insurance and benefits 740,746 717,991 22,755 556,157
Professional services 132,700 132,090 610 123,201
Insurance and bonding 718,000 633,546 84,454 680,728
Quasi-external workers compensation 500,000 500,000 - 485,000
Miscellaneous items 148,039 147,003 1,036 140,696
Total general government nonallocated expenditures 2,239,485 2,130,630 108,855 1,985,782
Total general government 14,834,640 14,224,253 610,387 13,183,808
Public Safety:
Sheriff:
Salaries and employee benefits 8,287,918 8,138,421 149,497 7,293,952
Operating expenses 1,409,669 1,324,262 85,407 1,282,793
Capital outlay 214,000 198,966 15,034 407,859
Total sheriff 9,911,587 9,661,649 249,938 8,984,604
Detention Center:
Salaries and employee benefits 6,763,075 6,636,112 126,963 5,932,207
Operating expenses 1,969,318 1,879,891 89,427 1,750,926
Capital outlay - - - 16,296

8,732,393 8,516,003 216,390 7,699.429
Jail Health Services:
Salaries and benefits 1,135,897 1,114,260 21,637 1,073,929
Operating expenses 157,200 74,799 82,401 188,523
Total jail health services 1,293,087 1,189,059 104,038 1,262,452
Jail Inmate Coordinator:
Salaries and benefits 45,554 45,550 4 41,870
School Security:
Salaries and benefits 630,734 620,511 10,223 581,667
Operating expenses 21,860 21,450 410 18,996
Total school security 652,594 641,961 10,633 600,663

Emergency Services:
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Total emergency services

Communications:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total communications

Animal and Mosquito Control:

Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Inspections:

Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenses

Total inspections

Medical Examiner:
Professional services

Other Public Safety:
Operating expenses

Transportation:
Operating expenses

Total public safety

Environmental Protection:

Other Environmental Protection:

Contracts / grants

Pitt Soil and Water Conservation:

Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses

Total public soil and water conservation
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2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
414,208 418,617 (4,409) 273,037
447,650 412,487 35,163 400,558
861,858 831,104 30,754 673,595
924,249 864,422 59,827 801,042
105,555 98,567 6,988 52,165
4,110 4,110 . -
1,033,914 967,099 66,815 853,207
344,703 347,461 (2,758) 319,409
141,445 143,453 (2,008) 118,583
- . - 15,270
486,148 490,914 (4,766) 453,262
325,903 326,478 (575) 302,278
42,500 40,491 2,009 37,562
368,403 366,969 1,434 339,840
95,000 77,700 17,300 89,500
259,000 276,190 (17,190) 234,133
4,500 4,613 (113) 4,669
23,744,048 23,068,811 675,237 21,237,224
950 950 - 950
221,688 213,415 8,273 226,978
19,927 17,050 2,877 18,724
241,615 230,465 11,150 245,702
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 6 of 8

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Total environmental protection 242,565 231,415 11,150 246,652
Economic and Physical Development:
Planning and Zoning:
Salaries and employee benefits 575,227 579,164 (3,937) 558,214
Operating expenses 156,850 110,011 46,839 133,070
Capital outlay 3,000 2,884 116 -
Total planning and zoning 735,077 692,059 43,018 691,284
Permitting Center:
Salaries and benefits 159,378 154,388 4,990 142,186
Operating expenses 94, 100 91 ,566 2,5 34 91,968
Total permitting center 253,478 245,954 7,524 234,154
Other Economic Development:
Operating expenses 148,438 148,351 87 148,351
Engineering:
Salaries and employee benefits 197,670 195,910 1,760 177,369
Operating expenses 9,946 9,228 718 24,084
Total engineering 207,616 205,138 2,478 201,453
Cooperative Extension:
Operating expenses 128,489 128,177 312 124,686
Professional services 232,477 251,091 (18,614) 244,083
Total cooperative extension 360,966 379,268 (18,302) 368,769
Farmers' Market:
Salaries and employee benefits 30,506 26,797 3,709 24,609
Professional services 7,300 6,119 1,181 7.131
Total farmers' market 37,806 32,916 4,890 31,740
Total economic and physical development 1,743,381 1,703,686 39,695 1,675,751
Human Services:
Other human services 229,720 225,962 3,758 222440
Veterans affairs 107,093 108,238 (1,145) 91,660
Total human services 336,813 334,200 2,613 314,100
Education:
Pitt County Schools:
Current 32,255,776 32,255,776 - 30,640,965
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Capital outlay
Total Pitt County schools

Pitt Community College:
Current

Capital outlay
Total Pitt Community College

Total education

Cultural and Recreational:
Cultural - contracts/grants
Recreational - contracts/grants
Libraries - contracts/grants

Total cultural and recreational

Debt Service:
Principal repayments
Interest and fees
Total debt service

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund Transfers In (Out):
Public Health from General Fund
DSS from General Fund

Mental Health

Total intrafund transfers in (out)

Operating Transfers In (Out):
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Project Funds

Total operating transfers in (out)

Budgetary Financing Sources (Uses):
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2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
750,000 750,000 - 750,000
33,005,776 33,005,776 - 31,390,965
3,704,400 3,704,400 - 3,528,000
75,000 75,000 - 75,000
3,779,400 3,779,400 - 3,603,000
36,785,176 36,785,176 - 34,993,965
90,500 90,189 311 64,476
25,000 25,000 - 25,000
530,058 530,328 (270) 494,367
645,558 645,517 41 583,843
129,899 134,249 (4,350) 129,672
15,455 11,102 4,353 15,679
145,354 145,351 3 145,351
78,477,535 77,138,409 1,339,126 72,380,694
23,363,081 26,784,873 3,421,792 26,786,869
(3,810,806) (3,512,083) 298,723 (3,128,504)
(17,479,633) (17,252,811) 226,822 (15,543,996)
(600,000) (600,000) - (1,394,588)
(21,890,439) (21,364,894) 525,545 (20,067,088)
(1,017,629) (874,454) 143,175 (884,077)
291,941 291,941 - 598,484
(6,544,123) (6,544,123) - (6,261,961)
30,000 30,000 - =
(1,000,000) (1,000,000) - (83,000)
(8,239.811) (8,096,636) 143,175 (6,630,554)
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of's
GENERAL FUND - GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Appropriated fund balance - General Fund 6,767,169 - (6.767,169) =
Total budgetary financing sources (uses) 6,767,169 - (6,767,169) =

(23,363,081)  (29,461,530) (6,098,449)  (26,697,642)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance 3 - § (2,676,657) $§ (2,676,657) $ 89,227
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 3

GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental revenues:

Administration $ 34430 $ 99,963 § 65,533 § 67,831
Environmental health 213,200 225,770 12,570 236,868
Food and lodging 10,000 10,419 419 10,679
Tuberculosis 34,886 32,566 (2,320) 36,149
Tuberculosis CDC 59,936 44,758 (15,178) 39,416
Adolescent pregnancy grants 6,000 5,843 (157) 21,767
Healthy Start 155,647 143,967 (11,680) 144,825
Cardiovascular health 150,000 108,755 (41,245) 137,550
Smart Start 132,087 134,970 2,883 133,159
Adult health 10,100 12,397 2,297 9,614
Health promotion 69,089 69,310 221 38,555
AIDS 75,552 72,725 (2,827) 58,380
Epilepsy 19,438 17,321 (2,117) 20,646
Breast/cervical cancer prevention 20,580 24,990 4,410 21,928
Communicable disease 222,206 168,640 (53,566) 148,219
Community transition coordination 44,000 44 000 - 44,000
Infant mortality 50,000 50,000 - 49,294
Child health 190,995 181,663 (9,332) 242,864
Maternal health 660,325 599,579 (60,746) 728,217
Family planning 388,030 445,396 57,366 445,760
Maternity care coordination 296,800 467,686 170,886 348,519
Child services coordination 278,056 376,955 98,899 274,192
WIC administration 86,605 53,405 (33,200) 13,569
WIC nutrition 240,665 236,605 (4,060) 207,758
WIC breastfeeding 20,528 22,888 2,360 17,145
WIC client services 360,531 359,130 (1,401) 318,685
Immunization action plan 40,970 39,400 (1,570) 45,603
Mobile dental unit 176,960 169,660 (7,300) 101,137
Emergency planning - HD 142,814 126,071 (16,743) 109,273
In home breastfeeding 43,459 40,103 (3,356) 35,631
Bioterrorism team 406,925 353,481 (53,444) 382,754
DHHS Funds 85,813 69,030 (16,783) 99,290
WIC Peer Counseling 14,477 10,805 (3,672) 12,070
Public Health Ready 238,817 278,917 40,100 40,742

Total revenues 4,979,921 5,097,168 117,247 4,642,089
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Expenditures:

Administration

Environmental health

Food and lodging

Vector Control Program
Tuberculosis

Tuberculosis CDC

Adolescent pregnancy prevention
Healthy Start

Cardiovascular health

Smart Start

Adult health

Health promotion

AIDS

Drugs and vaccines
Breast/cervical cancer prevention
Communicable disease

Community transition coordination

Infant mortality

Child health

Maternal health

Family planning

Maternity care coordination
Child services coordination
WIC administration

WIC nutrition

WIC breastfeeding

WIC client services
Immunization action plan
Mobile dental unit

ABCD project grant
Emergency planning - HD
In home breastfeeding
Bioterrorism team

DHHS funds

WIC Peer Counseling
Public Health Ready

BT team special projects
Private well water program
BT team pandemic flu
HIV STD NTT

Total expenditures
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2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
2,142,613 1,959,519 183,094 1,712,526
1,173,686 1,117,289 56,397 1,062,782
14,800 16,112 (1,312) 13,575
118,210 50,129 68,081 -
86,495 80,944 5,551 85,181
73,149 68,410 4,739 57,398
6,000 5,843 157 20,762
155,647 154,380 1,267 143,797
152,085 101,882 50,203 132,955
134,727 133,003 1,724 134,878
29,486 23,308 6,178 33,352
199,740 187,714 12,026 157,407
312,246 301,440 10,806 257,908
19,438 17,974 1,464 21,753
41,035 34,133 6,902 38,333
440,134 329,175 110,959 265,179
62,100 63,727 (1,627 59,010
66,629 63,484 3,145 56,478
305,867 287,667 18,200 271,929
785,237 750,658 34,579 695,534
679,576 569,983 109,593 569,402
296,052 280,314 15,738 311,455
408,854 406,428 2,426 334,037
87,577 79,873 7,704 22,683
246,605 256,208 (9,603) 235,324
20,078 5,828 14,250 3,587
364,006 330,975 33,031 313,313
69,244 61,535 7,709 65,161
193,916 138,680 55,236 114,928
48,463 48,175 288 -
111,246 105,547 - 69,862
43,459 38,835 - 35,042
412,205 408,772 3,433 385,488
85,813 68,281 17,532 100,277
14,477 11,616 2,861 12,161
63,839 60,600 3,239 36,767
46,358 38,677 7,681 -
40,000 27,721 12,279 -
22,357 18,917 3,440 -
17,633 16,793 840 -
9,591,082 8,720,549 860,210 7,830,224
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA Fage 3ol 3
GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,611,161) (3,623,381) 987,780 (3,188,135)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfer from General Fund 3,810,806 3,512,083 (298,723) 3,128,504
Appropriated fund balance 800,355 = (800,355) =
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,611,161 3,512,083 (1,099,078) 3,128,504
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 (111,298) $ (111,298) $ (59,631)
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - SOCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Fees and grants $ 382,500 $ 399,039 $ 16,539 § 367,958
Restricted intergovernmental revenues: :
Fees and grants 19,426,210 18,912,496 (513,714) 18,722,737
Sales and services 755,751 760,830 5,079 751,654
Miscellaneous 65,770 64,262 (1,508) 85,235
Total revenues 20,630,231 20,136,627 (493,604) 19,927,584
Expenditures:
Social services administration 1,401,821 1,359,915 41,906 1,214,911
Other administration expenses 1,162,479 1,090,962 71,517 1,064,555
Regular services administration 4,544,424 4,491,777 52,647 4,171,766
Purchased services 8,394,859 8,279,574 115,285 8,275,128
Public assistance programs 13,994,856 13,584,703 410,153 12,292,718
Long-term screening 110,500 76,236 34,264 87,256
General assistance 117,750 108,263 9,487 128,343
Title IV D child support 2,031,261 1,987,477 43,784 1,849,118
Workfirst 2,030,888 1,904,995 125,893 1,776,853
Income maintenance administration 3,589,807 3,478,424 111,383 3,232,644
Energy programs 453,453 360,618 92,835 291,773
Purchased services HCCBG 303,289 290,147 13,142 295,383
Total expenditures 38,135,387 37,013,091 1,122,296 34,680,448
Revenues over (under) expenditures (17,505,156)  (16,876,464) 628,692 (14,752 ,864)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfer in - General Fund 17,479,633 17,252,811 (226,822) 15,543,996
Appropriated fund balance 25,523 - (25,523) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 17,505,156 17,252,811 (252,345) 15,543,996
Net change in fund balance $ = 376,347 § 376,347 § 791,132
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Schedule B-6
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - COURT FACILITY DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Permits and fees:
Court facility fees $ 350,000 $ 350,640 % 640 $ 337,792
Investment earnings 1,500 859 (641) 1,419
Total revenues 351,500 351,499 (1) 339,211
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Salaries and employee benefits 53,076 53,050 - 49,547
Operating expenses 279,980 262,415 - 257,470
Total expenditures 333,056 315,465 17,591 307.017
Revenues over (under) expenditures 18,444 36,034 17,590 32,194
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfer - Debt Service Fund - - - (175,000)
Appropriated fund balance (18.444) - 18,444 =
Total other financing sources (uses) (18.444) - 18,444 (175,000)

Net change in fund balance 3 - $ 36,034 § 36,034 §  (142,806)
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND - MENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Schedule B-7

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
General agency - administration $ 130,000 $ 228957 $ 98,957 % 8.644,001
Residential contracts - - - 255,610
Adolescent outreach = - - 7.560
DD wait list - - - 1,198,093
Adult DD contracts - - - 208,710
Child DD contracts - 5 - 46,062
MRMI contracts - - - 21,815
Psychological rehabilitation - - - 30
Adult MH/SA general - - - 686
Child SA contracts - - - 305,081
Adult SA contracts - - - 280,217
Adult MH contracts - ) = 260,288
Total revenues 130,000 228,957 98,957 11,228,153
Expenditures:
Mental Health area director - - - 571,687
QI regulatory compliance - - - 169,577
Administrative services = - - 199811
General agency 860,200 849,844 10,356 2,242,224
Contribution to ECBH 1,751,269 1,751,269 - -
Provider relations = - - 6,649
Residential contracts - - - 151,696
DD wait list S = - 7,509,116
Adult DD contracts - - - 152,248
Care management - - - 374,291
Child SA contracts - - - 162,663
Adult MH contracts : . s 67
Total expenditures 2,611,469 2,601,113 10,356 11,540,029
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,481,469) (2,372,156) 109,313 (311,876)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Intrafund transfer in - General Fund 600,000 600,000 - 1,394,588
Appropriated fund balance 1,881,469 5 (1,881,469) 5
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,481,469 600,000 (1.881,469) 1,394,588
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (1,772,156) §  (1,772,156) % 1,082,712
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specified revenue
sources that are legally restricted to be expended for specific purposes.
These funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

The following comprise the County’s Special Revenue Funds:

e School Capital Reserve Fund — Accounts for the accumulation of
resources to be used for the construction and renovation of Pitt
County Schools.

e  County Capital Reserve Fund — Accounts for the accumulation of
resources to be used for construction of educational facilities.

e State & Federal Asset Forfeiture Fund — Accounts for the funds
appropriated from seizure/forfeiture cases and restricted for the
Sheriff’s use.

¢ CDBG Fund — Accounts for proceeds of a multi-year Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) to improve substandard housing.

e State Grants Fund — Accounts for special purpose grant funding.

e Pitt Area Transit Fund — Accounts used to operate the County
transportation system.

e Industrial Development Building Reserve Fund — Accounts for
the accumulation of resources to be used for future capital
improvements.

s Fire Districts Fund — Approved by voter referendum to provide
additional funds for capital improvements to ensure better fire
protection.

e EMS District Fund — Accounts for the funds used to operate the
County’s Emergency Medical Services.

¢ FE911 Surcharge Fund - Established to account for the
accumulation of telephone surcharge fees used to maintain the
County’s E911 Center.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
Schedule C-3 Schedule C-4  Schedule C-5  Schedule C-6 Schedule C-7
School County State/Federal State
Capital Capital Forfeiture CDBG Grants
Reserve Reserve Fund Fund Fund
Assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and
investments $ 1,444,936 $ 70§ 136,773 § - % -
Taxes receivable, net - - - - -
Accounts receivable, net - - - - -
Prepaid items - - - - 504
Intrafund due to/from other funds - - - - -
Due from other governments 1,002,434 645,392 - 28,833 290,785
Total assets $ 2447370 $ 645462 § 136,773 $ 28,833 § 291,289
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 8 - § - % 164 $ 216,284
Due to other funds - - - 28,029 13,692
Deferred revenues - - - - -
Total liabilities - = = 28,193 229976
Fund Balances (Deficit) 2,447,370 645,462 136,773 640 61,313
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 2447370 $ 645462 § 136,773 $ 28,833 § 291,289
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Schedule C-1

Schedule C-8 Schedule C-9 Schedule C-10  Schedule C-11 Schedule C-12

Pitt Area Industrial Fire EMS E911
Transit Development Districts District Surcharge
Fund Building Fund Fund Fund Total

- % 53,811 § 140,620 $ - 8 157,741 § 1,933,951
- - 150,826 202,226 - 353,052
60,076 - - 372,834 70,116 503,026
- - - 35,731 - 36,235
- - - - 389,260 389,260
= - - - - 1,967,444
60,076 § 53,811 § 291,446 3 610,791 §$ 617,117 § 5,182,968
28,372 § - 5 35803 § 28,311 § 318 % 309,252
92,746 - - 256,325 28,809 419,601
6,505 - 150,827 372,834 - 530,166
127,623 - 186,630 657,470 29,127 1,259,019
(67,547) 53,811 104,816 (46,679) 587,990 3,923,949
60,076 $ 53,811 § 291,446 $ 610,791 § 617,117 § 5,182,968
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses

Restricted intergovernmental revenues

Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety

Economic and physical development

Debt service

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt obligation issued

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Schedule C-3 Schedule C-4 Schedule C-5 Schedule C-6 Schedule C-7
School County State/Federal State
Capital Capital Forfeiture CDBG Grants
Reserve Reserve Fund Fund Fund

$ - $ -3 - 3 - § -
5,942,125 645,462 - - -
1,556,385 - 98,719 190,219 1,821,032

- - 375 - -

- - - - 70,084

7,498,510 645,462 99,094 190,219 1,891,116

- - 23,583 - -

- - - 190,155 1,982,638

- - 23,583 190,155 1,982,638
7,498,510 645,462 75511 64 (91,522)
685,776 - - s 123,770
(7,416,035) - - - -
(6,730,259) - - - 123,770
768,251 645,462 75,511 64 32,248
1,679,119 - 61,262 576 29,065

$ 2,447370 § 645,462 § 136,773  § 640 §$ 61,313
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Schedule C-8 Schedule C-9 Schedule C-10  Schedule C-11  Schedule C-12
Pitt Area Industrial Fire EMS E911
Transit Development Districts District Surcharge
Fund Building Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - % -3 1,347,846 § 2,015,467 $ - % 3,363,313
- - - - - 6,587,587
599,541 - - - - 4,265,896
91,924 - - 1,865,828 697,701 2,655,453
- - - - 19,000 19,375
- 40,818 30,008 - - 140,910
691,465 40,818 1,377,854 3,881,295 716,701 17,032,534
- - 1,347,845 3,423,132 617,827 5,412,387
791,294 - - - - 2,964,087
- - - 189,612 - 189,612
791,294 - 1,347,845 3,612,744 617,827 8,566,086
(99,829) 40,818 30,009 268,551 98,874 8,466,448
29,174 - - 36,350 - 875,070
- - - - (291,941) (7,707,976)
29,174 - - 36,350 (291,941) (6,832,906)
(70,655) 40,818 30,009 304,901 (193,067) 1,633,542
3,108 12,993 74,807 (351,580) 781,057 2,290,407
(67,547) $ 53,811 § 104,816 $ (46,679) $ 587,990 § 3,923,949
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Schedule C-3
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Other taxes and licenses § 5,859,650 $§ 5,942,125 § 82,475 § 5,858,193
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 1,556,385 1,556,385 - 1,462,000
Total revenues 7,416,035 7,498,510 82,475 7,320,193
Revenues over expenditures 7,416,035 7,498,510 82,475 7,320,193
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer out - Debt Service Fund (5,736,035) (5,736,035) - (5,566,007)
Transfer in - School Capital Project Fund 822,207 685,776 (136,431) -
Transfer out - School Capital Project Fund (2,152,344) (1,680,000) 472,344 (725,000)
Fund balance appropriated (349,863) - 349,863 -
Total other financing sources (uses) (7,416,035) (6,730,259) 685,776 (6,291,007)
Net change in fund balance 3 - 768,251 §$ 768,251 $§ 1,029,186
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 1,679,119
End of year - June 30 $ 2,447,370
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Schedule C-4
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 3 - % - 3 - 8 11,949
Local option sales tax - Article 46 - 645,462 645,462 -
Total revenues - 645,462 645,462 11,949
Revenues over expenditures . 645,462 645,462 11,949
Net change in fund balances b - 645,462 § 645,462 § 11,949
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 2
End of year - June 30 $ 645,462
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Schedule C-5
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATE/FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
Federal asset seizure funds $ 36,572 § 36,571 $ (1 3 -
State/federal excise tax 55,629 62,148 6,519 85,431
Investment earnings - 375 375 27
Total revenues 92,201 99,094 6,893 85,458
Expenditures:
Public safety 153,454 23,583 129,871 71,727
Revenues over (under) expenditures (61,253) 13,511 136,764 13,731
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated fund balance 61,253 - (61,253) 2
Total other financing sources (uses) 61,253 : (61,253) g
Net change in fund balance 5 - 75,511  § 75,511  § 13,731
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 61,262
End of year - June 30 b 136,773
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Schedule C-6
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CDBG SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year To Date
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
Federal grants $ 1,000,000 $ 600,000 $ 190,219 % 790,219
Expenditures:
CDBG other 3,500 - - -
CDBG 2005-2006 600,000 501,207 - 501,207
CDBG 2007 - 2008 400,000 101,717 190,155 291,872
Economic development 1,003,500 602,924 190,155 793,079
Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,500) (2,924) 64 (2,860)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 3,500 3,500 - 3,500
Net change in fund balance $ - § 576 § 64 § 640
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Schedule C-7
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATE GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
State grants $ 33,930,809 § 1,821,032 § (32,109,777) $ 1,821,085
Investment earnings - - - 69
Miscellaneous 110,977 70,084 (40,893) 3,842
Total revenues 34,041,786 1,891,116 (32,150,670) 1,824,996
Expenditures:
Economic and physical development:
Salaries and benefits 600,382 410,589 189,793 376,269
Operating expenses 33,618,826 1,572,049 32,046,777 1,227,419
Total expenditures 34,219,208 1,982,638 32,236,570 1,603,688
Revenues over (under) expenditures (177,422) (91,522) 85,900 221,308
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 129,898 123,770 (6,128) 24,496
Appropriated fund balance 47,524 - (47,524) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 177,422 123,770 (53,652) 24,496
Net change in fund balance $ - 32,248 § 32,248 $ 245,804
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 _ 29,065
End of year - June 30 $ 61,313
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

PITT AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule C-8

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Sales and services

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Economic and physical development:
PATS Board

RGP Grant

DOT Administrative Grant
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

129

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
by 840,515 § 599,541 § (240,974) $ 153,444
64,211 91,924 27,713 78,034
904,726 691,465 (213,261) 231,478
. - - 78,034
- - - 96,285
933,900 791,294 142,606 71,024
933,900 791,294 142,606 245,343
(29,174) (99,829) (70,655) (13,865)
29,174 29,174 - 16,974
29,174 29,174 - 16,974
$ - (70,655) § (70,655) § 3,109
3,108
5 @5



PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BUILDING RESERVE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule C-9

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues:
Investment earnings

Expenditures:
General construction

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

$ - § - 8 663

- - 1,000,000
- - (999,337)

40,818 40,818 -

40,818 40,818 -
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40,818 § 40,818 §  (999,337)
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Schedule C-10
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

FIRE DISTRICTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes § 1,334,322 $§ 1,347,846 $ 13,524  § 1,243,632
Miscellaneous - 30,008 30,008 -
Total revenues 1,334,322 1,377,854 43,532 1,243,632
Expenditures:
Public safety 1,334,322 1,347,845 (13,523) 1,228,168
Net change in fund balance 5 - 30,009 $ 30,009 $ 15,464
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 74,807
End of year - June 30 $ 104,816
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

EMS DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule C-11

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Transport fees

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Public safety

Debt service
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

132

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
1,962,700 $ 2,015,467 $ 52,767 § 1,967,412
1,639,140 1,865,828 226,688 1,478,015
3,601,840 3,881,295 279,455 3,445,427
3,448,592 3,423,132 25,460 3,304,942
189,598 189,612 (14) 165,909
3,638,190 3,612,744 25,446 3,470,851
(36,350) 268,551 304,901 (25,424)
36,350 36,350 - 757,268
36,350 36,350 - 757,268
h - 304,901 § 304,901 § 731,844
(351,580)
$ (46,679)



Schedule C-12
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

E911 SURCHARGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
Sales and services - user fees $ 490,000 § 255,051 § (234,949) $ 477,787
Sales and services - wireless fees 181,335 442 650 261,315 281,499
Investment earnings - 19,000 19,000 462
Total revenues 671,335 716,701 45,366 759,748
Expenditures:
Public safety:
E911 operations 514,831 454,696 60,135 447,798
Wireless operations 181,335 163,131 18,204 200,437
Total expenditures 696,166 617,827 78,339 648,235
Revenues over (under) expenditures (24,831) 98,874 123,705 111,513
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out (291,941) (291,941) - -
Contingency 316,772 - (316,772) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 24,831 (291,941) (316,772) -
Net change in fund balance $ - (193,067) § (193,067) $ 111,513
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 781,057
End of year - June 30 $ 587,990
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. The capital projects shown
in the accompanying supplementary information are adopted for the
life of the project.

The following comprise the County’s Capital Projects Funds:

Pitt Community College (PCC) Building Capital Project —
Established to account for funds used in construction of new
facilities on the community college campus.

Detention Center Capital Project — Established to account for
funds used in the design and construction of either a jail
expansion or new facility.

Pitt Community College (PCC) Capital Project - Established to
account for funds used in establishing the infrastructure needs on
the Bowen Farm campus, renovate the Humber Building and
establish local match for state bond funds.

2004 COPS Education Capital Project — Established to account
for funds used in the construction of a new middle school.

2007 COPS Education Capital Project — Established to
account for funds used in the construction of a new elementary
school and four school additions.

Community Schools and Recreation Capital Project -
Accounts for funds appropriated to construct the Community
Schools and Recreation Facility on County Home Road.

ECTC Building Capital Project — Accounts for funds
appropriated to construct a new facility on a community college
campus.

School Improvement Projects — Established to account for
funds appropriated from local funds on a pay as you go basis
over a period of five years to renovate and construct new school
facilities.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
Schedule D-3 Schedule D-5 Schedule D-6
Pitt Community
PCC College 2004 COPS
Building (Bowen Farm) Education
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 3 - $ 1,120,157 $
Cash and investments, restricted 279,562 -
Due from other funds - 76,897
Total assets $ 279,562 § 1,197,054 §

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ - 3 -3
Due to other funds - -
Retainage payable - &

Total liabilities = =

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Undesignated 279,562 1,197,054

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 279,562 § 1,197,054 §
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Schedule D-8

Schedule D-9

Schedule D-10

Schedule D-1

Community
Schools and School
Recreation ECTC Building Improvement
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project Totals
$ 77,269 § - 3 484,832 1,682,258
- - - 279,562
- - - 76,897
$ 127,269 § - 3 484,832 2,088,717
b 3,050 § - 8 158,123 161,173
- 76,897 - 76,897
41,376 - 13,007 54,383
44,426 76,897 171,130 292,453
82,843 (76,897) 313,702 1,796,264
$ 127,269 § - % 484,832 2,088,717
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Schedule D-3 Schedule D-5

Schedule D-6

Pitt Community
PCC College 2004 COPS
Building (Bowen Farm) Education
Capital Project Capital Project Capital Project
Revenues:
Investment earnings 3 - 8 - -
Restricted intergovernmental revenue S = -
Miscellaneous £ & :
Total revenues g % =
Expenditures:
Capital outlay Z = 229,067
Revenues over (under) expenditures - = (229,067)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in - 900,000 -
Transfers out - - (617)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 900,000 (617)
Net change in fund balances - 900,000 (229,684)
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 279,562 297,054 229,684
End of year - June 30 $ 279,562 § 1,197,054 -
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Schedule D-2

Schedule D-8 Schedule D-9 Schedule D-10

Community
Schools and School
Recreation ECTC Building Improvement
Capital Project  Capital Project Capital Project Totals
§ 9,500 § - § - 3 9,500
645,285 - - 645,285
5,500 - - 5,500
660,285 - - 660,285
927,644 6,246 1,583,039 2,745,996
(267,359) (6,246) (1,583,039) (2,085,711)
100,000 - 1,680,000 2,680,000
- - - (617)
100,000 - 1,680,000 2,679,383
(167,359) (6,246) 96,961 593,672
250,202 (70,651) 216,741 1,202,592
82,843 § (76,897) $ 313,702 § 1,796,264
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Schedule D-3
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

PITT COMMUNITY COLLEGE (PCC) BUILDING CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date
Revenues:
Investment earnings 469,617 521,699 - 3 521,699
Easement proceeds 31,383 31,205 - 31,205
Total revenues 501,000 552,904 - 552,904
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Bond issue costs 124,833 127,049 - 127,049
Modular units 44,978 44,978 - 44 978
Interest expense 166,454 166,454 - 166,454
Land 2,069,645 2,069,645 - 2,069,645
General construction 8,610,780 8,581,669 - 8,581,669
Total expenditures 11,016,690 10,989,795 - 10,989,795
Revenues over (under) expenditures (10,515,690) (10,436,391) ) (10,436,891)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt obligation issued 10,591,950 10,591,951 - 10,591,951
Transfers in 124,502 124,502 - 124,502
Contingency (200,762) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,515,690 10,716,453 5 10,716,453
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 279,562 § - 3 279,562

Note: The expenditures of this project are not accounted for in Construction in Progress.
The project is not constructing an asset the County will own.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DETENTION CENTER CAPITAL PROJECT - MAJOR FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:
Investment earnings
Local contribution

Sales tax refund
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
General construction
Professional fees
Debt issuance costs
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Debt obligation issued

Premium received from issuance of debt
Transfers out

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Schedule D-4

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date
- % - 368,177 §$ 368,177
465,000 - 100,000 100,000
450,000 - - -
915,000 = 468,177 468,177
19,085,000 1,350,835 10,394,571 11,745,406
2,000,000 1,326,856 233,757 1,560,613
500,000 - 418,365 418,365
21,585,000 2,677,691 11,046,693 13,724,384
(20,670,000) (2,677,691) (10,578,516) (13,256,207)
20,885,000 - 19,855,000 19,855,000
- - 381,491 381,491
(415,000) - (375,000) (375,000)
200,000 200,000 - 200,000
20,670,000 200,000 19,861,491 20,061,491
- 5 (2,477,691) § 9,282975 § 6,805,284

Note: This project was capitalized as a Capital Asset under the category of Construction in Progress.
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Schedule D-5
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

PITT COMMUNITY COLLEGE (PCC) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - BOWEN FARM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date

Expenditures:

Capital outlay:

General construction $ 5,062,391 $ 3,865,338 $ - % 3,865,338
Total expenditures 5,062,391 3,865,338 - 3,865,338
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 5,062,391 4,162,392 900,000 5,062,392
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,062,391 4,162,392 900,000 5,062,392
Net change in fund balance $ - % 297,054 § 900,000 § 1,197,054

Note: The expenditures of this project are not accounted for in Construction in Progress.
The project is not constructing an asset the County will own.
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

2004 COPS EDUCATION PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues:

Sales tax refund

Restricted intergovernmental
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Capital outlay:
Computer equipment
Gymnasium upgrades
Auditorium renovation
Athletic upgrades
Maintenance

Chicod Elementary
Creekside Elementary
Hope Middle School
Wintergreen Intermediate School
DH Conley

Science labs

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Debt obligation issued

Retirement of bridge loan - land purchase
Transfer out - Debt Service,early retirement
Transfer out - Courthouse project

Interest expense

Issuance fees

Premium received from issuance of debt
Transfers in (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Note: Hope and Chicod projects are the only facilities owned by the County. Those projects

Schedule D-6

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date
8 - 3 763,291 - % 763,291
3,675,643 2,026,694 - 2,026,694
- 242,328 - 242,328
3,675,643 3,032,313 - 3,032,313
771,696 - 229,067 229,067
- 696,010 - 696,010
- 1,679,044 - 1,679,044
- 1,487,385 - 1,487,385
- 3,000 - 3,000
43,041,072 3,038,707 - 3,038,707
- 8,576,531 - 8,576,531
- 13,749,427 - 13,749,427
- 3,093,458 - 3,093,458
- 3,345,173 - 3,345,173
- 36,931 - 36,931
43,812,768 35,705,666 229,067 35,934,733
(40,137,125) (32,673,353) (229,067) (32,902,420)
49,460,000 49,460,000 - 49,460,000
- (6,950,000) - (6,950,000)
- (11,675,000) - (11,675,000)
- (282,125) - (282,125)
- (57,470) - (57,470)
(1,030,265) (784,540) - (784,540)
1,404,595 321,172 - 327,172
3,337,344 2,865,000 (617) 2,864,383
53,171,674 32,903,037 (617) 32,902,420
$ 13,034,549 § 229,684 § (229,684) $ =

were capitalized in 2006. Remainder of activity is not accounted for as Construction in Progress.

Project was closed in 2008.

143



Schedule D-7
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

2007 COPS EDUCATION PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECT - MAJOR FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date
Revenues:
Sales tax refund $ - 8 - 8 96,813 § 96,813
Investment income - 270,255 783,932 1,054,187
Total revenues - 270,255 880,745 1,151,000
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Ayden Elementary 4,080,000 460,997 3,527,511 3,988,508
Ridgewood Elementary 15,425,000 2,994,497 11,963,157 14,957,654
North Pitt 4,230,000 521,959 3,470,878 3,992,837
Farmville Middle School 1,955,000 944,031 822,113 1,766,144
JH Rose 3,331,000 1,427,374 1,601,358 3,028,732
Computer equipment 350,000 - 347,160 347,160
Issuance fees 955,000 910,578 - 910,578
Total expenditures 30,326,000 7,259,436 21,732,177 28,991,613
Revenues over (under) expenditures (30,326,000) (6,989,181) (20,851,432) (27,840,613)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt obligation issued 31,503,241 29,117,808 - 20,117,808
Premium received from issuance of debt - 1,863,940 - 1,863,940
Contingency (1,177,241) 5 5 :
Total other financing sources (uses) 30,326,000 30,981,748 5 30,981,748
Net change in fund balance $ - § 23992,567 §  (20,851,432) § 3,141,135

Note: Ridgewood Elementary and JH Rose projects are the only facilities owned by the County.
The activity in those were capitalized as Construction in Progress. The remainder of the projects
are for properties not owned by the County and will not be reported as Construction in Progress.
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Schedule D-8
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS AND RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 850,000 §$ 56,977 $ 645,285 §$ 702,262
Investment earnings - - 9,500 9,500
Miscellaneous revenue 211,000 175,045 5,500 180,545
Total revenues 1,061,000 232,022 660,285 892,307

Expenditures:

Capital outlay:

General construction 1,250,000 1,213,062 - 1,213,062

Site development 610,324 3,233 407,090 410,323
Athletic fields and recreation area 480,000 - 489,605 489,605

Professional fees 91,032 65,525 30,949 96,474

Total expenditures 2,431,356 1,281,820 927,644 2,209,464
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,370,356) (1,049,798) (267,359) (1,317,157)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,400,000 1,300,000 100,000 1,400,000
Contingency (29,644) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,370,356 1,300,000 100,000 1,400,000
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 250,202 3 (167,359) $ 82,843

Note: This project was capitalized as a Capital Asset in 2006. The remainder of the
project is for improvements and will not be capitalized as Construction in Progress.
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Schedule D-9
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ECTC BUILDING - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Actual
Project Prior Current Total To
Authorization Years Year Date
Revenues:
Sales tax refund $ - 3 9,053 § - 3 9,053
Investment earnings 20,449 20,854 - 20,854
Miscellaneous revenue 95,743 28,000 - 28,000
State share revenue - 1,465 - 1,465
Other intergovernmental revenues - 451,599 - 451,599
Federal and other grants 400,000 800,000 - 800,000
Total revenues 516,192 1,310,971 - 1,310,971
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
General construction 2,091,014 2,056,232 6,246 2,062,478
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,574,822) (745,261) (6,246) (751,507)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt obligation issued 384,278 375,000 - 375,000
Transfers in 1,190,544 299,610 - 299,610
Total other financing sources (out) 1,574,822 674,610 R 674,610
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 (70,651) $ (6,246) $ (76,897)

Note: Phase I of this project constructed a Capital Asset of $1,020,843 that has been added to buildings.
Phase 11 expenditures was capitalized as a Capital Asset under the category of Construction in Progress.
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Schedule D-10
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Annual Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Transportation upgrades 3 385,000 $ 381,166 $ 3,834
Gymnasium upgrades 53,000 28,336 24,664
General construction 400,774 228,681 172,093
Plumbing 250,000 244,630 5,370
Electrical 167,000 158,445 8,555
Roofing 615,966 541,781 74,185
Towers, tanks, and wells 25,000 : 25,000
Total expenditures 1,896,740 1,583,039 313,701
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,680,000 1,680,000 -
Fund balance appropriated 216,740 : (216,740)
Total other financing sources (out) 1,896,740 1,680,000 (216,740)
Net change in fund balance $ - 96,961 $ 96,961
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 216,741
End of year - June 30 $ 313,702

Note: The expenditures of this project are not accounted for in Construction in Progress.
The project is not constructing any assets the County will own.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

¢ Enterprise Funds

e Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net
income, financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted
accounting principles used here are those applicable to similar businesses
in the private sector.
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ENTERPRISE FUND

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for solid waste operations in Pitt
County that are financed through user charges.
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Schedule E-1
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ENTERPRISE FUND - SOLID WASTE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

2008 2007
Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual
Revenues:
User charges 5 7122153 & Si7is15 % 49362 $ 7441760
Investment earnings 50,000 28,499 (21,501) 400
Other 435,945 679,587 243,642 475,033
Total revenues 7,608,098 7,879,601 271,503 7,917,193
Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 989,348 919,690 - 847,488
Supplies and materials 414,350 444 290 - 357,534
Contract labor and other services 1,172,000 1,498,833 - 1,083,196
Contracted services - waste disposal 4,540,000 4,541,375 - 4,276,784
Hurricane clean up - 159,573 - -
Capital outlay 250,000 67,992 - 277,744
Principal repayment on long-term debt 200,000 200,000 - 200,000
Interest expense 42,400 42,400 - 52,900
Total expenditures 7,608,098 7,874,153 (266,055 7,095,646
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - 8 5448 § 5448 8§ 821,547
Reconciliation from Modified Accrual Basis to Full Accrual Basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses $ 5,448 $ 821,547
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay items capitalized 67,992 277,744
Gain (loss) from sale of capital assets - (5,369)
Depreciation (168,024) (156,589)
Change in closure and postclosure costs accrual 60,000 60,000
Principal payments on long-term debt 200,000 200,000
Change in net assets b 165416 § 1,197333
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods
and services provided by the County Garage Fund, Employee Medical
Insurance Fund, and Workers’ Compensation Fund on a cost
reimbursement basis.
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Schedule F-1
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
Employee
County Medical Workers'
Garage Insurance Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 134,639 § 1,126,071 § 494,745 $ 1,755,455
Accounts receivable 2,768 - - 2,768
Inventories 2,511 - = 2,511
Tota] current assets 139,918 1,126,071 494,745 1,760,734
Total assets $ 139918 $ 1,126071 § 494745 $ 1,760,734
Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 84,290 % 615,000 % 5250 § 704,540
Fund Equity:
Net assets 55,628 511,071 489,495 1,056,194
Total fund equity $ 55,628 § 511,071  $ 489,495 § 1,056,194
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Schedule F-2
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Employee
County Medical Worlkers'
Garage Insurance Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
Operating Revenues:
User charges $ 749,494 § 710,392 % (87,371) $ 1,372,515
Interfund services charges - 6,079,935 515,000 6,594,935
Total operating revenues 749,494 6,790,327 427.629 7,967,450
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 29,879 - - 29,879
Equipment maintenance 703,648 - - 703,648
Medical claims costs - 6,804,455 - 6,804,455
Claims reimbursement - - 207,950 207,950
Total operating expenses 133,921 6,804,455 207,950 7,745,932
Operating income (loss) 15,967 (14,128) 219,679 221,518
Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment earnings - 12,111 9,502 21,613
Change in net assets 15,967 (2,017) 229,181 243,131
Net Assets:
Beginning of year - July 1 39,661 513,088 260,314 813,063
End of year - June 30 $ 55628 § 511,071 $ 489495 § 1,056,194
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers

Cash received from interfund services
Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activites:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in prepaids

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

and accrued expenses

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Schedule F-3

Employee
County Medical Workers'
Garage Insurance Compensation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 753,121 % 710,392 § (87,371) § 1,376,142
- 6,079,935 515,000 6,594,935
(623,798) (6,863,800) (202,614) (7,690,212)
(133,635) - - (133.,635)
(4,312) (73.473) 225,015 147,230
- 12,111 9,502 21,613
(4,312) (61,362) 234,517 168,843
138,951 1,187,433 260,228 1,586,612
A 134,639 § 1,126,071 $ 494,745 §  1,755455
$ 15,967 § (14,128) $ 219,679 3 221,518
3,627 - - 3,627
% - 127 127
(23,906) (59.,345) 5,209 (78,042)
3 (4.312) % (73,473) $ 225,015 $ 147,230
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
COUNTY GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Operating Revenues:
User charges
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits
Equipment maintenance

Total operating expenses

Change in net assets
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Variance
Plan Actual Over/Under

667,792 § 749494 §$ 81,702

667,792 749,494 81,702
29,692 29,879 (187)
638,100 703,648 (65,548)
667,792 733,527 (65,735)

- 15967 § 15,967




Schedule F-5
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

EMPLOYEE MEDICAL INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance

Plan Actual Over/Under
Operating Revenues:
User charges $ 476,000 $ 710,392 § -
Interfund services charges 6,391,045 6,079,935 =
Total operating revenues 6,867,045 6,790,327 (76,718)
Operating Expenses:
Medical claims costs 6,607,045 6,804,455 (197,410
Operating income (loss) 260,000 (14,128) (274,128)
Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment earnings - 12,111 12,111
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Contingency (260,000) - 260,000

Change in net assets $ - 3 (2,017) $ (2,017)
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PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
PLAN AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Operating Revenues:
User charges

Interfund services charges
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Claims reimbursement

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment earnings

Change in net assets
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Variance
Plan Actual Over/Under

- $ (87,371) $ -
515,000 515,000 -
515,000 427,629 (87,371)
515,000 207,950 307,050

- 219,679 219,679

- 9,502 9,502

- 8 229,181 § 229,181




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds serve primarily as clearing mechanisms for cash
resources which are collected by a governmental unit, held as such for a
brief period, and then distributed to authorized recipients.

The following comprise the County’s Agency Funds:

Social Services, Sheriff and Mental Health Fund — This fund
accounts for assets held by the County for private individuals that
are received through these agencies to be expended for these
individuals.

Tax Collections Held for Municipalities Fund — This fund
accounts for tax levies collected on behalf of other local
governments.

3%Interest Payable to the State — This fund accounts for
collections that are remitted to the State to fund the new state-wide
vehicle tax collection system.

Flexible Benefit Plan Fund — This fund accounts for assets held for
the County’s flexible benefit plan provided for employees.
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Schedule G-1
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CARQOLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Tax
Social Services, Collections
Sheriff, and Held for 3% Interest Flexible

Mental Health Municipalities Payable Benefit Plan

Agency Funds Agency Fund to State Agency Fund Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 242,576 $ 134,287 § 8,820 § 15,053 § 400,736
Liabilities:
Deposits held in custody for others $ 242,576 % 134,287 § 8,820 % - 5 385,683
Deferred compensation benefits payable = - E 15,053 15,053
Total liabilities $ 242,576 $ 134,287 § 8,820 $§ 15053 § 400,736
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Schedule G-2
PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Tax
Social Services, Collections
Sheriff, and Held for 3% Interest Flexible

Mental Health Municipalities Payable Benefit Plan

Agency Funds Agency Fund to State Agency Fund Total
Assets, beginning of year $ 298,521 § 170,811 § 8,713 § 16,462 § 494,507
Additions 1,612,478 27,075,101 118,338 170,698 28,976,615
Deductions (1,668,423) (27,111,625) (118,231) (172,107) (29,070,386)
Assets, end of year $ 242,576 § 134,287 $ 8,820 $ 15,053 $ 400,736
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III. STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section includes unaudited schedules showing relevant
information on Pitt County presented in the following five categories:

Financial Trend Data — Tables 1-4

These tables contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Data — Tables 5-8
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source — the

property tax.

Debt Capacity Data — Tables 9-12

These tables present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information — Tables 13-14

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the
government’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information — Tables 15-17

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the government’s
financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

Where possible and relevant, ten years of data is included as extracted
from current and prior years’ financial reports and other supplemental
information relevant to the County. The data is rounded to significant
digits to more clearly illustrate existing trends.

The information presented in this section does not provide full and
adequate disclosure of financial information for prior years required by
generally accepted accounting principles. Such information is provided
for supplementary analysis purposes and should be relied on only for the
purpose specified.

167



FALKIAND

GRIMESIAND

WINTESVALLE

i

168



8/¥'958'9¢ ¢ /62'699'Ly ¢ 8c8'06F'8F ¢ 200'8LL°86 ¢ G£/'GRZ'GS  $ 9€G'88.'8G
GG/'08l .2 £0.'828'62 ¥2¥'9EE 9 /1€£'926'8¢ €L1'EEG'eE 22£'798'0F
ZL¥'soe €68 111 1¥9'819 920'0L¥ #85'899 119'29¥
LLE'DLE'S ¢ Jeg'eet'LL $ 18L'GL¥'LL ¢ 659'182'8L ¢ 8/6'€60'LET $ LES'COVLL
GyL'OpS L ¢ 62E'18E°L ¢ 966'c8L ¢ (gsg£'6/1) $ LeL'ole ¢ zzs'Lzl
(re8'cz9) (082'689) (886'¥£9°L) (zes'e68'L) (zes'sse'L) (Lge'erL'L)
6.G'0LL'C ¢ 609'0L0'2 ¢ v96'818'L $ ¥5e'eTLL ¢ €89'69%'L $ 6/8'%9T'L
£€.'60€'6E ¢ 996'/82'0F ¢ Z99'00e'@y ¢ 08E'€SE'9S ¢ +09'G80'6S  $ ¥1L0°L99'6S
68508 LT 186'L16'08 ZLV'L16'LE 670'G28'0F G2L'Z61'¥E 6.9'G00'2P
Ziv'soe €6e'LLL 1¥9'8/9 920'0LY #85'899 119'29%
2EL'661'L ¢ 829'250'6 $ £08'959'6 $ S0e'gs0°LL  $ G6Z'vZo'6l  $ 859'86L'9lL
8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002
lea) |eosid

| alqeL

S]9SSE Jau Juswulanoh Alewud ejo]

palousalun

pajolsay

10ep pele|al Jo }ou ‘sjasse [ended ul pajsenu|
Juawulanob Aewlld

sallanoe adAl-ssauisng [ejo |

pajousalun
109p paleal Jo 18U ‘sjasse |[euded ul pajsanu|
saljAoe adA)-ssauisng

S]9SSE 18U SalllAloe [eluawuIaA0b [e1o ]

palouIsalun

pelolsay

192p palejal 1o 1au ‘sjasse [eyded ul paisaay|
SOIlIAIDE |B]JUSWILLIBAOL)

(Bununoooe jo siseq [BNIOJE)
sieaj |easl4 XIS 1seT]
‘Jusuodwon Aq s}assy 19N
fyunod 1md

169



199'2/9°L yEV'0T6'T = = 7

61.'86 yGe'LLL 85e'Ls ¥10'v9 = L6E'6

09/2'692 = 8L0'0EL'L = = =

Z67'075'61 8v8'sle'0e 196'/5L'CY ¥96'v¥6'SE . :

Lpe'izZ 980'86 019'L6 aglL'eL = =

95.'88. 296'€62 LL1'€92 G12'129'T 885'686'1 L¥E'6EL'E

Le0'e8Z 008'S2 008'6Z 00Z'2e 9gl'ie =

- - = = S8¥'s52 162'7L

£00°€2 FAVA 2> S6'e B - -

69'199'G StO'peL'e 006'2Z}'S 98g'LLL'S SLL'006'8E 1£6'986'LE

¥£0'Z61 JzL'sog y8e'ere Le6'/8L = £

5z8'e s¥e'e gL0'e 5£9'2 ¥90'r1L 000'592

0ZL'v8y's 09.'251'8 806'162'L 0EE'€09'L z55'265'Y £10'208't

GzL'ovL'Yy $ 2ze'ess's ¢ eov'sal'y & 9eZ'06S'y § 9£9'LL'9 ¢ €0lL'6lEL & $ $ $

196'PSE'S9L ¢ PSLZev ol ¢ LLZEc0t9l ¢ B8/6'6LE6FL $ co0'SvE'eEl ¢ POS0Lv'ZElL & LGL'9lO'erl  $ BLL'8L0'8WL  $ GLL'0BLWLL  § vALEZY'O0L

SeLpLLL 098'61L'9 906'L16'9 LZL'ZL0°L 998'18¢'9 061'646'9

z8.'0¥9'/51 ¥62'20L'LGL LLE'SLL'PSL 1G8'/¥Z'erl  9E1'995°ZEl vIE'L6Y'SEL 16.'810'eY L 8//'8/0'8¥) S.1'08L'FLL ¥/1'22¥'901

00.'1€6'9 0SL'E0L'S s - - = =

- = = - : = 9c2'LLe'LE l6lL'BEV'LE S¥S'veL'0L Z0.'220'9L

= - $08'9.6'% Z8y'95S' £04'50Z'¥ 8/2'829't L€2'16L'6 LLL'ols's 868'Zel'e 29p'955'L

¥#0'6€9' LY £65'8€.'8Y 06L'910'L€ L0V'6.9'9E 628'68Y'SE 1£9'Z9t'08 660'186'6Z zelL'oes've 108'6G6'LE 281'661'02

L15'Gh9 £78'e85 Z89'/6Y 191'505 2e8'L6F 652'685 G0Z'e8% 000'08S $98'9F5 S0T'TLS

G0.'/86'8Y 68.'20L'%S G80'GEL'L9 Z60'088'85 095'516'%S ¥22'695'L5 £5€'Z18'95 98£'968 75 £80°21G'9% £91'c19'6E

6Ll'8ve ¥ov'sye 69F'y ¥25'80¢ zae'ele SHG'ovt 120'6eZ 156'9L2 89/'602 ¥56'L61

ZZL'vEs'y 065'951'S Z8l'vle'e GLB'GEE'Y SOE'VLL'Y G9L'Le'Y Gl6'LEL') 60L'eLe't 512'2L0'2 Z55'2v6

08z'L¥L'0E S0V '¥or'LE 958'ZLE'se 11G'08S'€T 218'215'22 £/1'€20'02 GEQ'6L0'LL 85%'09.'9L 298'6¥0'vL gee'LLE'TL

Gez'LLL'8lL $ vog'lol'sk ¢ L¥6'280'9L & 669'10S'€l ¢ 852°29S'Th ¢ esY0ty'EL  § 9s8'0vi'0L  § VEZ'LE6'S $ 6£1'906'6 $ 119'090'6
8002 1002 9002 5002 ¥00Z £00¢ 2002 1002 0002 6661

lea ) |edsid

zZ algeL

juswdojaaap [eroAyd B olwouoo]
fizges olangd
:suonnquiuoo pue sjuelb [ende)

uopeonpy

uofpealoal pue [einyny

S8oIA8g UBWNY

uojjosjold [ejusWUCIAUT

juswdojaasp |eaisAyd 1§ olwouooy

S80IAISS |B[00S

Ayages olgnd

juswiulanob [elauss)
:suoinquiuoo pue sjuelb Bunjessdp

uoljeanp3
uolEaI0al pue [einyng
$82|AJ8S UBWNH
uoposjoud [ejuswUCIAUT
juswdojaasp [eoishyd g olwouoo]
S90IAISS [BID0S
fiajes algnd
¢ JuaWwulaAch [elaussy
:se0lAIas Joj sabieyn
SBIHAIJOE [BJUBWUIBAOS)
sanuaaay welboid

¢ sosuadxe juswulanob Aewpd (eo]

BISEMA PIIOS
:salnoe adAy-ssauisng

saljiAloe [ejuswUIaA0B ejo |
1g8p wis) Buo| uo jsaisu)
Aepno [ended
201A195 1920
uoneanp3
uoljealdal pue [eimny
$80IAI9S UBWNH
uojoslo.d |ejuswUoliAUTg
juswdojaaep [eoisiyd B olWouoo3
S30IAISS [BIOOS
Aajes olgnd
¢ juswulanoh |e1susn
'SBNIAIIOR [BJUBWUIBACD)
sasuadx3y

(Buunoode Jo SISeq [enJode)
sieap |eosi4 uaj jseq
‘sjassy JaN ul sabueyn
Aunog nid

170



(889'710'6) ¢ (oog'tze's) ¢ (s/1'z89'6) ¢ ciz'zes'z & (Los'zer'e) ¢ (zse'spe'v) ¢ (soe'ces'or) ¢ (egv'vov'sy) ¢ (PLL'Zoo'e?) ¢ (eeZ'see'se) $ swuieact Aewud [gjo |
9L¥'sel £ee'l61'L v/2'66€ (z1g'see) 609'88 (zoz'19) 2 0 0 0 saljiAloe adAl-ssauisng
(roL'081'6) ¢ (ece'glo's) ¢ (sps'ovo'ol) ¢ szi'loz'e ¢ (oLv'ies'e) ¢ (ses'uzsz'v) ¢ (soe'ees'or) ¢ (czv'vov'sr) § (b2L'Z90'cZ) ¢ (e6Z'sce'se) $ SONIAOE [BJUSWILLIBAOS)
S§loSSY JoN Ul wm:mzo
1e'L9/'v0L ¢ /ElL'oge'sé  $ 29.'809°18 ¢ 6E5'9€6'88 $ 8be'v9s'csl & 6¥P'905'29 & ZSe'PeL'96 $ 6Se'vlo'es  § LoO'eLL'Le  § Le8'es0’l.  $ JuswuisAab Arewud (ejo |
66¥'8¢ 00¥ 06 (¥4 90l 80E E 0 0 0 senianoe adAj-sseuisng [Bjo |
oow - - = siejsuel]
- - 06 LLE 901 60€ Snoaue||aosiy
867'92 = 2 2 - - sBuiuies juswysanu]
:sanngoe adAy-sseuisng
8LE'€EL V0L L£1'SEE'86 1/9'809'18 891 '9€6'88 ZyL'voR'el 0%1'805'29 258'v81'96 GSE'Y19'86 100'8L2'L6 188'€80"L L 'saljiAloR [BjUSILIBA0E [Bl0 |
- (g0L'995'21) - % (z60°19) sja@sse |ejideo jo |esodsip Uo S50
0lZ'volL'e 168'/¥9'C 108'¥50'C 990'0L5'L 9r8'908 0.t'e9L 64.'8€9'S 15.'629' #81'568'¢ 016'e80't SjUBL}SBAU] UO paLIEea jsalaly|
6¥8'252°L 052'€89°L Z86'v18'L = 2 : zl9'Lsl'sy £89'215'05 L08'v9z o Ze9'vr9'oe B} JByjo pue sexe) Jo nal| Ul juslAed
695'099'62 GZe'Z9L '8z £9/'sev'9e 1¥9'6£9'92 G62'292'ET 19€'882'02 TLV'266') 618'628'L £/9'969'L 16S'0LZ'L xe} s8|es uoldo [e00]
069'651'0Z $ L22'M¥8'69  $ LEL'6L0'P9 $ L9¥'98L'09 & LOO'SEL'6F $ GBE'L0G'9F ¢ 62Z6'LOBEF ¢ B60THY'LY  $ eEE'I9B'6E  $ ITvi'vRO'OY sexe} Apadoid

'SIJIAIOE [BJUSWIUIBAOD)
s)}assy J9N ul sabueyn 18yj}Q puUe S3NUBA3Y [BIUSL)

(505'924'eL 1)

$ (LeL'ss1'soL) ¢ (gve'sez'Lle) ¢ (9ze'vs0'9s)

$ (6v0'LsE'LL)

$ (9ev'/s8'Ls) $ (252'8L0'e¥)) $ (824'8L0'8PL)

$ (521'082'%L1) § (P2L'T2P'00L) § uadxa) jau juswuiesob Aewnd jejo |

L16'9EL
(zev'sL'cll)

£E6'96L'L
$ (0£9'vS5e'901L)

¥8e'65¢ (eg8'58¢g)
$ (9zz'ss9'L6) $ (cvb'899'ss)

£05'88
$ (zss'si'Ll)

(115"19) = 0
§ (sze'ses'Ls) $ (252'8L0'epl) & (822'8L0'8bl)

0 0
$ (521'082'%LL) $ (P2L'22P'90L) §

saljAnoe adA)-ssauisng
SBIIAIJOE [BJUSWILIBADL)
anuaaay/(esuadx3) 1N

Zov'8Ls'Ls $ LLy'voz'es $ GlZ2'lel'69 ¢ TEO'S9Z'E9 § €66'065'19  § 8Z0'80L09 § - $0 $0 $ 0 ¢ aJ weiboud Juswiwieroh Aewud |ejo)
zoL'L58's £6.'916'2 061'02'L BEZ'989'0 B9E'0.Y'D 6.5'Z1L0'L - 0 0 0 a1 weiBoud sapinoe adAl-ssauisng [ejo
- - - - SOL'¥6l S0Z'ZhL 3)SBAA PICS - SUCHNQUIUOD pue sjuesb |ende)
zoL'Lse’L £6L'916'L 06l'LL2'L 8£Z'989'9 ¥99°6/2'9 ¥.£'0.2'9 21SBAA PIIOS - Se0IAIaS 10) aBley)
‘sanAnoe adAl-ssauisng
09E'/Z.'EV YZIIVE'LS 580'09¥'29 VI¥'6.5'95 #8502} G5 677 G69 EG - 0 0 0 21 weJBoid saniAjoe [ejusluuIBA0E |Ejo |
= = oye'ele’L 18L'LEE 80¥'60L°2 £9/'909 S90|AI8S |BID0S
¥2s'LE - - - uonealoal pue [ehng
ze0'128'L 000'2oF'L 5 ] = uoneonp3g
8002 L002 9002 5002 002 £002 2002 1002 0002 6661

1ea) |eos|d

171



PEO'TES'S ) $ 0.0'6/8'%C $ 066'98€'¢ $ EL6'TEB'S $ SP6'LTLSE § SEB'69F'9 $ G60'LTL'0) $0 $0 $0 §
BLY'6rL'E S18'S6Y'TC - . E = Z = z =
poz'ors't % SLL'L95' S6Z'VI8'Y 180'12F'7)L ZEZY'LP9'E 0F5'SLE'9 2 - .
(g90'8) Ten'y ziT'es LZ5'v9 Lzz've 859'L8 00L'gh 2 - s
0EP'ZTLE'L LLV'ISE 856'vT 5 - 690°'LE8 908'G85'E - . =
686'LEL'T 95/'680' SPO'LLL'L 180'7¥6 1£9'042'1 98.'6.6'L 679'ELZ - & -
¥18'v0L £L6'€L 0Z'veE £ L - - - - -
= 62¢'9Z5 190'Sky 866'PLE 0ET'PiY OPT'LLE 626'/81 . - g
502'90L 09L'e2 8ZZ'IE 8E5'9Y 58¥'LE S56'1E - - - -
0/¥'025'C $ PBS'SOV'L 3 ZSHHZ'L $ 195'zes $ 916'vZ8 $ 585'9E9'L $ ozL'se g - g - g - $
sie'sig'ie $ S¥0'99E'sE $ GBE'GLO'EE $ 501'262'eE $ 06V'ETI'EE $ BSP'BYO'TY $ z6L'L00'8K § PrO'rLY'LS $ 858'529'vr § gll'alv'le $§
990'£88'L) 9g9'508'2L 0L6'GL0'8} Z0E'1Eg'gl 6v9'500°02 vLL'186'2T €19'09L'1E 152'vee'oe $L0'259'2E gg8'sLy'LZ
= = = = = 000'058 000'619 000'048 2 =
Zry'oer's +¥0'8E0'2 202'896'Y LLo'008's £59'899') 00€'e64'04 $19'820'6 $8Z'989'9 L9Z'Lp0'Y 8/8'1EL'T
L08'pre'S 51e'2Zs'0L €L2'115'0} z6.'088°0} 286'8r7'8 yae'sly’s S9L'ESLL Z00'€89'L £25'926'L ziv'592'L
Lp6'16T ® C % = D - 2 % Z
000'05¥ 69Z'1L2'T % = - . = -4 = *
965°002 $26'061 98G'EET 820'G5} PSE'pPSe LEP'ISE S62'9F = = 2
818'szl 125'691 00681 8Z1'SL L8'2s ¥06'89 8.7'08L £80'592Z £88'882 £82'08Z
05¥'942'L $ 1§5'088'2 $ llg'spliol $ 9£9'0£9'0} $ g9L'lzl'e $ 6¥0'86L'L $ 26E£'9Z6'0 $ BLB'LLY'L $ 0v9'LE9'L $ 061'686'0 $
8002 1002 3002 5002 002 £002 z002 1002 0002 661
Jeaj |ed

£ ajgel

spuny [ejuswWuIaAcB Jayjo e [ejoL

sjoafcud |eydes o) pajeubisag
Spuny anusAsl [e1Rads 1810 Iy
puny jsnJy xej Aouednooo wooy
spun yoalold |enden
pun4 sa1nag jgeq
spund anuaaal [ejoadg
(yoyep)/pajeubisapun
paalasalun
paniasal |ejo]
ELITNELBFla]

suonesadQ |16 SSajaIM
sway pledald
amels alels
10} pamiasay
Spun4 [BJUBWILIBADS) 13O IV

pund [esausg [g10L

pajeubisapun
(HW) punjey ¥SL [enusiod Joj pejeubisaq
sainjpuadxa s Jeaf Juanbasqns ioj pejeubisaq
panasaun
paAJasal [BJ0L
sainjipuadxa JUsWeDIojUS ME| BINN4
uieaH [ejusiy Jo4
spaa jo Jejsibay Jo4
salnypuadxe | }5-3 peJim aining
sainyipuadxa | 16-3 sselalm aimny
swa)| pledald
a)nEls 21eYS
110} panasay
pun4 [ejauag)

(Bununoooe Jo SISEq [ENJIDOE payipow)
siea ) [eosi4 ual jse]

spun4 [ejustiuiancs 'seauejeg pund
funod nid

172



%Z1'0 %€9'8 %818 %96°L %L0'8 %EZ'8 %Z0'8 %00°0 %000 %000
(02L'L¥L'Y) LoL'zye'ee $ (961'905°2) $ 686'65¢ S Iy0'9ze $ (b60'GLZ'0L) S (ZSE'0LE'FL)  § SE9'E98'L $ 089'8LL'6 S ¥2e'LrL'8l
(9£9'960'8) 8v.'186'0E 200'zZer'e SZL'ZEV 000'L50'8 000049 951'242'8 (r12'082) 052's12 0€9'189'9
- 000'69€'65 » & * - * ~ - .
- (z61'z52'}) * » > m S 2 2 -
= (000's66'82) - - - - 5 - . R
= 0v6'e98’t 200'2Zr'e (000'629'L1) 2 000'0L9 (rpa'z9e'y) - - -
= 2 = e & e 000012 e = =
B = < 000051 000'090'8 = 000'52H'8 . # =
Lp6'lze 8LG'L19'E) 181'VEI'EL 60F'L68'SZ 90F'elg'al 08E'S8Z'E} 2SEPLL'GL (888'295'8) (666'88.'8) BL9'E0L'9
(LL5'8L¥'8) (826'219'€1) (L82've9'cl) (pez'ope'cl) (90¥'919'9L) (0gg's8z'el) (zge'vL1'GL) vL1'282'8 6YZ'¥00'6 LG6'LLS
906'8¥6'S (Ly0'6EL'L) # (86L'8z6'01)  # (9g1'EL) # (eg6'0EL’L) # (b60'5Z8'04)  # (801'685'22)  # 6YE'PRL'S # 0£p'€06'8 # $6L09%'L1L
129'884'5Z} 6L'8LG'65L 002260491 Zre yes'erl 055'89.'LEL 882'26Z 0E} 151'810'EV} 850'651'80} GBE'600'F0L 112'280'G8
ZoL'LL Z98'LP9'¥ 22E'000'S Ly Lov'y 102'60Z'v 8.2'829't AN IR 0 0 0
BYZ'vEL EOE'THL'S 860'2€6'L 0Z8'1€8'9 G6¥'GES'9 6L1'89L'G SLL'010'S 4 # -
2 00¥' LL9'V} 185°116'8 806'699'C BLO'LYL'Y £10'266'E 9g2'LLe'Le 58L'18 000°004 =
9/1'G8L'0€E GOB'E66'VE ZYE'BYB'ZE 8ry'G8e'LE 66#'222'0¢ 6V2'€62'82 660'186'52 2€L'085'vC 108'556'1Z 18L'661'02
L15'5%9 £78'c85 ZL6'9E6 191506 8£8'L6¥ 652'685 502'€85 000'08% $98'9PS =
£66'899'8p 108'P9E'¥S L0L'6Y6'99 £16'258'85 ELE'6BY VS 1Z1'915'¥S £5€'218'95 68L'YYE'YS £e£8'108'es 8LG'L9E' LY
9B9'€0L'L £29'916'F ELE'EIC'Y 085001y G5€'826'E 910'60Z" SL6'LEL'L 60L'ELT') 6692102 6ZL'ELE
sit'iez 259'9¥2 9£9'612 GEY'LLE z9z'elz 62Z'8ly Lz0'sez 166'012 89/'602 yZr'osy
9/2'¥BE'ET ZEP'16L'9Z 900'828'¥Z ¥0L'060'c2 £0Z'ELP'CT 050'609'61 G€9'610°LL a51'09.'91 GZE'LLY'GL 982'685'El
£52'vZT YL 808'€8L'EL €9/'105'G1 SSP'6LLLL £0€'225'04 056'892'L1 9/6'0v1'0} PET'LEB'E BEL'906'6 119'990'6
£EG'LEL'BTL 200641151 Z00'691'951 90L'292'Ev) 16G'LE0'0EL y6L'LOF'6LL 6¥9'GEY'0ZI LOV'E0E'9LL SI8'ZI6'TL) LLP'ZY5 06
109'£69 9£8'265'1 0L¥'120'2 GEO'ELL'L 982'6GL 690'152'2 ZPo'yEE'e $£6'289'L 1€2'958'2 20£'0L0'2
Z61'266'L 9.8'2e¥'T £85'288'1 988'LyL'L 289'6v9 Gb1'829 8£6'L80'C 995'091'¢c GEQ'L¥L'T L69'E6L'L
z25'10L'T 88£'996'2 $GL'100'E 876'GGL'T £61'€29'2 9E6'28E'C ZLV'Z66'L 618'628'1 119'969'} 166'0L2')
[Relegrd Berd 0v0'850' LY 252'619'08 6B5'SY9'rY 1Z1'896'v¥ Gv2'999'ey 2L9'1GL'Gy 1681612k LBG'0SY' LY ¥80'LLL L
199'L00'86 290'62L'¢0L £76'0v9'86 859'G01'v6 £$9'GE0'18 664'8E5'LL 526'892'89 L€2'2€8'99 G/9'e8l'¥9 L84'9€9'€9
165'v08'yZ 091'6+8'62 £22'8P0'82 1#9'6£9'92 89.L'VBE'¥Z GZ5'G8Y'61 L12'828'61 Z8E'095'0Z 25L'Ler'oe G80'89%'0Z
£6.'665'G G82'6ZL'L LYB'ELS'9 8EE'PED'D 06€£'9¥Z'9 £9L'791'9 6L1'8€9'G 16L'629'y #81'G68'E 016'€80'E
£2€'166'29 L19'851'99 $ 6/8'¥20't9 % 6/9'L£8'09 $ GBY'YOF'0S $ 115'888'Gh $ 626'108'2k $ 860'Z¥Y'LY $ 6EE'198'6E $ ZyL've0'oy
800¢ 1002 002 5002 $002 £002 z00Z 100Z 0002 6661
SHYIA TVOSId
vajqel

$

$

sainyipuadxe
|ejideauou Jo abejuasiad e se a21Ales jJgaQ

saoue(eq puny ul abueyd jaN
(sesn) saoinos Bupueuy Jayio [ejo |

2J0U JUBLL|[RISUl WY SPasdold

saoue|eqg pund pajeudoiddy

panssi uonebiqo aeq

Buipunjal ygap wouy sjuawAed adueAepy
asea| |ejidea wouy spasaoid

jwd jsasajul aoueape ‘Jualbie molosa o) JuswiAed
jwd Buipunyal 1gap ‘Jusfie moloss o) Juswiied
juafie masosa Buipunyal o) JuallAed

penssi spuoq Buipunjey

panss) spuog

N0 sijsuel)

Ul s1ajsuel]

(sasn) saainog Guisueuld 1aylQ

sainypuadxa
(Japun) J9A0 S9NUBASI JO S590X]

salnjipuadx3 [ejoL
1salau|
|ediouug
1921088 1920
Aepno [enden
uoljeanp3
uonealoay pue ainynd
(2) seamuag |ewog
S32IA18G UBWNH
Jawde|ana 2IWOU0d]
U01}03)0.1d [BjUSIUOIIAUT
Aeges onand
JUBLUUIBAQY) [BJBUBS)
sainjipuadxgy

Sanuanady (ejoL
SNoaue||29sIN
Jsasu|
sao188 Joy sefiley)n
|eluaLwIaA0BIBY|
soxe} [elo]
180
sales
Auadoid
saxe]
sanuaAay

(Bununodoe jo siseq |ENIJ2E PayIpoLL)

siea) |eastd ua] 3se

Spun4 [BEJUSLILIBADS) ‘saduejeg puny uj safueysn
funog nid

173



09z'08l'22¥'0L
0vr¥'SSZ'6EY'S
€l6'zLT'TIY'E
Glg'/82'evs'e
Z02'€09'eG.'L
226'€59'909'L
SOV LEQ'ZLE'L
Z29%'LET'EG5'9
862'88L'L0€'9
665'208'LZL'9

000001
000001
000’00}
000700}
000°00}
00000}
000700}
000001
000°001
00000}

sjuslelels [ElDUEBULY B} Ul €-Y 3|NPayds 0} 8l - 310N

salnaT] xe] Auadold pue uonenjea jo poday AjunoD |enuUy :821N0S

‘Jewulo) anode ey Buisn pajuswinaop ag [|Im Uolewloul ‘uoladwod uodn “sseoold uoleluaws|dwi aremyos mau e BuloBrapun Ajjuaino s1 Aunod jid 810N

092'08L'22L'0L
809'Z65'88L'6
658'812'268'8
£2G'E58'6hY'8
9/6'65.'7.6'9
618'082'0L9'9
LBG089'v¥E'9
9¥9'688'611'9
¥06'6.2'526'S
8€0'210'€G8'S

6.9'7E¥'801L
8¥2'€55's0L
¥86'/86'901
962'99¥'00L
£96'cr0'¥8
9£6'904'88
26£'092'66
122'GS5'L6
9/9'8/6'L0}
0£Z'#95'¥0L

955'060'895'2
€LG'Z18'866'L
Z50'9€2'890'C
95¥'08L'EL6'L
L68'Lav'Pe6’ L
DEE'696'G8L L
BS8'ZLY'008' L
98L'GEG'Z6L L
0L'Z6LEVS’)
o¥6'0L9'PGL'L

anjep
a|jqexe]
jenjoy
pejewnsy

g 9|qelL

ajey
xe]

108.10

[e30L

anjep
possassy
ajqexe] [ejoL

saiuedwon
a9IAlag 21igqnd

Auadoly
|euosiad

§20'G59'05'L 800¢

2 L¥8'92Z'¥80'L 2002

- £28'v66'9LL'9 9002

- 12/'G09'GEP' 002

- 20L'$52'996'y ¥002

= £65'v09'SEL'Y €002

- 98€'L¥6'8¥Y'Y co0e

- £€2'66L'GET'Y 1002

- ¥2L'60L°08L'Y 0002

= 298'L¥B'e66'E 6661
anjep Auadouad Auedoayg Auadoayg leap
asn-juasald |euysnpu| |e1olawwon |enuapisay |leasiq

fadoud [eay

siea ) |eosi4 ua] jseq]
Auadold ajqexe] jJo anjep |enjoy pue anjep passassy
Aunoo nid

174



ov¥00 00v0°0 00¥0°0 0o¥0'0 0000 00€0°0 & = # =
05200 0G¢00 05200 05200 06200 05200 05200 08200 0§20°0 05200
005070 00s0°0 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500
06100 06100 SLI00 SLL00 S.10°0 S.1l0°0 05100 0§L0°0 05100 05100
00500 00500 00500 00500 00s0'0 00500 00500 00500 0050°0 00500
00S0°0 00900 00800 00900 00900 - - - R
00.00 0000 00.0°0 0000 00400 0ovo0 00¥0°0 00%0°0 00v0°0 00¥0°0
S2y00 Sey0o SZv0'0 Seroo S8¥0°0 §8¥0°0 59¥0°0 §9¥0°'0 59¥0'0 0580°0
05800 06500 05v0°0 00v0°0 00t0°0 0000 00¥0°0 00¥0°0 00v0°0 00¥0°0
66¥0°0 66%0°0 66¥0°0 SL¥0°0 Si¥00 0S8¥0°0 05¥0°0 05¥0°0 0sv0'0 0S¥0°0
05400 08400 05400 0s.0°0 06400 0S40°0 00500 00500 00S0°0 00500
00s0°0 00800 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 0050°0 00500 00500
09200 09e00 08e0°0 09€0°0 0000 00¥0°0 00v0°0 00¥0°0 00¥0'0 00¥0°0
00900 00900 00900 00900 0080°0 00900 009070 009070 00500 =

- - 7 - €200 £420°0 5200
00500 0Se0'0 05e0°0 05200 05200 05200 06200 05200 0G§e0°0 05200
00s¥'0 00500 00500 00500 00500 00S0°0 00s0°0 00500 00500 00500
0¥S0'0 0s¥0°0 00€0°0 00€0°0 00€0°0 00€0°0 08200 05200 Gle0'0 G100
00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 00500 SLE0°0 GL20°0 SLe0°0 GLEQO

- - - - 0s¥0°0 00¥0'0 00500
S.€0°0 S/E0°0 SLEOO SLE0°0 S.€0°0 0000 00¥0°0 00¥0°0 00¥0°0 00¥0°0
005¥°0 005¥°0 00S5¥°0 005¥°0 005¥°0 006¥°0 0oov'o 000%°0 000+'0 00oF'0
00Ss%°0 00S¥°0 00S¥°0 005¥0 00s¥°0 005¥'0 005¥°0 005¥°0 00Sv°0 0ooP0
008¥°0 005%°0 00s¥'0 005¥0 00S8¥°0 00&¥°0 0060 006€0 006€°0 006€E°0
00850 00850 00850 005850 00450 00450 00450 00450 005570 00450
00es0 00850 00850 0095°0 05190 06190 05190 005850 00850 00550
00090 00090 00090 00090 00090 00090 00090 00090 00090 0009°0
006%°0 006%°0 006%°0 006%°0 006%°0 006%°0 006%°0 006¥°0 [A 2] 8¥PS0
005¥°0 00S¥'0 00s¥'0 00sv°0 00sv°0 005¥°0 005¥°0 005s%0 0050 008€°0
00650 00650 00650 00650 00650 00650 00650 00650 00650 00650
00050 00¢s'0 00250 00250 00550 0055°0 00050 0005°0 00050 00050
05990 $ 00LL0 $ 0000 $ 00020 $ 00OLC $ 00890 $ 00890 $ 00890 $ 00890 § 00890 $
8002 L00Z 9002 5002 002 £002 <00z 1002 000z 6661

99|qeL

ajqefed aly saxe] Jeaj

Jlossessy xe] Alunog Wid :89in0g

‘sjuswiwanch Buiddeliano e pue Aiunog Jid 10j uolenjea passasse Jad 0pL§ U paseq ale sajel Xel :3JoN

Pmsig sa

10U1SIq 2u14 BIIAISIUIAL
1oUSIq 8lld SAYOIS
JousIq li4 8snoy uoyels
jousIq 2414 uosdwisg

jousiq aul4 Juiod dieys
msIa 8114 3eQ pay

oulsig ali4 snjojoed

jougsig sl pue|sswlg
joulsiqg edi4 uoylo

oulsig sl sjliasispules)
JousIg edi4 ulejuno

ousIg a4 afjiauLe

oLgsiqg adi4 puepe

10UISIq @nosay seuld uwaise]
JouSIq 2414 Ss8uld uwalseq
10L1SIQ BU1 393N SHED
1ouIsIq 8414 Yoer yoelg
PIsIa 8ll4 INUKY |12g
101)81Q BNosay UspAyY
1ouIsIq 814 USpAy

175

SPHEIg 81

SIABIUIAN JO UMO |
uosdwig Jo umo |
PUE[SBLUILIS) JO UMD
UOYLIS) JO UMO |
3[IAUBBID) JO UMO |
UlBjuUNO4 JO UMO .
3|IAUWLIES JO UMO]
PUEDj|ES JO UMOL
|eLyleg Jo umo |
uapAy Jo umo |

SaTey AIEdRIuN

fAunod wid

slea) [eosi4 uay 1seq

‘sajey xe] Apadoid Buiddepanp pue jo8a1Qg

funog nid



6.128'Gl9 $

VES¥GT 9.9 $ %9TL

g/8'669€eL $

lossessy xe] Aunod Nid :801nog

s|elo|

6 0,9'€¥0'92 6 €00'¥718'9¢2 %920 0l 161'82¥'92 JadojensQ auxep ybiads
01 900'980'61 0 L8z'oer'ee %820 6 £9lL°/8¥'8C sjuswpedy (aBueyox3 ayl) 8||IAuSRID JOPLIOD
v AR AN A4S 9 0G5'92.°LE %0€°0 8 299'5.L'08 Jainjoejnuepy aleoy)iesH spuspy
i 199'9v.'12 8 LOG'EE6'LT %LE0 / 9€0°'229°LE Jainyoejnuepy ODJ2VN
8 08.'8/6'92 L 08.'8/6'92 %L¥0 9 00Lt68'LY el (je1uojod) ey ajliaueals) eplaleiy
S viv'oLL'OF S €6L'6L9'GY %G 0 g G88'vG9'GY lainjoeynuepy Auedwo) sesneyiahop
9 750'620'9¢ 14 LLE'eTy' LS %850 4 G6/°'112'8S Jainyoejnuely owsy
€ 000'00%'G9 € 000°000'29 %190 € 000°000°Z9 suojeoUNWWOoD suoyds|a] eul|oJED
2 806'/55'68 z €€T'/68'8EL %Gl Z 098°0LY'9LL Jainoejnuely D71 ‘ewssuig NSA
I 860'LL0'2e2 ¢ 1 229'G/E'6EZ $ %0£T L 920'669'2¢Z $ Jalnyoejnue|y eonfleled INSA
juey uoljenjep juey uonenjepn uoljenjep juey uonenjep ssauisng Jo mn;._. ._m>maxm._.
passossy possassy passoassy possassy
lejo] jo

%

9002 1edA [edSslq

Laqel

L00T 1e3\ [edstd

800¢ 1e3A [BOSIH

sied) I0ld Z pue juaLng
‘siafed xe] Auedoid ediould
f3unoD Nid

176



“10109[[00) XB ], PUB J0ssassy Xe [, §,41us ay) pue Ajrjue siy) Jo suodar [erousuly pajipne [enuuy [90In0§

‘SyuseIRg [eroueur osoding [e1auan) aty ur APjeredas g Aas| [ewisuo ay) ur pajrodar st (Jrun jusuodwos) uorssiunoy) juatiudofoaa(] [e1nsnpul ay) o) Sururenad Ao
"Kuo £aa] xey Apradord sp1m-£1unos aif) WoIJ BIEP apNIOUT 01 6661 “O€ PUN[ PUs-IEd X Yim SuluuiSaq payipotu uasq ey Apayos siy) Jo uonejuasad ay ], 910N

%¥0°G6 £92'1ze'L9 VIN %1096 €9z’lee'29 909'L€8°'0L goz'cls 8ee'sll'0L 800¢
%0186 ¥ez'oLl'eo 1566'199' %EE 96 LL9'VSY'09 €0L'LeE'Y9 $25'08S'| 6/6'96.'29 L002
%¥ 001 G19'092Z'L9 856'016'Z %EY L6 169'ev.'85 00£'¥66'09 919'869 $89'662'09 9002
%.6'66 0/1'¥52'9% €e0'.10'e %G6't6 PAARVA YA ] 21.2'892'9G (£22'86%'L) Goy'lzl' LG Gg00z
%2200} 120'L59'or Zrl'erl'e %LL'G6 6.8'805 vt 968'81G'Ov £68'G. £96'Z.¥'9Y 002
%2666 9GZ'€20'v¥ 088'L02'¢ %8566 9/¢'lzg' Ly £6E'250'vy £8Z2'00¢ 0.0'LG1'EY £002
%¥8'66 650'v58 L 88%¥'920°¢ %LL 16 1.6'228'6E 6LL°126' LY (612'501) 861'L20'2Y 200e
%00°00} 119'€59'0F 29.'L10'C %¥t 96 6¥8'6£9'8¢E 119'€59'0p 805'065 €01'e90'0r 1002
%1566 18Z'v/6'8¢E £€5'008'L %E6 6 vrL'eLL'LE 2€1'99)'6€ 9/8'v L9119L'68 0002
%.L9°66 Zz2'eLl'ee L6E'0S.'L %0566 Leg'lag' /e obv'erz'6e £29'c69'} £28'6V5'LE 6661

AnaT pajsnipy junowy SIB9A Ane [euiblLIQ junowy Ano paisnipy sjuawisnipy (Ana7 euibuQ) ITETR

Jo abejuaoiad |ejoL juanbasqng ul Jo abejuasiad fejol |eyoL lea ) |eoasiq |eosi4

ajeq 03 SUOI}23]109) [B10L SU0I1399]]10D AnoT ayj jo Jeap |eaSI] ay} 1oj

g ajqel

ay) UM pajaa|jon

paiAaT saxe|

slea) |eosld ua jseq
SU0[399]|09 pue saiaaT xe] Aueadold

funog pid

177



‘Aus siyy jo spodal [elduBUl PPNy 22Jn0S

V/IN 0L6 0¥#'892'8EL 0 0 000'009 0 ovv'aze’sel 0 000'0¥E'Z 8002
V/N 258 960'902'vZ1 0 0 000°008 0 960'119'0Z1 0 000°G6Z'E 2002
%02 869 85%'8¥9'€0L 0 0 000'000'} 0 851'€66'G6 0 000'559'9 9002
%692 85/ 0¥9'9Le'L0L 0 0 000'002"} 0 0¥9'908'26 0 000‘0le's 5002
%ev'e 6¥9 0e¥'951'06 0 0 000'00%'} 0 0ev'128'LL 0 000'588'0L +002
%052 ¥¥9 GZ6'1L£8'88 0 0 000'009'L 0 GZ6'9¥8'c.L 0 000'58E'ElL £00Z
%88'2 869 G¥5'061't6 0 0 000'008'} 0 SPG'0¥G 9L 0 000'058'SL 2002
%ER'Z 6.9 T98'C¥8'06 0 0 000'000'2 0 z98'L15'0L 0 0005281 1002
%512 ¥LS 0L2'L6¥'L9 0 0 000'002'2 0 0L2'Lv¥'vy 0 000'06.'02 0002
%082 109 0¥L'v18'9L 0 0 000'00¥%'2 0 OvL'¥LLILS 0 oo0'ove'ee 6661
awoau| Mw_nmu JuawiuIgA0D sueo spuog spuog S9sean SueoT spuog spuog Aea A
|euosiad jo lad .Cm_.t_._m juauwljjeisuj INUIADY :omumm__n_o _m..-_nmU juauwl|jeisu] anNuUaAay _..Omuwm:po |easiqd
abejuaoiad |eyol |elauan) |elauas

6 9lqel

sajIAl}oy adf}-ssauisng

SONIAIOY [EJUSUILLIDAOSD

siea) [eosi4 ua] jseq
‘adAl Aq 1g8qg BuipuejsinQ jo soey

Aunoo nid

178



‘Aue siy1 Jo spodal [eloueUl palpNY (82IN0S

‘ejep anjea Auadoud 1o} g ainpayos 2ag (g)

"Jeak Jepus|ed Joud sy} Joj uoneindod pue
awiooul jeuoslad Buisn paje|nojes ale sojjel asay] ‘ejep uoieindod pue awoodul [euosltad 1o} ¢ 9|inpayos @9 (1)
‘SjUSLLIBIEIS |BIoUBUI4 BU} 0} S8)0U B} Ul punoy} aq ued jgap Buipuelsino s Auno) ayy Buipiebal sjelaq :s8joN

61l %06¢0°0 VIN 000'0¥6°2 e 000°0¥6°Z 800¢
8¢ %9t+0°0 V/N 0006607 = 000660 2002
Gy %8%.0°0 V/N 000°659'9 - 0006599 900¢
6S %€860°0 %L20 000‘0LE'8 = 000°0LE'8 g00¢
8. %1L9S10 %620 000'G88'0L = 00068801 002
L6 %G202'0 %8€0 000'g8e'el - 000'68¢€'¢Cl £00¢
Ll %8620 %6%0 000'058'S1 - 000'0S8'S1L ¢00¢
LEl %6620 %S0 000'6Ze'8l = 000'GZE 8L L00¢
651l %6050 %990 000'06.'02 g 000'062'02 000¢
Z8l %1L.6E0 %G8°0 ooo'ovz'ee - 000'0¥Z'c2 6661
(1)enden (z)Auedold jo (L)awoouj 1eyol [edisund spuog lea )
lad anjep ajqexe| |euosiad jo Buifeday 03 uonebiqo |eosiq
|en}oy jo abejuasiad pajoulsay |[edauan)
abejusalad sjunowy :ssa

Buipuejsing jgaq pepuog |elauan

siea ) |easiq ua] ise
‘Buipuejsing jqag papuog [e1auas JaN Jo soney
0L elqelL funoo 1id

179



%6691 %98°91 %EP vl %0L'Gl %16'SL %0691 %0281 %S1'8L %9L'EL %68'G1

905'2.9 $ 181119 $ 62.'809 $ 7.8'69S £ vZz'69v $ 16S L¥Y $ v8L'GIY $ 8v.L00¥ $ GBL'80F $ /2ZB'E6E $

899'LEL 806'cZ! 8¥9'201 ZL1'90L 95.'88 zez'ls 16£'26 £r8'e8 1£2'69 Sly'vL

0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

009 008 000} 00z'l oov'lL 009't 008'L 0002 00z'z oor'z

0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

89Z'8el 90L'¥2) 8¥9'€0L LLE'L0} 951'06 7£8'88 16L'¥6 £¥8'06 LEV'L9 G18'9L

vLi'018 180'GEL 8LE'LIL 886'G/9 186'L6S 228'82s ¥1G'L0G 165'68Y z20'vLy L¥z'8or

ogL'lzl'ol $ £65'981'6 $ 6LZ'268'8 $ £68'6YF'8 $ 09L'vL6'Q $ 18Z'019'9 $ 189'bPE'9 ¢ 068'6LL'9 & 08Z'GZE'S ¢ Ll0'EsR's §
1002 L002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002 Looz 0002 6661

1ea |eoslq

LLelqeL

*Ajua siyj jo spodau |eloUBULY P3)IPNE [ENUUY :821N0S

| 3gep jo ebejuaoied e se Jwi| ayy o} ejgeddde Jgap jau [e10L

uiBiep 19aq |e6a

Jiw| o} s|qealdde jgap jau [ejo |
spuoq enuanay
{a)sem pijos) pun4 asudiayug Agq paoinuas Buipuelsino 1qaq
spuoq uonebijgo jelauab jo JuawAedal 1o} a|qe|leA JUNOLWY :S587
1gap ss019
Jwi 0} 2jgesljddy 1gaq Jo Junowy

(uohewI Kioiniels) anjen passassy 40 %8 IWI1igeq

Auadold jo anjep passassy

(spuesnoy ul s1e|jop)

SAB3 A |BOSI4 U] ISET
‘uoljewnsoju; uibaey jqaq eba
funoo nid

180



UOISSIWIWOY JUBLUIUIBAQL) (€207 :80JN0S

‘Joa.lay} Juawhed ay) 1o paias| Bulag ale saxe] ou 'alojelay) ‘walsAs au) Jo
sanuanal woyy pied ale jouisig sbemes uejjodoliapy Baulusiuo) ay} jo suonebiqo igeq (1) 210N

85y ¥r09CL $

'95¥'8r9T0)
0 $ %000
000'090°} $ %00°00}
005692 $ %00°00L
005°G9l ¢ %00°001
0 $ %00°001L
ooo‘lez'L  $ %00°001
0 $ %00°00L
0o0'0L9'0z ¢ %00°00L
192Q d|qediddy
Buiddepanpo abejuaalad
pue joalig pajewjsy
Jo aleys
pajewns3y

Zl @|qel

000'L0€  $
000'090'L $
00569  $
00569l $
0 $
000'162'L ¢
0 $
000'0,9'0Z $

Buipueising
192Q

1gep Buiddeano pue joau1p [B101
1gap 10allp [ejo |

(L) LOI41S1a 39vAM3s
NYLITOdOYLIN YANLNILNOD

IATTUALGILNIM 40 NMOLL
ANVYISINIEO 40 NMOL
NIVLNNO4H 40 NMOL
JTIANEYH 40 NMOL
13HL139 40 NMOLL
NIAAY 40 NMOL

JTTNANIIHD 40 ALID

JIUQ [BIJUBWUISA05)

8002 ‘0€ aunr jo sy
jq2Q S81}IAY |ejusawuianos) Buiddepaag pue j0a11q
funod nid

181



-1eak Jepus|eo Joud 1o} abeleay [ENUUY “uoISSIWIWOD Alnoag Juswhoidws ‘9 °N (b)

"Jeak |00Y2s Yyoese J0 pua ay} 1e uoneoanpd jo pieog Ajuno) Hid Aq papiaosd ainbly Ny yivow () suiN (g)
“Jeak Jepus|es Jolud sy 1o aie sainbl4 "aolawwo) jo Juswpedaq 'S ‘N ‘sisAleuy d1wouood Jo neaing ()
‘Juawabeuepy pue 106png 2)L1S 40 0O BUIj0IED YHON au} Ag papirold (L)

:S9JON

"s|qe|ieA. JaA 10U UOIBLUIOM| ,

“ i % i 966'15 ) 8002
%0'G z56'22 W ¥ 86E'9¥ L 1002
%E'G 868'L2 L£0'6Z 006'0LE'Y £6Y'8Y L 9002
%9 gzL'1e 002'82 z.2'066'c 667" L1l 5002
%L9 §99'02 111'92 716'6LL'E 2z6'8el ¥00Z
%99 0zz'0z 9vl'se B6E'065'E L06'2€EL £002
%09 50Z'02 zie've 0£0'/92'¢ 986'vEL z00Z
%S¥ 9EL'61 9/6'€Z L¥6'L02'E 86L'CE) 100Z
%'y 0£0'02 ¥6'ee BEY'OVL'E goL'Lel 0002
%'y 16661 Z9v'Le 6ES'VYL'E 68421 6661
(v)orey (ghuawijoiuz (z) swoou| (saeqjop jo (1)uonendog dea

juawfojdwaun [jooyssg |euosiad spuesnouy})

agnd epded (z) awoou

lad |euosiad

SIea\ |easid uag jse
S213S1IE1S 21Wouoa] pue aydelbowag
¢l alqeL fjunod nid

182



%lC0 6 00¢
%80 8 0G6S
%610 0l 0.l¢
%6¢E'0 L GGS
%290 9 £96
%860 ¥ oov'l
%0.L°0 g 000'}
%GL € 00§'C
%8G'¢ 4 0ol'e
%06'C L 0SL'y

juswAojdwig yuey saalfojdwig
fAjunon |ejo] jo

abejuaniad

() 6661

vl 2lqel

Juswuwledag saolalag [eloueul4 AlUNOY 1 Sjuswnoop |ealolsiH 6661 (2)
uoIssiwwo) Juswdoeaaq |euisnpu] Aluno) Jid (L) :@2inog

%GE0 oL 00S 1se3 uepisAyd
%610 6 0. a|ausal9 jo Ao
%GS50 8 £8/ 8be|j09 Aunwiwiod nid
%660 A 068 [BUOIBUIBIU| BUQ BOUEI||Y
%¥9'0 9 z26 nid o Ajuno)
%¥8°0 g 00Z'} s|eonasewleyd INSQA
%80 ¥ 00Z'} dnolg Buipuey [eusiely ODIVYN
%G0'C ¢ 0¥6'2 sjooyos 2lland Aunod Rid
%GY'E z 9e6'y fysianiun euljole) ise3
%0t ¥ L 162'9 |eydsoH [euows|y Ajunod Bid
juswAojdwig yuey saalojdwg JaAojdwg

funoo |ejo] jo
abejuaolad

(1) 8002

oby sieaj SUIN pue 1eaj juaiing
s1afojdwz jedioung
Kyunoo nid

183



‘(anBa| }oIS pue uoljeoeA ssa|) Jeah Jad sinoy Qg0 Z Iom |auuosiad aw ||n4
1eaf yoes Jo g aunr Jo se pakojdwa suosiad Jo Jaquinu sjuasaldal ajnpayos siy] 810N

juswpeds( seoinieg [eoiueuld AJUNOD :82IN0S

0G'¢c6 9/'998 G868 08'¥#L0OL  OP9LOL 02°000°} G6°986 0¢'8.6 GL'1LG6 12000} [BloL
ogeel 0LLEL GcGLL oLeLe 0L'8le STAVAR oL'Lee 0l'9ce G/L'8LE Lv'L6E UlesH
0s'Le 0s'lc Sg'lc ge'le gg'ee geee Ge'ee T G¢'0c 00°0¢ uonoajoud [ejusLIuoIIAUg
oL'el 098l 096l 09'8L 098l oL'6lL 099l 09°GlL 06'vL So¢l ASp [edisAyd pue uoog
00'¢ee 00422 goeee 000ce 00'Lec 00°ZLe 00°LLE 00°LLe 0s0Le 00¢c0¢ S82IAI8S |BIDOS
00'ciE 95°9¢¢ Ggeele §e20e Ge'G6e G8'G8¢ §¢'89¢ §¢89¢ G.09¢ SL¥Se Aysjes olgnd
00'v¥l 00cvl 0g'Lvl 0S'6E1L osovl G/'8¢tlL GLLEL 0ooct 09'9¢L or'6LL juswuianob [essus9

800¢ £00¢ 900¢ 500¢ 7002 €002 c00e L00e 000¢ 6661 weiBoidjuonoung

Sl elqel

siea) [eosi4 ua] iseT

‘uonjoung Aq seafojdwg Juswularon AJunon jusjeAinbg awiy-|ing

funoo nid

184



000'9 00.'se osl'se 905'6¢e 000'GE 000'G€E WiN YIN YN vIN |eusiew pajokosl Jo suo |

0£G'SEL 005'vEL 00lL'cel 0o00‘gel 000°'LEL 000°0€L WIN WIN WIN WIN passaooid abequeb Jo suo|
Buijofoay 3 ajsem plos

:sa1jAl}oY adfy-ssauisng

000'€2 609'22 aLL'ze zig'ie 599'02 zZiv'oz lee'oz 8938'61 616'61 8¥.L'6) Z1-¥ usW(jo1ua Juapn)s 0oyos aljlgnd
uoljeonp3y

8.¥'09% LL0'ZSY ¥81'60Y ¥81'60F 0Z9'68¢ szZL'vee Zv6'60¥ 000'82H 000°00% 000261 wajsAs Aleiqy| Joj uoieNoL [ejo L
uoljealdady pue ainyngy

626'8 005'2L 168's o5L's vl'e ZoF'y WIN VIN WIN WIN pAnoe Bugywiad pue suoe)nsuoo ‘suoioadsul Buibpon g jueineissy

86G'Y GZ§'y 505'y /52'% Zeb'y Zoe'y WIN Y/IN W/IN W/IN S8SEO DM UHESH 2lignd Jo Jaquinu afelany

6/9'6 099'2L 269'/L 86L'8 062’8 055'8 vIN WIN Y/IN WiIN $9SBO UON09)|02 Hoddns p|iyd Jo JaquinN

Zve'e 98e'e 0zZe'e 661'2 ¥62'L 986 VIN W/IN W/N VIN @oue}sisse ucljepodsuel) Buiaisoal sjusiio pieoipay

088'Z L2L'T 08€' 615'C 0ze'z 825'2 VIN WIN WIN WIN sjiiq ABIsua UM S0UBISISSE PAAISaI 1By} SPjoYasnoH
S99IAI19S UelINH

662'L 129'L zzL'e 969l 6£9'C 669'L €68'L €8 €€6'T GIYr'e panss! sjiuuad |ejuapisal Jo Jaquinny

L9 201 St yElL S¥l §GL 61 99 Zy9 GL6 panss s)iad [BIOJBWILWOD JO Jaquiny
juawdojana( |eaisAyd pue siwouoosy

WIN V/IN 60L'Z 186'L Z69 zee'L 895 Gee 00¥ G626 paAlas SIaWOISND JaJepA B [10S JO JaquinN
uo01)99j0.1d [BIUSWUOIIAUT

506'9Z lZv'ez 88€'6L 88€'61 L1G'6L 005'8t 699'ZL clr'el 00s'cl LZ¥'El SUOIJEJOIA ME] JO JaquIinN

£¥8'se 000'2e ogz'el oov'LL cLELL 925’61 L8t'9z Shi'ee 885'2 yee's s|jeo/yoredsip 16 Jo Jaqunn
Kyages ongnd

zze'L 6£0'L arL'L £9L'L 900'L #90'L 2£0'} 600'L L£0'L L0l panss| sasuaol| sbeulew Jo JaquinN

gLv'96 9/9'06 ¥¥Z'o6 £6.'26 £L9'v6 vrg'e £vz'ea 650'L8 G/6'28 ¥rG'es. sisjon passisiBal jo Jeaquinn
JUSWILLIBAOK) |BlBUDD)

{SBIIAIIOY |BJUBWILIDAOD)
8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002 z00z 100Z 0002 6661
JIea) |easiq

9l alqeL

SIe3) [B0S|4 Ud) Jse
uopoung Aq siojesipu) Bunjesadg
funog pid

185



19 €L

=743 18l

0 13

181

Ge

ZL

8Ll

L

Lil

eL

LL}

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

/N

VIN

/N

YN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

ViIN

VIN

YIN

VIN

VIN

WVIN

YIN

YIN

8002

L1002

9002 5002

002 £00Z

z00z

Looz

0002

6661

Ll 2lqeL

ieaA |edsld

sajoIyBN

BuijoAoay ® sysem pllos
isanAnoYy adfy-ssauisng

EESIEENY
sbuip|ing
uoneanp3y

SaRIYaN
sBuiping
uonealday pue ainyng

EETRIEN
g
S891AI8S UBLUNH

saplyap,

juawdojana 1eatsAud pue aIwouod]

sapIysA
sBuiping
uoljaajold |ejualiuoldiAug

sa|alyap,
iping
fyeseg aljand

sajolyan,

g
JUBLULLIBAOS) [BJBUDD
1SAIIAIOY [RIUSLULLIBAOS)

Sl1e3A |BISI4 U3 ] IseT]
uopound Aq sansnelg 1essy [ejded
Kunoo nid

186



